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Detailed Business Plan Section Checklist

Charter Holder: Choice Education and Development Corporation — Sequoia Village School (Entity ID 79211)

Each Detailed Business Plan will be reviewed to determine if all of the required elements have been addressed:

Yes — Required element addressed.
No — Required element not addressed.
Not Applicable — Required element not applicable to the charter holder.

Arizona State Board for Charter Schools (Board) staff will complete the Detailed Business Plan Section Checklist. The Checklist will be used by
the Board in its consideration of the charter holder’s request for charter renewal. “ No” answers may adversely affect the Board’'s decision
regarding a charter holder’s request for charter renewal.

Il b.1. CHARTER HOLDER’S ORGANIZATIONAL M EM BERSHIP

Required Elements Yes No N/A COMMENTS
o Evidence of the appropriate filings with either the Board, Arizona X
Corporation Commission or both submitted.
Il b.2. CHARTER HOLDER’S FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY
PART A — RENEWAL BUDGET PLAN
Required Elements Yes No N/A COMMENTS
o Completed Renewal Budget Plan submitted. X The Renewal Budget Plan was

completed for the charter school
operated under this charter contract. The
charter holder has five charter contracts
with the Board.
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4 years of financial information provided as required by the
Renewal Instructions with fiscal years clearly identified.

The Renewal Budget Plan includes four
years of financial information. However,
instead of including actual information for
fiscal year 2011 and projecting the next
three fiscal years, the Renewal Budget
Plan uses fiscal year 2012 as the “ actual’
year and includes financial information for
the next three fiscal years.

Renewal Budget Plan includes average daily membership (ADM)
used in each fiscal year and the basis for projected ADM.

The Renewal Budget Plan includes the
projected ADM for each fiscal year, which
is basically the same for all four years.

According to Arizona Department of
Education reports, as of May 11, 2012,
the charter holder ADM was 185.336,
which is approximately 10 ADM lower
than the number included in the Renewal
Budget Plan.

Assumptions provided for key components of the Renewal Budget
Plan, including the basis for all projected revenue line items used.

Increases or decreases of 10% or more in the “total expenses”
line item from year to year in the Renewal Budget Plan are
explained in the “ Assumptions/Notes” section.

Each “ Other” line item used is explained in the
“Assumptions/Notes” section to specify what is included.

All three “ Other” line items were used,
but none were explained.

For those required to submit the Academic Performance Section of
the renewal application, the charter holder’s previous two audits
and the Renewal Budget Plan demonstrate the charter holder has
the financial capacity to implement the “budget” as detailed in the
Academic Performance Section.
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o Renewal Budget Plan is mathematically correct. X Taking into account rounding issues, the
Renewal Budget Plan is mathematically
correct.
Il b.2. CHARTER HOLDER’S FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY
PART B — FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY NARRATIVE
Required Elements Yes No N/A COMMENTS
o For those required to complete the renewal application’s “ Charter X
Holder’s Financial Sustainability” section because at least one of
the two previous audits identified a going concern or identified
negative net assets or negative members’/stockholders’ equity at
year end, a narrative is provided.

o Narrative does not exceed one page in length. X
o Narrative explains the charter holder’s current financial situation. X
o Narrative includes the specific steps the charter holder has already X

taken to improve its financial situation and ensure the continued
financial sustainability of the charter school(s).

o Evidence provided that supports each of the steps already taken by X
the charter holder to improve its financial situation and ensure the
continued financial sustainability of the charter school(s).

TOTAL (Sections Il b.1, Il b.2 Part A, and Il b.2 Part B) 9 2 3

Check one (required):
1 MEETS THE REQUIREMENTS (All applicable “ Required Elements” received a “ Yes” .)

DOES NOT MEET THE REQUIREMENTS (One or more applicable “ Required Elements” received a “ No”.)

Board Staff Review Date: May 28, 2012
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Actual Projected Financial Information
FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2015
ADM: 195.04 195.00 195.00 195.00
REVENUE

State Equalization Assistance $1,239,864 $1,264,662 $1,289,955 $1,315,754

Classroom Site Fund $48,167 $49,130 $50,113 $51,115

Instructional Improvement Fund $6,364 $6,491 $6,621 $6,753

Federal Funds/Grants $173,365 $176,832 $180,369 $183,976

Other State Funds/Grants

Food Service (e.g., NSLP, food sales) $65,682 $66,996 $68,336 $69,703

Extracurricular Tax Credits $950 $969 $988 $1,008

Contributions and Donations $0 $0 $0

Fundraising

Earnings on Investments

Student Activities

Kindergarten Tuition (Applies only to FY10

& FY11 unless expanded by Legislature)

Other $96,691 $98,625 $100,598 $102,610
TOTAL REVENUE $1,631,084 $1,663,706 $1,696,980 $1,730,920
EXPENSES
Instructional

Salaries $490,251 $500,056 $510,058 $520,259

Payroll Taxes $37,504 $38,254 $39,019 $39,800

Employee Benefits $127,652 $130,205 $132,809 $135,465

Purchased Services (Consultants) $1,500 $1,530 $1,561 $1,592

Purchased Services (Special Education) $17,047 $17,388 $17,735 $18,090

Technology $0 $0 $0

Textbooks/Curriculum/Library $6,000 $6,120 $6,242 $6,367

Instructional Supplies $7,416 $7,564 $7,715 $7,870

Professional Development $0 $0 $0

Travel $1,733 $1,768 $1,803 $1,839

Other $1,706 $1,741 $1,775 $1,811
Total Instructional $690,809 $704,625 $718,718 $733,092
Non-Instructional

Salaries $208,775 $212,950 $217,209 $221,553

Payroll Taxes $16,985 $17,324 $17,671 $18,024

Employee Benefits $54,270 $55,355 $56,463 $57,592

Purchased Services $45,201 $46,105 $47,027 $47,968

Rent/Bond Payment $10,022 $10,222 $10,427 $10,635

Repairs and Maintenance $7,618 $7,771 $7,926 $8,084

Property, Casualty, Liability Insurance $5,489 $5,598 $5,710 $5,825

Interest/Property Taxes $182,209 $185,853 $189,570 $193,361

Communications $50,894 $51,911 $52,950 $54,009

Furniture and Other Equipment $10,151 $10,354 $10,561 $10,772

Note/Loan/Non-Facility Lease Payments $6,279 $6,405 $6,533 $6,664

Audit $4,000 $4,080 $4,162 $4,245

Legal

Advertising/Marketing $3,932 $4,010 $4,090 $4,172

Travel $4,774 $4,869 $4,966 $5,066

Printing and Postage

Supplies $57,919 $59,078 $60,259 $61,465

Food Service

Transportation $195,000 $198,900 $202,878 $206,936

Student Activities

Fees and Dues $779 $795 $811 $827

Other $307 $313 $319 $326
Total Non-Instructional $864,603 $881,895 $899,533 $917,523
TOTAL EXPENSES $1,555,412 $1,586,520 $1,618,250 $1,650,615
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets $75,673 $77,186 $78,730 $80,304
Net Assets, Beginning of Year $71,247 $146,920 $224,106 $302,836
Net Assets, End of Year $146,920 $224,106 $302,836 $383,140

ASSUMPTIONS/NOTES

Renewal Budget Plan

Provides for 2% growth per year in reveneues and expenses






Choice Education and Development Corporation

Charter Holder’s Financial Sustainability
Part B

Choice Education and Development Corporation the charter holder ended the fiscal years June 30, 2011
with positive net assets of $654,742. The corporation had negative net assets in prior years but the
growth of the schools and the stability provided by the bond which it participated has allowed it to grow
out of that situation. The Budgets under which the corporation is operating under during the current
year provide for an increase in net assets.

Choice Education and Development Corporation’s and Edkey Inc’s Board of Directors On March 9, 2012
approved a merger of Choice Education and Development Corporation and Edkey, Inc. effective June 30,
2012. The Merger is subject to the approval of various parties and we ill require the transfer of the
charters held by Edkey, Inc. to Choice Education and Development Corporation. Choice Education and
Development Corporation will be assuming all the assets and debt obligations of Edkey, Inc. upon
completion of the merger. Both companies have positive net assets as of June 30, 2011 with combine
net assets of $667,074 and are operating under budgets that will provide for an increase in net assets in
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.

We are attaching

¢ Audit financial statement for both Choice Education and Development Corporation and Edkey,
Inc. as of June 30, 2011.

e Merger Documents of Choice Education and Development Corporation and Edkey, Inc. including
proforma financial statements for the three fiscal years ended June 30, 2009, 2010 and 2011.

e Memorandum explain the merger





MEMO:

RE: Choice Education and Development Corporati@hEdkey, Inc. Merger
Date: February 13, 2012

FROM: Patric R Greer

Choice Education and Development Corporation (CE&YE) Edkey, Inc. are proposing a merger of thedwapanies
effective June 30, 2012.

FACTS:

Presently the two corporations are operating indéeetly with all of the managements for both cogpions being
provided by CEDC. Each Corporation is a 501(c)8 ®fficers and Directors of the two companiesideatical.

CEDC operates nine charter schools under five efsavtith the Arizona State Board for Charter Schobhe Charters
are Sequoia Charter School, Arizona Conservatarthi Arts and Academics, Sequoia Village Schoehrhing
Crossroads Basic Academy and Sequoia School fdd¢la¢ and Hard of Hearing.

The following is a list of the Charters and Schamperated by CEDC:

Charter School
Sequoia Charter School

Sequoia Secondary School
Sequoia Middle School
Sequoia Elementary School
SSDHH
Sequoia School for the Deaf & Hard of Hearing
LCBA
Sequoia Academics and Arts Elementary Charteo&@dk-8
Sequoia Academics and Arts Charter School 9-12
Sequoia Village School
Sequoia Village School
ACAA
AZ Conservatory for Arts and Academics
AZ Conservatory for Arts and Academics--Middle Sgho

Edkey Inc operates six Charter school under thiheeters from the Arizona State Board for Chartdrd®t The charters
are Sequoia Ranch Schools, Pathfinder Academy add/éod Academy.





The following is a list of the Charters and schamperated by Edkey, Inc:

Charter School
Sequoia Ranch School

Sequoia Ranch School
Children First Academy - Phoenix
Children First Academy - Tempe
Sequoia Pathway Academy
Pathfinder Academy
Pathfinder Academy
Redwood Academy
Sequoia Redwood Academy

CEDC provides management services to both corposincluding Accounting, Payroll, Human resources,
transportation, food services, Technology and Fasl Edkey is charged for these services based upage. The two
corporations while separate entities are depengded aach other for services. The arraignment betwe=two
companies is somewhat complicated shared managemeémost structure that has caused us all sonfaston when
trying to underwrite bond deals

CEDC patrticipated in a bonding financing of $28,800 in 2006 to acquire the following propertie46Q S Horne
Mesa, AZ, 2820 W Kelton Lane Phoenix, AZ and 98RHawse Lane Show Low, AZ with all of the propesdand assets
of those sites. Additionally the proceeds of thadwhere used to construct two buildings on thendarampus with
39,000 sqft in space. The pledged revenues fobtmsl are the revenues of Sequoia Charter Schequdta Village
School, Sequoia School for the Deaf and Hard ofridgaand Arizona Conservatory for the Arts and Asradts. The
state apportionment for r these schools are degabsgiith the bond trustee and payments are madeanirto the bond
and the balance is forwarded to the schools. ThenBa due on the Bond as of January 1 2012 wa3 $2600.

Edkey Inc. participated in a bond financing of $B8),000 in 2010 to acquire a property at 19625 NeP&d Maricopa
AZ and to build the facility at that site and fushithe facility. The pledged revenues for this barelthose of the
Sequoia Ranch Charter. The state apportionmenthdse schools are deposited with the bond trastdgayments are
made pursuant to the bond and the balance is fdedao the schools. The Balance due on the Bowod Jenuary 1 2012
was $13,450,000.

MERGER

The objective is to streamline all management aimdimistration into one enterprise and create a ntaugjer and fiscally
stronger organization by consolidating operatiodpon completion of the merger, the bondholdersmh respective
transaction will enjoy a much stronger credit amel newly merged company will enjoy a significarghhanced financial
position. With the merger the management and adination being in one company will allow the mergedipany to
save accounting and payroll cost as there willagothe requirement to distinguish between the coilepa

The following are the financial statements (Stateimief net Assets and Changes in Net Assets) étvtb companies
separately and in a merged format for the yearedddne 20, 2009, 2010, 2011 and December 31, Z0&12009 and
2010 statements are taken from each company'sdutitincial statements, while those of June 301 2(hd December
31, 2011 are unaudited at this point in time. Tidited statements with footnotes and auditors te@oe attached for
reference. The June 30, 2012 audit for both congsastiould be completed in the near future.

Additionally we are attaching the Debt service Gage Ratio or each of the two bonds from June 309 2orward
individually and combined starting with June 30120We have made projections for the June 30, Pas2d upon the
budgets for the 2012 fiscal year,





PLAN OF MERGER
MERGING EDKEY, INC. WITH AND INTO
CHOICE EDUCATION AND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

This Plan of Merger has been prepared in accordance with Section 10-1110 of the Arizona
Nonprofit Corporation Act.

Il. Surviving Corporation. Edkey, Inc., an Arizona nonprofit corporation, shall be merged (the
“Merger”) with and into Choice Education and Development Corporation, an Arizona nonprofit
corporation. Choice shall be the corporation surviving the Merger (the "Surviving Corporation").

2. Effective Time. The Merger shall be effective as of 11:59 p.m. on June 30, 2012 (the
“Effective Time”).

3. Rights and Obligations. As of the Effective Time, the Surviving Corporation, by operation of
the Merger, and with no further action required, shall possess and be subject to all the rights,
privileges, powers, franchises, property (real, personal and mixed), restrictions, disabilities, duties
and debts of Edkey, Inc. and the Surviving Corporation.

Without limitation, as of the Effective Time, the Surviving Corporation shall, and hereby agrees to,
be bound by and assume and perform all of the terms, covenants, conditions, agreements and
obligations of both Edkey, Inc., and Choice Education and Development Corporation under and
pursuant to the following Loan Agreements and all documents entered into in connection therewith:
(a) Loan Agreement by and between The Industrial Development Authority of the County of Pima,
as issuer, and Edkey, Inc. as Borrower, dated as of November 1, 2010, and (b) Loan Agreement by
and between The Industrial Development Authority of the County of Pima, as issuer, and Choice
Education and Development Corporation, as Borrower, dated as of June 1, 2006.

Furthermore, without limitation, as of the Effective Time, the Surviving Corporation shall, and
hereby agrees to, be bound by and assume and petform all of the terms, covenants, conditions,
agreements and obligations of both Edkey, Inc., and Choice Education and Development Corporation
under and pursuant to the following Charters granted by the Arizona State Board of Charter Schools:
(a) Sequoia Charter School; (b) Arizona Conservatory for the Arts and Academics; (c) Sequoia
Village School; (d) Learning Crossroads Basic Academy; (e) Sequoia School for the Deaf and Hard
of Hearing; (f) Sequoia Ranch Schools; (g) Pathfinder Academy; and (h) Redwood Academy.

4. Officers. The officers of the Surviving Corporation immediately prior to the Effective Time
shall be the officers of the Surviving Corporation as of and after the Effective Time, and each of
them shall hold office until their respective successors are elected and qualified, or until their earlier
resignation or removal.

5. Directors. The directors of the Surviving Corporation immediately prior to the Effective
Time shall be the directors of the Surviving Corporation as of and after the Effective Time, and each
of them shall hold office until their respective successors are elected and qualified, or until their
earlier resignation or removal. '

6. Bylaws. The Bylaws of the Surviving Corporation that are in effect immediately prior to the
Effective Time shall be the Bylaws of the Surviving Corporation as of and after the Effective Time,
except the Bylaws shall be amended to the extent necessary to amend the name of the Surviving
Corporation to Edkey, Inc.
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7. Articles of Incorporation. The Articles of Incorporation of the Surviving Corporation that are
in effect immediately prior to the Effective Time shall be the Articles of Incorporation of the
Surviving Corporation as of and after the Effective Time, except that Article I of the Articles of
Incorporation shall be amended in its entirety to read as follows:

"Article 1: Name. The name of the Corporation is Edkey, Inc."

8. Adoption. This Plan of Merger was adopted and approved by the Board of Directors of
Edkey, Inc. at a meeting duly called and properly held on Mowa\ C{ , 2012, and by the
Board of Directors of the Surviving Corporation at a meeting duly called and properly held on

Mo\ N, 2012.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have hereunto set their hands this | 2— day of
Mare— 2012, T

EDKEY, INC. CHOICE EDUCATION AND
DEVELOPNH?CORPORA
A
By: @:—Q —3:(———— By: / /77 i
Namé: 2dere ~ R. (cree— Name: "W eou. N éx |
Title: Seactem (TlEASU LD Title: ~ Preardecwy
/
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Choice Education and Development and Edkey Inc Merged Corporations

Current Assets
Cash

Grants and Funds Receivable

Account Receivable
Due from Related Party
Current Bond Reserves
Total Current Assets

Property and Equipment, Net

Other Assets
Bond Reserve
Bond Fees, Net
Deposits
Goodwill
Total Other Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

Accrued Payroll and Other Assets
Current Portion of Bond Payable

Unearned Revenues
Line of Credit

Due or Accrued to Related Party

Total Current Liabilities

Long Term Liabilities

Bond Payable, Net of Current Portion

Total Liabilities

Net Assets
Unrestricted (Deficit)
Temporarily Restricted

Total Net Assets (deficit)

Total Net Assets and Net Assets

June 30, 2009

Statement Of Financial Postion

Merged
CEDC Edkey Elimination Corporation
Assets
762,555 240,584 1,003,139
481,701 144,785 626,486
265,568 284,262 549,830
494,394 0 (494,394) 0
373,728 373,728
2,377,946 669,631 (494,394) 2,553,183
21,535,126 796,824 22,331,950
2,133,219 0 2,133,219
1,676,150 0 1,676,150
33,925 43,407 77,332
534,500 0 534,500
4,377,794 43,407 0 4,421,201
28,290,866 1,509,862 (494,394) 29,306,334
Liabilities and Net Assets
225,137 256,787 481,924
917,434 361,692 1,279,126
385,000 385,000
42,667 0 42,667
22,589
494,394 (494,394) 0
1,592,827 1,112,873 (494,394) 2,188,717
27,180,000 0 27,180,000
28,772,827 1,112,873 (494,394) 29,368,717
(1,081,077) (28,438) (1,109,515)
525,450 425,427 950,877
(555,627) 396,989 0 (158,638)
28,217,200 1,509,862 (494,394) 29,210,079






Choice Education and Development and Edkey Inc Merged Corportaions
Statement Of Activites and Changes in net Assets
June 30, 2009

Revenues

Merged
CEDC Edkey Elimination Corporation
State of Arizona Equalization 10,866,536 4,301,041 15,167,577
Classroom Site Fund 519,604 225,873 745,477
Instructional Improvement Fut 60,654 26,920 87,574
Federal and State Grant Reven 982,544 346,566 1,329,110
Management Fee - Related Pal 978,596 (978,596) 0
Administrative Services 796,344 2,836,712 3,633,056
Food Services 60,882 294,446 355,328
Public Donations 145,419 541,210 686,629
Other Revenues 18,111 238,215 256,326
Total Revenues 14,428,690 8,810,983 (978,596) 22,261,077
Personnel Services
Salaries and Wages 7,404,889 3,628,688 11,033,577
Payroll Taxes and Benefits 1,899,983 988,647 2,888,630
Total Personnel Services 9,304,872 4,617,335 0 13,922,207
Operating Expenses
Advertising 37,963 23,295 61,258
Amortization 62,080 62,080
Depreciation 920,203 106,329 1,026,532
Equipment Repair and Rental 288,003 318,882 606,885
Food Service 349,783 328,448 678,231
Insurance 141,592 85,552 227,144
Interest 1,762,854 2,642 1,765,496
Miscellaneous 56,239 40,559 96,798
Occupancy 29,211 536,227 (206,190) 359,248
Professional Fees 525,686 1,254,572 1,780,258
Student Transportation 293,254 293,254
Supplies 340,638 271,986 612,624
Travel 45,400 113,062 158,462
Administrative Fee related Party 772,406 (772,406) 0
Other 95,675 95,675
Utilities and Telephone 451,036 217907 668,943
Total Operating Expenses 5,303,942 4,167,542 (978,596) 8,492,888
Total Expenses 14,608,814 8,784,877 (978,596) 22,415,095
Increase in Net Assets (180,124) 26,106 0 (154,018)
Net Assets (Deficit) at Beginni (375,503) 370,883 (4,620)
Net Assets (Deficit) at End of (555,627) 396,989 0 (158,638)






Choice Education and Development and Edkey Inc Merged Corporations
Statement Of Financial Postion

Current Assets
Cash

Grants and Funds Receivable

Account Receivable
Due from Related Party
Prepaid Expense
Current Bond Reserves
Total Current Assets

Property and Equipment, Net

Other Assets
Bond Reserve
Bond Fees, Net
Deposits
Goodwill
Total Other Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

Accrued Payroll and Other Assets
Current Portion of Bond Payable

Unearned Revenues

Due or Accrued to Related Party

Total Current Liabilities

Long Term Liabilities

Bond Payable, Net of Current Portion

Total Liabilities

Net Assets
Unrestricted (Deficit)
Temporarily Restricted

Total Net Assets (deficit)

Total Net Assets and Net Assets

June 30, 2010 Merged
CEDC Edkey Elimination Corporation
Assets

828,089 501,703 1,329,792
165,396 100,314 265,710
10,562 126,238 136,800
96,341 (96,341) 0
1,001,054 58,074 {956,519) 102,609
1,155,323 1,155,323
3,256,765 786,329 (1,052,860) 2,990,234
20,942,437 1,085,522 22,027,959
2,133,219 0 2,133,219
1,614,069 0 1,614,069
0 34,038 34,038

534,500 0 534,500
4,281,788 34,038 0 4,315,826
28,480,990 1,905,889 (1,052,860) 29,334,019

Liabilities and Net Assets

629,022 612,804 1,241,826
803,026 202,487 1,005,513
410,000 410,000
42,667 0 42,667
1,052,860 {1,052,860) 0

1,884,715 1,868,151 (1,052,860) 2,700,006
26,770,000 26,770,000
28,654,715 1,868,151 {(1,052,860) 29,470,006
(707,837) (149,497) (857,334)
534,112 187,235 721,347
(173,725) 37,738 0 (135,987)
28,480,990 1,905,889 (1,052,860) 29,334,019






Choice Education and Development and Edkey Inc Merged Corporations
Statement Of Activites and Changes in net Assets

Revenues

State of Arizona Equalization
Classroom Site Fund

Instructional Improvement Fund
Federal and State Grant Revenues
Management Fee - Related Party
Administrative Services

Food Services

Public Donations

Other Revenues

Total Revenues

Personnel Services

Salaries and Wages
Payroll Taxes and Benefits
Total Personnel Services

Operating Expenses

Advertising

Amortization

Depreciation

Equipment Repair and Rental
Food Service

Insurance

Interest

Miscellaneous

Occupancy

Professional Fees

Student Transportation
Supplies

Travel

Administrative Fee related Party
Utilities and Telephone

Total Operating Expenses
Total Expenses

Increase in Net Assets

Net Assets (Deficit) at Beginning of Year

Net Assets (Deficit) at End of Year

June 30, 2010

Merged
CEDC Edkey Elimination Corporation
8,985,229 5,538,570 14,523,799
440,989 286,983 727,972
54,781 42,075 96,856
3,831,950 2,416,250 6,248,200
708,467 0 (708,467) 0
933,436 710,330 1,643,766
935 7,603 8,538
60,100 372,601 432,701
290,078 64,361 354,439
15,305,965 9,438,773 (708,467) 24,036,271
7,121,760 4,034,687 11,156,447
1,994,221 1,198,229 3,192,450
9,115,981 5,232,916 0 14,348,897
22,187 22,924 45,111
62,080 62,080
1,097,884 155,752 1,253,636
338,361 224,914 563,275
366,761 422,814 789,575
149,695 69,178 218,873
1,735,363 3,092 1,738,455
61,872 20,028 81,900
81,393 1,321,349 1,402,742
773,678 1,147,092 (206,190) 1,714,580
287,964 287,964
355,171 293,010 648,181
65,481 108,398 173,879
502,277 (502,277) 0
410,192 274,280 684,472
5,808,082 4,565,108 (708,467) 9,664,723
14,924,063 9,798,024 (708,467) 24,013,620
381,902 (359,251) 0 22,651
(555,627) 396,989 (158,638)
(173,725) 37,738 0 (135,987)






Choice Education and Development and Edkey Inc Merged Corporations

Current Assets
Cash
Grants and Funds Receivable
Account Receivable
Prepaid Expense
Current Bond Reserves
Total Current Assets

Property and Equipment, Net

Other Assets
Bond Reserve
Bond Fees, Net
Deposits
Goodwill
Total Other Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accrued Payroll and Other Assets
Current Portion of Bond Payable
Unearned Revenues
Due or Accrued to Related Party
Total Current Liabilities

Long Term Liabilities
Bond Payable, Net of Current Portion

Total Liabilities

Net Assets
Unrestricted (Deficit)
Temporarily Restricted

Total Net Assets (deficit)

Total Net Assets and Net Assets

Statement Of Financial Postion
June 30, 2011

Merged
CEDC Edkey Elimination Corporation
Assets
999,129 1,253,551 2,252,680
299,106 146,965 446,071
576,262 (509,884) 66,378
993,268 41,443 (960,223) 74,488
1,278,999 695,370 1,974,369
4,146,764 2,137,329 (1,470,107) 4,813,986
20,457,987 10,741,627 31,199,614
2,133,219 1,932,356 4,065,575
1,551,990 1,158,273 2,710,263
0 0
534,500 0 534,500
4,219,709 3,090,629 0 7,310,338
28,824,460 15,969,585 (1,470,107) 43,323,938
Liabilities and Net Assets

745,232 468,641 1,213,873
640,163 456,587 1,096,750
435,000 435,000
14,323 114,842 129,165
1,467,183 (1,470,107) (2,924)
1,834,718 2,507,253 (1,470,107) 2,871,864
26,335,000 13,450,000 39,785,000
28,169,718 15,957,253 (1,470,107) 42,656,864
262,852 (179,972) 82,880
391,890 192,304 584,194
654,742 12,332 0 667,074
28,824,460 15,969,585 (1,470,107) 43,323,938

UNAUDITED





Choice Education and Development and Edkey Inc Merged Corportaions
Statement Of Activites and Changes in net Assets

Revenues

State of Arizona Equalization
Classroom Site Fund

Instructional Improvement Fund
Federal and State Grant Revenues
Management Fee - Related Party
Administrative Services and Facilities
Food Services

Public Donations

Other Revenues

Total Revenues

Personnel Services

Salaries and Wages
Payroll Taxes and Benefits
Total Personnel Services

Operating Expenses

Advertising

Amortization

Depreciation

Equipment Repair and Rental
Food Service

Insurance

Interest

Miscellaneous

Occupancy

Professional Fees

Student Transportation
Supplies

Travel

Administrative Fee related Party
Other

Utilities and Telephone

Total Operating Expenses
Total Expenses

Increase in Net Assets
Net Assets (Deficit) at Beginning of Year

Net Assets (Deficit) at End of Year

June 30, 2011

Merged
CEDC Edkey Elimination Corporation
11,964,106 6,818,259 18,782,365
450,415 294,786 745,201
62,288 45,479 107,767
1,820,798 987,968 2,808,766
1,037,734 0 (1,037,734) (0)
933,436 641,190 (505,129) 1,069,497
487,822 398,974 886,796
730,585 730,585
196,263 261,113 457,376
16,952,862 10,178,354 (1,542,863) 25,588,353
7,532,890 4,095,040 11,627,930
2,436,050 1,129,045 3,565,095
9,968,940 5,224,085 0 15,193,025
10,792 10,595 21,387
62,080 26,324 88,404
999,933 390,522 1,390,455
215,913 156,858 372,771
438,040 395,143 833,183
53,960 73,286 127,246
1,712,263 0 1,712,263
72,126 4,865 76,991
1,310 989,659 990,969
559,264 482,449 1,041,713
996,507 195,413 1,191,920
453,546 327,126 780,672
66,763 41,451 108,214
1,542,863 (1,542,863) 0
61,994 61,994
509,958 281,127 791,085
6,152,455 4,979,675 (1,542,863) 9,589,266
16,121,395 10,203,760 (1,542,863) 24,782,291
831,467 (25,406) 0 806,061
(173,725) 37,738 (135,987)
657,742 12,332 0 670,074

UNAUDITED





Choice Education and Development Corporation and Edkey Inc.
Merged Statement of Net Assets
December 31, 2011

Choice
Hdueationsang Edkey, Inc. Eliminations Merged
Development Company
Corporation
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and Equivalents 999,115 108,606 1,107,721
Accounts Receivable 879,640 983,635 -601,953 1,261,322
Current Bond Reserves 1,278,999 694,973 1,973,972
Total Current Assets 3,157,754 1,787,214 -601,953 4,343,015
Property Plant & Equipment
Property and Equipment 20,333,828 12,505,542 32,839,370
Total Property Plant & Equip 20,333,828 12,505,542 0 32,839,370
Other Assets
Prepaid Expenses 993,268 65,330 -975,452 83,145
Bond Fees, Net 1,676,150 1,127,985 2,804,135
Bond Reserves 2,133,219 1,184,597 3,317,816
Goodwill 534,500 534,500
Total Other Assets 5,337,136 2,377,912 -975,452 6,739,596
Total Assets 28,828,718 16,670,667 -1,577,405 43,921,980
Liabilities
Current Liablities
Accounts Payable 564,000 594,020 -487,187 670,834
Payroll Liabilities 640,168 466,174 1,106,343
Other Accrued Expenses 321,396 1,181,096 -1,090,218 412,274
Note Payable 100,000 100,000
Current Portion Bonds Payable 435,000 435,000
Total Current Liablities 1,960,565 2,341,291 -1,577,405 2,289,451
Long Term
Mortgage Payable - CFA Phoenix 834,750 834,750
Bonds Payable, Less Current Portion 26,335,000 13,450,000 39,785,000
Total Long Term 26,335,000 14,284,750 0 40,619,750
Total Liabilities 28,295,565 16,626,041 0 40,619,750
Net Assets
Unrestricted 676,112 50,755 726,868
Restricted -142,959 -6,129 -149,089
Total 533,153 44,626 0 577,779
Total Liablities and Net Assets 28,828,718 16,670,667 0 41,197,529

Unaudited Balance Sheet





Choice Education and Development Corporation and Edkey, Inc.
Merged Statement of Changes in Net Assets
Six Months Ended December 31, 2011

Unaudit Income Statements.

Choice
Fif::;:::;:::l Edkey, Inc. Eliminations Merged Company
Corporation
Revenue
State Equalization Funds 6,347,363 4,239,246 10,586,609
Classroom Site Funds 213,639 153,936 367,575
Instructional Improvement 2,974 2,974
Lunch 237,055 284,652 521,707
Extraciricular activity donations 9,625 38,675 48,300
Grants 611,783 267,073 878,855
Donations 23,999 265,701 289,700
Revenue from Other Sources 890,070 318,140 -775,566 432,644
Total Revenue 8,333,534 5,570,397 -775,566 13,128,365
Expenses
Employee Compensation 3,949,411 2,164,658 6,114,068
Employee Benefits and Taxes 1,066,411 593,685 1,660,096
Purchased Professional Services 311,645 904,056 -775,566 440,135
Purchased Property Services 179,241 430,621 609,862
Other Purchased Services 325,953 116,005 441,959
Supplies 715,807 614,376 1,330,183
Property Expenses 92,356 36,845 129,202
Depreciation and Amortization 477,282 229,476 706,758
Interest Expense 860,035 477,344 1,337,379
Othr Misc Expenses 35,718 18,081 53,799
Total Expenses 8,013,859 5,585,148 -775,566 12,823,441
NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 319,675 -14,751 0 304,924
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KLECKA, WILKINS & KLFCKA

* CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS *

Danijel E. Klecka, CPA 635 East Maryland Avenue
Harry E Wilkins III, CPA Phoenix, Arizona 85012
Michael J. Klecka, CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Choice Education and Development Corporation
Mesa, Arizona

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of Choice Education and Development Corporation (an
Arizona non-profit corporation) (the School) as of June 30, 2011, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for
the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the School’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Choice Education and Development Corporation as of June 30, 2011, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows
for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 27, 2012, on our
consideration of Choice Education and Development Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be
considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements taken as a whole. The schedule
of functional expenses on page 11 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic
financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards on pages 13-15 is presented for purposes of additional
analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility
of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a

whole.
o ety P -

Phoenix, Arizona ( )

email: kwk@kwkepa.com

www.kwkcpa.com





Choice Education and Development Corporation
Statement of Financial Position

June 30, 2011
ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 999,129
Grants and Funds Receivable, Net of $0 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 299,106
Accounts Receivable, Net of $0 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 576,262
Prepaid Expenses 993,268
Bond Reserves 1,278,999
Total Current Assets 4,146,764
Property and Equipment, Net 20,457,987

Other Assets

Bond Reserves 2,133,219
Bond Fees, Net of Amortization 1,551,990
Goodwill 534,500
Total Other Assets 4,219,709
TOTAL ASSETS $ 28,824,460

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable $ 745,232
Accrued Payroll and Other Expenses 640,163
Current Portion of Bond Payable 435,000
Unearned Revenue 14,323

Total Current Liabilities 1,834,718

Long-Term Liabilities

Bond Payable, Net of Current Portion 26,335,000
Total Liabilities 28,169,718
Net Assets
Unrestricted 262,852
Temporarily Restricted 391,890
Total Net Assets 654,742
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 28,824,460

See Accompanying Notes and Auditor's Report
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Choice Education and Development Corporation

Revenues
State Equalization Funds
Classroom Site Fund
Instructional Improvement Fund
Federal Grants
State Grant Revenues
Management Fees
Administrative and Facilities
Interest Income
Food Service
Other Income
Net Assets Released From Restrictions

Total Revenues
Expenses
Program Expenses
General and Administrative
Total Expenses
Change in Net Assets

Net Assets (Deficit) at Beginning of Year

Net Assets at End of Year

Statement of Activities

Year Ended June 30, 2011
Temporarily
Unrestricted Restricted Total

Net Assets Net Assets Net Assets
$ 11,964,106 § z $ 11,964,106
- 450,415 450,415
62,288 - 62,288
1,807,385 - 1,807,385
13,413 - 13,413
1,037,734 - 1,037,734
933,436 - 933,436
938 - 938
487,822 - 487,822
195,325 - 195,325

592,637 (592,637) -
17,095,084 (142,222) 16,952,862
11,334,769 - 11,334,769
41789,626 E! 4,789,626
16,124,395 - 16,124,395
970,689 (142,222) 828,467

(707,837) 534,112 (173,725)

$ 262,852 §$ 391,890 § 654,742

See Accompanying Notes and Auditor's Report
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Choice Education and Development Corporation
Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Cash Flows Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:

Increase in Net Assets $ 828,467
Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to Net Cash from Operating Activities:
Depreciation 999,933
Amortization 62,080
Loss on Disposal of Property and Equipment 154
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
Grants and Funds Receivable (133,710)
Accounts Receivable (471,306)
Bond Assets (123,676)
Prepaid Expenses 9,733
Accounts Payable 168,586
Other Accrued Expenses (52,377)
Unearned Revenues (28,344)
Accrued Payroll and Related (162,863)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 1,096,677

Cash Flows Provided (Used) by Investing Activities:

Disposal of Property and Equipment 1,442
Purchase of Property and Equipment (517,079)
Net Cash Used by Investing Activities (515,637)

Cash Flows Used by Financing Activities:

Payments on Bond Payable (410,000)
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 171,040
Cash and Cash Equivalents at June 30, 2010 828,089
Cash and Cash Equivalents at June 30, 2011 $ 999,129

Supplemental Information:
Cash Paid for Interest $ 1,712,263

Cash Paid for Income Taxes $ -

See Accompanying Notes and Auditor's Report
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Choice Education and Development Corporation
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2011

NOTE 1- NATURE OF OPERATIONS:

Choice Education and Development Corporation (the
School) is an Arizona non-profit corporation organized in
Delaware in June 2002. In July 2011 the corporation
changed its domicile to Arizona. The Company maintains
administrative offices in Mesa, Arizona, and holds five
contractual agreements (charters) which permit it to operate
under the provisions of its agreements with the Arizona
State Board for Charter Schools (ASBCS). The terms of
the charters are subject to renewal from 2013 through 2015
and may be renmewed for successive twenty year time
periods if the ASBCS deems that the Company is in
compliance with its charter and statutory provisions. The
School operates several charter schools in Arizona,
including Phoenix, Show Low, and its flagship campus in
Mesa, and serves approximately 1,800 students.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements use the accrual method of
accounting and the presentation follows the
recommendations for the Financial Accounting Standards
Board Accounting Standards Codification (FASB ASC) in
FASB ASC 958. Under FASB ASC 958, the School is
required to report information regarding its financial
position and activities according to three classes of net
assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net
assets, and permanently restricted net assets.

The School has evaluated subsequent events through
February 27, 2012, which is prior to the date that the
financial statements were available to be issued.

Revenue Recognition
The School recognizes revenue as earned calculated using a

“base support level” determined by the Arizona
Department of Education. The “base support level” is a
calculation using student counts as a basis for allocating
equalization funds to the Schoo! such that the School is
funded at an amount approximating the amount which
public schools in the same district receive on a per pupil
basis. State equalization funds are allocated on a fiscal
year that ends June 30 of each year and are paid to the
School on a periodic basis throughout the school year.

Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the School

considers all unrestricted highly liquid investments with an
initial maturity of three months or less to be cash
equivalents.

Accounts, Grants and Funds Receivable

The School recognizes income from services performed for
other schools and from funds provided by the state of
Arizona in connection with its charter agreements. Due to
the concentrated nature of the School’s income sources and
historical collectibility trends, the School does not provide
an allowance for accounts, grants or funds receivable.

Property and Equipment
Land, buildings and improvements with a cost of $3,000 or

more and furniture and equipment with both a cost of $300
or more and an estimated life of one year or more are
capitalized. Assets are stated at cost or fair market value at
date of gift, if contributed. Depreciation of furniture and
equipment is provided on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the respective assets, ranging from
three to five years. Depreciation of buildings and
improvements is provided on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful life of the respective assets. Maintenance
and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. The costs
of additions and improvements are capitalized and
depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the assets.
The costs and accumulated depreciation of assets sold or
retired are removed from the accounts and any gain or loss
is recognized in the year of disposal.

Contributions

The School follows FASB ASC 958 for contributions.
Contributions received are recorded as unrestricted,
temporarily restricted or permanently restricted support
depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor
restrictions. All donor restricted support is reported as an
increase in temporarily or permanently restricted net assets
depending on the nature of the restriction. When a donor
restriction expires; that is, when a stipulated time restriction
ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily
restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net
assets and reported in the statement of activity as net assets
released from restriction. Donor restricted contributions
whose restrictions are met in the same reporting period are
reported as unrestricted support.

Donated Services
A substantial number of volunteers (primarily parents of
attending students) have donated many hours of labor to the
schools; however, these donated services are not reflected
in the financial statements since the services do not require
specialized skills.

Advertising
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising

expense for the year ended June 30, 2011 was $10,792.

See Auditor’s Report
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Choice Education and Development Corporation
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2011

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued):

Use of Estimates )

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
generally ~accepted accounting  principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Functional Expenses

Expenses are charged directly to program or general and
administrative categories based on direct expenditures
incurred.  All expenditures not directly chargeable are
allocated based on personnel activity.

Income Taxes

The School qualifies as a tax-exempt organization under
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code whose
revenue is derived primarily from state equalization funds
for charter schools, grants and contributions. Consequently,
the School is generally exempt from federal income tax
under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The
School is not a private foundation. The School has adopted
FASB ASC Topic 740-10, Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes, which prescribes a recognition threshold and
measurement attribute for financial statement recognition
and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be
taken in a tax return. For the year ended June 30, 2011, the
School had no material uncertain tax positions to be
accounted for in the financial statements under the rules,
and had no interest or penalties assessed by income taxing
authorities. Management believes that the School is no
longer subject to income tax examinations for years prior to
the year ended June 30, 2008.

Net Assets

Net assets at June 30, 2011 consisted entirely of
unrestricted and temporarily restricted net assets.
Temporarily restricted net assets consist of Arizona
classroom site funds with purpose restrictions described in
ARS. §15-977.

NOTE 3 — RESTRICTED CASH:

The School receives monies from the State of Arizona
Classroom Site Fund (CSF) that are restricted solely for
statutorily approved uses at school sites. At June 30, 2011,
the School had on hand restricted CSF cash of $352,998;
$41,622 was available for teacher base salary increases

and employment related expenses; $307,157 was available
for teacher compensation increases based on performance
and employment related expenses; and $4,219 was
available for maintenance and operations, including class
size reduction, teacher compensation increases, AIMS
intervention programs, teacher development, dropout
prevention programs, and teacher liability insurance
premiums. The School had $38,892 of CSF monies
receivable at June 30, 2011.

NOTE 4 — PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:
Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2011

totaled $999,933. Property and equipment consist of the
following at June 30, 2011:

Land $ 4,465,000
Construction in Progress 2,252,321
Buildings and Improvements 16,081,749
Furniture and Equipment 2,531,856
Total Property and Equipment 25,330,926
(Less) Accumulated Depreciation (4,872.939)

$ 20,457,987

e e
—_—

Property and Equipment, Net

NOTE 5 - GOODWILL:

The School accounts for business combinations using the
purchase method of accounting and accordingly, the assets
and liabilities of the acquired entities are recorded at their
estimated fair values at the date of acquisition. Goodwill
represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair
value of net assets, including the amount assigned to
identifiable intangible assets. The School does not amortize
the goodwill balance. The primary drivers that generate
goodwill are the value of synergies between the acquired
entities and the School and the acquired assembled
workforce, neither of which qualifies as an identifiable
intangible asset. Identifiable intangible assets with finite
lives are amortized over their useful lives. Goodwill is
tested annually for impairment, or sooner when
circumstances indicate an impairment may exist. There
was no change in goodwill during the year ended June 30,
2011.

See Auditor’s Report





Choice Education and Development Corporation
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2011

NOTE 6 — BOND RESERVES:
Bond assets consist of the following accounts:

Bond Fund

The bond fund accumulates monthly principal and interest
payments made by the School until principal is returned to
bondholders once annually and interest is distributed to
bondholders twice annually.

Project Fund
The project fund is held by the trustee until projects are

completed in accordance with certain provisions in the
bond agreement. The fund is created to make payments on
capital projects such as land purchases and new campus
facilities.

Revenue Fund

The revenue fund receives state equalization payments on
behalf of the School. The majority of each payment is then
disbursed to the School once the required amount is
transferred to the bond fund, where the trustee makes semi-
annual interest payments and annual sinking fund payments
on bond obligations.

Debt Service Reserve Fund

The debt service reserve fund was set up by the bond
trustee (US Bancorp, also known as “US Bank™) to make
payments on the bond when monies in the Bond Fund are
insufficient to make the required semi-annual payments.
Such payments are made by the trustee in order to continue
to service the bond. The fund is not immediately available
to the School. The opening balance was placed in the fund
by the trustee, and any remaining balance will be repaid
when the bond matures in June 2036.

Operating Reserve Fund

The operating reserve fund is funded to pay operating
expenses at the request of the School when state payments
are unavailable or when expenses exceed budgeted
expenses. All amounts drawn from the operating reserve
fund are segregated from monthly state payments by the
trustee and returned to the fund ratably over a twelve month
period. If the fund balance at any time is less than the
greater of the original operating reserve requirement of
$300,000 or 15% of the School’s annual budgeted
expenses, the School is restricted from various transfers of
its property and equipment. If necessary, portions of the
fund may be transferred to the bond fund for payment of
principal, premium, and interest.

The following schedule summarizes total bond assets at
June 30, 2011;

Current Bond Assets:

Bond Fund $ 354,391
Tax and Insurance Fund 163,062
Operating Reserve Fund 753,440
Revenue Fund 8,106

1,278,999

Long-Term Bond Assets:

Debt Service Reserve Fund 2,133,219
Total Bond Reserve Assets $ 3,412,218

NOTE 7—- BOND PAYABLE:

On June 13, 2006, the School finalized a loan agreement,
dated June 1, 2006, with the Industrial Development
Authority of Pima County (“Pima IDA”). Concurrent with
the loan agreement, Pima IDA issued “Series 2006™
revenue bonds to the public. The bonds mature June I,
2036. US Bank maintains several cash and short-term
investment accounts as the bond trustee. Under the terms of
the loan agreement, the School is required to pledge
substantially all its revenues toward payment of its debt
obligations through the various accounts held in trust.

Remaining monies are then transferred monthly to
operating accounts once certain debt provisions are met.
The interest rate on the bond loan is 6% annually for the
first ten years, 6.25% for the second ten years, and 6.375%
for the final ten years. Principal payments are disbursed
from the bond fund each June, and interest payments are
disbursed each June and December until maturity. The loan
is secured by the assets and continuing revenues of the
School. In addition to making consistent payments toward
interest and principal due, the School has agreed to comply
with all charter school laws, maintain appropriate title and
liability insurance, and submit to an annual financial
statement audit. If the School were to default materially on
its loan obligations, the loan would be immediately due and
payable.

See Auditor’s Report
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Choice Education and Development Corporation
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2011

NOTE 7 - BOND PAYABLE (Continued):

Principal payments on the bond are due annually to the
bond fund as follows:

Year Ending June 30:

2012 $ 435,000
2013 460,000
2014 490,000
2015 520,000
2016 550,000
Thereafter 24,315,000

Total Bond Principal Payments

The School is required to maintain a minimum debt service
coverage ratio of 1.15. The "Debt Service Coverage Ratio"
is calculated as follows:

Bond Debt, June 30, 2011 $ 26,770,000
Bond Debt Service
Series 2006, Year Ended June 30, 2011 $ 2,122,263
Pledged Revenues:
State Equalization 11,964,106
Other 5,010,518
Total 16,974,624
Expenses:
Expenses, Less Debt Service 14,002,132
Bond Debt Service (Interest) 2,122,263
Total 16,124,395
Increase in Net Assets 850,229
Adjustment: Interest on Debt 1,712,263
Adjustment: Amortization 62,080
Adjustment: Depreciation 999,933
Operating Income 3,624,505
Divide by Total Debt Service 2,122,263
Debt Service Coverage Ratio 1.71

S 26,770,000

NOTE 8 — BOND FEES:

The School incurred legal and administrative fees upon
issuance of the bond. These fees are recorded as School
assets and amortized over a period of thirty years using the
straight-line method in order to match the expenses to the
period in which the benefit occurs. The School expects
amortization expense of $62,080 for each fiscal year until
fulfillment of the bond obligation in 2036. During the year
ended June 30, 2011, the School recognized issuance fees
of $62,080.

NOTE 9— CONCENTRATIONS OF RISK:

Financial instruments that potentially expose the School to
concentrations of credit and market risk consist primarily of
cash in checking accounts. At June 30, 2011, the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation insured all cash. The School
has not experienced any losses on its cash.

Of the School’s revenue for the year ended June 30, 2011,
approximately 70%, was derived from state equalization
funds for charter schools. Coliection from the state is
reasonably assured, provided that the School complies with
contract terms stipulated in its contracts with the Arizona
State Board for Charter Schools. Changes in state funding
levels for charter schools could have a significant impact
on the School’s ability to operate.

NOTE 10— RETIREMENT PLAN:

Plan Description
The School has chosen to participate in the Arizona State

Retirement System (ASRS), a cost-sharing, multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan. All School
employees are enrolled automatically in the pian. Benefits
are determined actuarially as required by state statute and
are approved by the ASRS board of trustees. ASRS benefits
provide retirement and long-term disability benefits.

Funding Policy
The ASRS board of trustees establishes and may amend

active plan members’ and the School’s contribution rate.
Active plan members and the School were each required by
participation in the plan to contribute at the approved rate
of 9.85 percent (9.6 percent retirement and .25 percent
long-term disability for the year ended June 30, 2011) of
the members’ annual covered payroll. The School’s
contribution to the System for the year ended June 30, 2011
was $751,336, which was equal to the required contribution
for the year.

See Auditor’s Report





Choice Education and Development Corporation
Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2011

NOTE 11 - ACCOUNTING AND ADMINISTRATIVE
AGREEMENTS:

Management Fee Revenues — Related Party

During the year ended June 30, 2011, the School
recognized revenues of $985,951 for services rendered to
EdKey, Inc. and its subsidiary (collectively, “EdKey”)
under the terms of management and licensing agreements.
The School contracts for services regularly on behalf of
EdKey based on the terms of the agreements. Each of the
board members of the School is a board member of EdKey.
During the year ended June 30, 2011, the School received
$593,176 from EdKey. At June 30, 2011, EdKey owed the
School $1,470,107 for services performed, which is
included on the statement of financial position in prepaid
expenses and accounts receivable.

Administrative and Facilities Revenues

The School contracts with Sequoia Choice Schools LLLP
(“Sequoia Choice”) on an informal basis for miscellaneous
services and School facilities rental at various locations
statewide. Sequoia Choice reimburses the School regularly
for services rendered. During the year ended June 30,
2011, the School recognized facilities rental revenue and
administrative revenue of $321,514 and $663,309,
respectively, for services provided to Sequoia Choice. The
School received payments of $985,272 from Sequoia
Choice during the year. Sequoia Choice owed the School
$56,409 for expenses accrued or payable to the School at
June 30, 2011.

Curriculum Expenses
Sequoia Choice provides curriculum materials and services

to the School. During the year, the School recognized
expenses of $72,239 from Sequoia Choice for curriculum
services. At June 30, 2011, the School owed Sequoia
Choice $202,341.

See Auditor’s Report
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Choice Education and Development Corporation
Supplementary Information

Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended June 30, 2011
Program General and
Expenses Administrative Total
Personnel Services

Salaries $ 5,171,531 $ 2,361,359 § 7,532,890
Payroll Taxes and Benefits 1,672,414 763,636 2,436,050

Total Personnel Services 6,843,945 3,124,995 9,968,940

Operating Expenses

Advertising - 10,792 10,792
Amortization 42,620 19,460 62,080
Depreciation 686,481 313,452 999,933
Equipment Rental and Repair 148,230 67,683 215,913
Food Service 438,040 - 438,040
Insurance 37,045 16,915 53,960
Interest 1,175,514 536,749 1,712,263
Miscellaneous 18,570 53,556 72,126
Occupancy 899 411 1,310
Professional Fees 317,766 241,498 559,264
Student Transportation 996,507 - 996,507
Supplies 250,859 202,687 453,546
Travel 28,193 41,570 69,763
Utilities and Telephone 350,100 159,858 509,958

Total Operating Expenses 4,490,824 1,664,631 6,155,455

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES $ 11334769 $ 4,789,626 $ 16,124,395

See Auditor's Report
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KLECKA, WILKINS & KLECKA

» CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS *

Daniel E. Klecka, CPA 635 East Maryland Avenue
Harry E Wilkins III, CPA Phoenix, Arizona 85012
Michael J. Klecka, CPA

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors
Choice Education and Development Corporation
Mesa, Arizona

We have audited the financial statements of Choice Education and Development Corporation (an Arizona nonprofit
corporation) (the School) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, and have issued our report dated February 27, 2012.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The School is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting. In planning
and performing our audit, we considered the School’s internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our
audit procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees,
in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely
basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the School’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected
and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might be
deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School’s financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

This report is intended for the information and use of management, others within the School, federal and state awarding
agencies, pass-through entities and the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools and is not intended to be and should not be
used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Phone (602) 266-4318 © FAX (602) 279-4149

email: kwk@kwkepa.com

Phoenix, Arizona
February 27,2012
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Choice Education and Development Corporation
Supplementary Information
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended June 30, 2011
Federal
CFDA  Federal Award Number Federal
Federal Grantor / Program Title / Recipient School Number or State Project Number Expenditures

U.S. Department of Education
Passed Through from Arizona Department of Education:

ARRA Education Jobs Fund
Sequoia Charter School 84.410 11FAAEJB-160202-02A $ 199,057
Sequoia Village Charter School 84.410 11FAAEJB-160300-03A 41,412
Sequoia School for the Deaf and Hard of Hearing 84.410 11FAAEJB-160454-02A 64,593
Leamning Crossroads Basic Academy 84.410 11FAAEJB-160298-03A 69,354
Arizona Conservatory for Arts and Academics 84.410 11FAAEJB-160384-02A 104,487
478,903
ARRA Education Stabilization Fund
Sequoia Charter School 84.394 11FAASFF-160202-01A 51,595
Sequoia Village Charter School 84.394 11FAASFF-160300-01A 12,026
Sequoia School for the Deaf and Hard of Hearing 84.394 11FAASFF-160454-01A 14,395
Learning Crossroads Basic Academy 84.394 1 IFAASFF-160298-01A 7,449
Arizona Conservatory for Arts and Academics 84.394 11FAASFF-160384-01A 22,047
107,512
Title I1, Part A - Improving Teacher Quality
Learning Crossroads Basic Academy 84.367A 11FAATII-160298-04A 3,847
Sequoia Charter School 84.367A 11FAATII-160202-06 A 35,806
Sequoia Village Charter School 84.367A 11FAATII-160300-04A 1,798
Arizona Conservatory for Arts and Academics 84.367A 11FAATII-160384-04A 298
41,749
Title 11l Consortium
Sequoia Charter School 84.365A 11FACENG-160202-04A 12,342
21st Century Community Learning Centers
Sequoia Charter School 84.287C 11FSECY4-160202-03A 151,282
Sequoia Village Charter School 84.287C 11FSECY3-160300-02A 85,538
236,820
Title I, Part A Cluster:
Title I, Part A - Grants to Local Educational Agencies (LEAs)
Sequoia Charter School 84.010A 11FAATTI-160202-06A 282,607
Arizona Conservatory for Arts and Academics 84.010A 11FAATTI-160384-04A 34,217
Learning Crossroads Basic Academy 84.010A 11FAATTI-160298-04A 46,271
Sequoia Village Charter School 84.010A 11FAATTI-160300-04A 80,738
443,833
ARRA Title I
Sequoia Charter School 84.389A 11FAAART-160202-05A 61,662
Sequoia Village Charter School 84.389A 11FAAART-160300-06A 19,066
Learning Crossroads Basic Academy 84.389A 11FAAART-160298-06A 18,930
Arizona Conservatory for Arts and Academics 84.389A 11FAAART-160384-09A -
99,658
Total Title I, Part A Cluster: 543,491

See Accompanying Notes and Auditor's Report
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Choice Education and Development Corporation

Supplementary Information

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Total from U.S. Department of Education:

See Accompanying Notes and Auditor's Report
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Year Ended June 30, 2011
Federal
CFDA Federal Award Number Federal
Federal Grantor / Program Title / Recipient School Number or State Project Number Expenditures
Special Education Cluster (IDEA):
IDEA Basic Entitlement, Part B - Special Education Grants
Sequbia Charter School 84.027A 11FESCBG-160202-11A 125,948
Sequoia Village Charter School 84.027A 11FESCBG-160300-09A 21,865
Learning Crossroads Basic Academy 84.027A 11FESCBG-160298-10A 28,288
Sequoia School for the Deaf and Hard of Hearing 84.027A 11FESCBG-160454-03A 11,235
Arizona Conservatory for Arts and Academics 84.027A 11FESCBG-160384-08A 26,600
213,936
IDEA Monitoring System Grant
Arizona Conservatory for Arts and Academics 84.027 11FESMSG-160384-03A 276
Learning Crossroads Basic Academy 84.027 11FESMSG-160298-02A 500
776
ARRA IDEA
Sequoia Charter School 84.391 11FESAIG-160202-12A 100,485
Sequoia Village Charter School 84.391 11FESAIG-160300-10A 26,051
Sequoia School for the Deaf and Hard of Hearing 84.391 11FESAIG-160454-04A 11,421
Learning Crossroads Basic Academy 84.391 11FESAIG-160298-11A 23,013
Arizona Conservatory for Arts and Academics 84.391 11FESAIG-160384-10A 26,040
187,010
Total Special Education Cluster (IDEA): 401,722
Education Technology State Grants Cluster:
Title II, Part D - Enhancing Education thru Technology
Sequoia Village Charter School 84.318X 11FETETF-160300-07A 366
Sequoia Charter School 84.318X 11FETETF-160202-09A 1,455
Learning Crossroads Basic Academy 84.318X 11FETETF-160298-08A 596
Arizona Conservatory for Arts and Academics 84.318X 11FETETF-160384-07A 241
2,658
ARRA Enhancing Education thru Technology Title II-D
Sequoia Charter School 84.386 11FETEET-160202-10A 1,480
Sequoia Village Charter School 84.386 11FETEET-160300-08A 134
Learning Crossroads Basic Academy 84.386 11FETEET-160298-09A 386
Arizona Conservatory for Arts and Academics 84.386 11FETEET-160384-06A 261
2,261
Total Education Technology State Grants Cluster: 4,919
1,827,458






Choice Education and Development Corporation
Supplementary Information
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Federal
CFDA Federal Award Number Federal
Federal Grantor / Program Title / Recipient School Number or State Project Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Agriculture
Passed Through from Arizona Department of Education:
Child Nutrition Cluster:
School Breakfast Program
Sequoia School for the Deaf and Hard of Hearing 10.553 N/A 3,514
Sequoia Charter School 10.553 N/A 152,638
Learning Crossroads Basic Academy 10.553 N/A 17,134
173,286
National School Lunch Program

Sequoia Charter School 10.555 N/A 111,067
Sequoia Village Charter School! 10.555 N/A 61,467
Sequoia School for the Deaf and Hard of Hearing 10.555 N/A 14,803
Learning Crossroads Basic Academy 10.555 N/A 68,086
Arizona Conservatory for Arts and Academics 10.555 N/A 22,995
278,418
Total Child Nutrition Cluster: 451,704
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 2,279,162

See Accompanying Notes and Auditor's Report
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Choice Education and Development Corporation
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2011

NOTE 1 - REPORTING ENTITY:

Choice Education and Development Corporation (the
School) is an Arizona nonprofit corporation which operates
public charter schools in Arizona.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

Basis of Presentation

The expenditures in the accompanying schedule of
expenditures of federal awards are reported under the
accrual basis of accounting. Purchases of fixed assets are
recorded as expenditures in the year the expenditure is
accrued, rather than in the year depreciation expense is
taken.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

The awards schedule presents only the expenditures
incurred by the School that are reimbursable under federal
programs of federal agencies providing financial assistance.
Only the portion of program expenditures reimbursable with
such federal funds is reported in the schedule. Program
expenditures in excess of the maximum federal
reimbursement authorized or the portion of the program
expenditures that were funded with state, Jocal or other non-
federal funds are excluded from the schedule.

The schedule was prepared from only the accounts of the
grant programs and therefore does not represent the
financial position or results of operations of the School.
The information in this schedule is presented in accordance
with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may
differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation
of, the financial statements.

See Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
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KLECKA, WILKINS & KLECKA

» CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS *

Daniel E. Klecka, CPA 635 East Maryland Avenue
Harry E Wilkins 111, CPA Phoenix, Arizona 85012
Michael J. Klecka, CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the Board of Directors
Choice Education and Development Corporation
Mesa, Arizona

Compliance
We have audited the compliance of Choice Education and Development Corporation with the types of compliance

requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on
each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2011. Choice Education and Development Corporation’s
major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its
major federal programs is the responsibility of Choice Education and Development Corporation’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on Choice Education and Development Corporation’s compliance based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a
direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
about Choice Education and Development Corporation’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of Choice Education and Development Corporation’s compliance
with those requirements.

In our opinion, Choice Education and Development Corporation complied, in all material respects, with the compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the
year ended June 30, 2011.

Internal Control over Compliance

Management of Choice Education and Development Corporation is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered Choice Education and Development Corporation’s internal
control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program to
determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on the
internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
Choice Education and Development Corporation’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and
correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness
in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance,
such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Phone (602) 266-4318 ® FAX (602) 279-4149
email: kwk@kwkcpa.com

www.kwkcpa.com





Choice Education and Development Corporation

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be deficiencies,
significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

This report is intended for the information of management, others within the School, federal and state awarding agencies,
pass-through entities and the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

I ;z\,/«z\

Phoenix, Arizona { -~
February 27, 2012






Choice Education and Development Corporation
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2011

A. SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS:

1.

The auditor’s report dated February 27, 2012 expresses an unqualified opinion on the financial statements of
Choice Education and Development Corporation.

No significant deficiencies were identified during the audit of the financial statements.

No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Choice Education and Development
Corporation were disclosed during the audit of the financial statements.

No significant deficiencies were identified during the audit of the major federal award programs.

The Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each Major Program and on Internal Control over
Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133 expresses an unqualified opinion with respect to
compliance with the requirements of the major program tested.

No audit findings were required to be reported relative to the major federal awards programs.

Four programs were major programs: ARRA Education Jobs Fund (84.410); Title I, Part A Cluster (84.010 and
84.389); Special Education (IDEA) Cluster (84.027 and 84.391); and Child Nutrition Program Cluster (10.553 and
10.555).

The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs was $300,000.

Choice Education and Development Corporation did not qualify as a low-risk auditee.

B. FINDINGS REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED UNDER GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS:

1.

There were no instances of noncompliance required to be reported under generally accepted government auditing
standards.

C. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS:

1.

There were no findings or questioned costs relating to the audit of the federal award programs.
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Choice Education and Development Corporation
Corrective Action Plan
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Not applicable.
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Choice Education and Development Corporation
Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings
Year Ended June 30, 2011

NOTE 2010-F1: RECORDS MAINTENANCE

Condition

Recommendation

Corrective Action:

Status

The School did not keep separate records in its accounting ledger for receipts or
expenditures associated with the majority of its state fiscal stabilization funds disbursed
under CFDA 84.394 - ARRA Education Stabilization Fund — Education State Grants,
Recovery Act.

The School should record receipts and expenditures of its state fiscal stabilization funds
in the same manner that it records transactions for its other federal funds, i.e., by
recording transactions by separate fund, object and site levels as appropriate.

The School proposed to establish a separate fund to track and record revenues and
expenditures of state fiscal stabilization funds under CFDA No. 84.394.

During the year ended June 30, 2011, the School separated and recorded receipts of state
fiscal stabilization funds by using unique function and object codes. However,
expenditures of state fiscal stabilization funds were not separated from general funds in
the same manner that transactions for other federal funds are recorded, i.e., by recording
transactions by separate fund, object and site levels as appropriate.

NOTE 2010-F2: RECORDS MAINTENANCE (2)

Condition

Recommendation

Corrective Action:

Status

The School did not maintain its accounting system in a manner sufficient to prepare an
accurate schedule of expenditures of federal awards.

The School should record receipts and expenditures of its state fiscal stabilization funds
in the same manner that it records transactions for its other federal funds, i.e., by
recording transactions by separate fund, object and site levels as appropriate. The School
should then use those records to prepare the schedule of expenditures of federal awards
and reconcile the schedule with its accounting records.

The School proposed to establish a separate fund to track and record revenues and
expenditures of state fiscal stabilization funds under CFDA No. 84.394 and institute
monthly and annual controls to ensure that federal award expenditures are recorded
properly and errors in financial reporting will be corrected on at least a monthly basis.

During the year ended June 30, 2011, the School separated and recorded receipts of state
fiscal stabilization funds. However, expenditures of state fiscal stabilization funds were
not separated from general funds in the same manner that transactions for other federal
funds are recorded. As a result, the School again prepared the state fiscal stabilization
portion of its schedule of expenditures of federal awards by estimating expenditures
based on awards received.
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* CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS *

635 East Maryland Avenue
Phoenix, Arizona 85012

Daniel E. Klecka, CPA
Harry E Wilkins III, CPA
Michael J. Klecka, CPA

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES

To the Board of Directors
Choice Education and Development Corporation
Mesa, Arizona

We have performed the procedures included in five Legal Compliance Questionnaires of the Arizona State Board for
Charter Schools and enumerated below, which were agreed to by Choice Education and Development Corporation and the
Arizona State Board for Charter Schools (ASBCS), solely to assist you and the ASBCS in evaluating management’s
assertion about Choice Education and Development Corporation’s compliance with the requirements of applicable state
law, regulations of the ASBCS, and provisions of your charter contract as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011 and for
testing dates specified by us. Choice Education and Development Corporation’s management is responsible for compliance
with all laws, regulations issued by ASBCS, and provisions of its charter contract. This agreed-upon procedures
engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the responsibility of those parties specified in this report.
Consequently, we make no representation regarding the sufficiency of the procedures described below either for the
purpose for which this report has been requested or for any other purpose.

Our procedures and findings are as follows:

1. We obtained sufficient evidence necessary to complete the Legal Compliance Questionnaires as required by the
ASBCS.

2. We completed the Legal Compliance Questionnaires as required by the ASBCS.

3. We noted on the Legal Compliance Questionnaires all noncompliance requiring a “No” answer, material or
otherwise, of which we became aware.

We were not engaged to, and did not, conduct an examination, the objective of which would be the expression of an
opinion on the accompanying compliance questionnaire. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. Had we
performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported to you.

This report is intended for the information and use of management, others within the School, federal and state awarding

agencies, pass-through entities and the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools and is not intended to be and should not be
used by anyone other than these specified parties.

okl cadon it

Phoenix, Arizona
February 27, 2012

Phone (602) 266-4318 ¢ FAX (602) 279-4149
email: kwk@kwkepa.com
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Arizona State Board for Charter Schools
Legal Compliance Questionnaire
Choice Education and Development Corporation
Arizona Conservatory for Arts and Academics

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011
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INSTRUCTIONS

NOTE: This questionnaire should only be used for schools that are exempt from the
Uniform System of Financial Records for Arizona Charter Schools (schools that
HAVE an exception). If a school is subject to procurement requirements pursuant to
A.R.S. §15-189.02 and 41-2535(A), this questionnaire should be used in conjunction
with the Procurement Compliance Questionnaire (see audit guidelines memo dated
6/13/2011) which is available on the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools’ website
http://asbcs.az.gov.

In order to determine whether a charter school that is exempt from the requirements of
the Uniform System of Financial Records for Arizona Charter Schools (USFRCS) is
complying with applicable legal requirements, the auditors must complete the following
Legal Compliance Questionnaire (Note: This questionnaire is not comprehensive of all
legal requirements for charter schools. As such, this document should not be the sole
reference to determine all laws and regulations that are applicable to charter schools).

The following prescribed minimum audit standards for completing the Legal
Compliance Questionnaire must be used in all audits. The State Board for Charter
Schools may reject audits not meeting these standards.

¢ Sufficient, appropriate evidence must be obtained annually for each question to
satisfactorily determine whether the school complies with the legal requirements,
and the evidence must be included in the audit documentation.

¢ Evidence may be obtained through test work, observation, examination, and client
assertion. However, client assertion alone is not adequate evidence to support “Yes”
answers to the questionnaire.

¢ Population size should be considered in determining the number of items to test,
and the items selected should be representative of the population.

¢ The number of items tested must be sufficient to determine whether a deficiency was
the result of an isolated incident or a recurring problem. Therefore, testing one
transaction, record, or item is not sufficient.

¢ The sample size should be expanded if the audit firm cannot clearly determine
whether the school complies with the legal requirements of the question.

¢ If sufficient evidence has been obtained and documented during the current audit,
that evidence may be referenced to answer questions.
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¢ All “No” and “N/A” answers must be adequately explained in the comments
column or in an attachment. Findings must be described in sufficient detail to enable
the State Board for Charter Schools to describe the finding in a letter. The
description should include the number of items tested and the number of exceptions
noted.

¢ A “Yes” answer indicates that the audit firm has determined that the school
complies with the legal requirements of the question and a “No” answer indicates
the school does not comply. However, the final determination of compliance on
each question, as well as overall compliance with legal requirements, is made by the
State Board for Charter Schools based on the evidence presented in the
questionnaire, audit reports, the audit documentation, and any other sources.

The resulting audit documentation supporting the audit firm’s answers to the Legal
Compliance Questionnaire must be made available on request for review by the State
Board for Charter Schools. To facilitate this review, the audit firm may wish to include
in the audit documentation a copy of the questionnaire containing references to audit
procedures performed for each question.
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Legal Compliance Questionnaire

Questions/Subject Area

Yes/No

Comments

Personnel

1. Did the school have valid fingerprint clearance cards (FCC) for
100% of the required personnel as of the testing date? A.R.S.
§15-183 (C)(5) and A.R.S. §15-512(H)

Yes

(QUESTIONS #2a THROUGH 2c ONLY APPLY TO NEW HIRES
REQUIRED PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §15-183(C)(5) TO HAVE
VALID FCCS AND DO NOT APPLY IF AN INDIVIDUAL'S FCC
HAS EXPIRED.)

2. For each individual referenced in #1 that did not have a valid
FCC, please provide the following information (provide
supplemental pages, if necessary) (See agency guidance
available on the Board's website prior to completing these
questions)A.R.S. §15-183(C)(5):

a.

Was an application for a FCC on file with the Department
of Public Safety (DPS) as of the testing date?

N/A

All required personnel had
FCCs. \

b.

Did DPS receive the application prior to the hire date?

N/A

All required personnel had
FCCs.

Prior to placement, did the school do all of the following?

i) Document the necessity for hiring/ placing the
individual prior to receiving a FCC?

N/A

All required personnel had
FCCs.

i) Obtain statewide criminal history information on the
individual?

N/A

All required personnel had
FCCs.

iif) Obtain references from the applicant’s current and
previous employers?

N/A

All required personnel had
FCCs.

Did the charter school maintain up-to-date fingerprints of
all governing board members as of the testing date?
Charter Contract!

Yes

Were all other personnel fingerprint checked as of the
testing date? A.R.S. §15-183 (C)(5) and A.R.S. §15-512

Yes

Did the charter school inform the parents and guardians of
pupils enrolled in the school of the availability of resume
information for all employees who provide instruction to
pupils? A.R.S. §15-183 (F)

Yes

! Specific contract cites could not be provided as term references vary per contract year.
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Yes/No

Comments

Required Filings

1. Isthe

school in good standing with the following regulatory

bodies:

a. Internal Revenue Service U.S.C. Title 26

1

For payroll taxes, income taxes (if applicable) and
applicable tax forms required to be filed during the
audited fiscal year?

Yes

The school did not have any payroll or income taxes
payable from a prior year(s) as of audited fiscal year
end (June 30%) is a true statement.

Yes

iii. If the response to 1.a.i, 1.a.ii, or both is “no”, does the

school have a payment plan in place with the Internal
Revenue Service?

N/A

Response was Yes

iv.

If the answer to Question 1.a.iii is “yes”, has the school
made all of the required payments under the payment
plan as of audited fiscal year end (June 30t)?

N/A

Response was not yes

b. Arizona Department of Revenue A.R.S. §43401 and §43-

1111

1.

For payroll taxes, state income taxes (if applicable) and
applicable tax forms required to be filed during the
audited fiscal year?

Yes

The school did not have any payroll or income taxes
payable from a prior year(s) as of audited fiscal year
end (June 30%) is a true statement.

Yes

iii. If the response to 1.b.i, 1.b.ii, or both is “no”, does the

school have a payment plan in place with the Arizona
Department of Revenue?

N/A

Response was Yes

iv. If the answer to Question 1.b.iii is “yes”, has the school

made all of the required payments under the payment
plan as of audited fiscal year end (June 30t)?

N/A

Response was not Yes

c. Arizona Department of Economic Security A.R.S. § 23-721

et

seq.

1,

State unemployment contributions requirements for the
audited fiscal year?

Yes

The school did not have any state unemployment
contributions payable from a prior year(s) as of audited
fiscal year end (June 30t) is a true statement.

Yes

ifi. If the response to 1.c., 1.c.ii, or both is “no”, does the

school have a payment plan in place with the Arizona
Department of Economic Security?

N/A

Response was Yes

iv. If the answer to Question 1.c.iii is “yes”, has the school

made all of the required payments under the payment
plan as of audited fiscal year end (June 30th)?

N/A

Response was not Yes

d. Corporation Commission (e.g., annual report)? Charter

Yes
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Contract

2

Was a copy of the adopted budget signed by the Governing
Board and filed with the Superintendent of Public Instruction
by July 18%? A.R.S. §15-905 (B) and (E) and §15-183 (E)(6)

Yes

Was the Annual Financial Report (AFR) sent to the
Superintendent of Public Instruction by October 1547 A.R.S.
§15-183 (E) (6) and 15-904 (A)

Yes

Special Education

1.

Is the staff the school uses to provide special education services
(internal or contracted) certified in special education?

Yes

2.

Does the school conduct 45 day screenings on all new
students? AAC R7-2-401

Yes

Sk

Are evaluations and IEPs on file for special education students?
34 CFR 300.341-350 and 300.531-536

Yes

Classroom Site Fund - A.R.S. §15-977 & OAG Memorandum

#44

1.

Did the School properly allocate Classroom Site Fund receipts
among the following projects: 1011 —Base Salary (20%), 1012—
Performance Pay (40%), and 1013 —Other (40%)?

Yes

For Project 1011, were expenses only for teacher base salary
increases and employment-related expenses?

Yes

For Project 1012, were expenses only for performance-based
teacher compensation increases and employment-related
expenses?

Yes

For Project 1013, were expenses only for class size reduction,
teacher compensation increases, AIMS intervention programs,
teacher development, dropout prevention programs, and
teacher liability insurance premiums?

Yes

Did the School use Classroom Site monies to supplement rather
than supplant, existing funding from all other sources? (See
USFRCS Memorandum No. 44 for guidance for Classroom Site
Projects.)

Yes

If the School had monies remaining at year-end, were they
properly carried forward in the three Classroom Site Projects
(1011, 1012, and 1013) to help ensure that the restrictions placed
on the original allocation of revenues is applied in future
years?

Yes

Did the School have sufficient cash at year- end to cover the
carry over monies?

Yes

Student Attendance Reporting

If test work performed in questions 3-15 and 18 of this section
discloses a net overstatement or understatement of membership
and/or absence days, report the net overstatement or
understatement in the “Comments” column.
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Yes/No

Comments

1. Was school in session for at least 180 days or 144 days for
schools operating on a 4-day week, or did the governing board
adopt a calendar with an equivalent number of minutes of
instruction per school year based on a different number of days
of instruction and were membership and attendance recorded
for each day school was in session? A.R.S. §§15-902 (H), (I),
and (J) and 15-341.01

Yes

2. Did the School ensure that:
(Note: Instruction hours do not include periods of the day in
which an instructional program or course of study is not being
offered, including, but not limited to, lunch, recesses, home
room periods, study hall periods, and early release or late start
hours. ADE’s School Finance Procedures Manual)

a. Kindergarten was in session for at least 356 hours? A.R.S.
§15-901(A)(2)

N/A

No grades below 6.

b. Grades 1 through 3 were in session for at least 712 hours?
AR.S. §15-901(A)(2)

N/A

No grades below 6t

c. Grades 4 through 6 were in session for at least 890 hours?
A.R.S. §15-901(A)(2)

Yes

d. Grades 7 and 8 were in session for at least 1,000 hours?
A.R.S. §15-901(A)(2)

Yes

e. For high school, a full-time instructional program meets at
least 720 hours during the minimum number of days
required? A.R.S. §15-901(A)(2)

Yes

f.  For high school, a full-time instructional program includes
at least four subjects, each of which if taught each school
day for the minimum number of days required in a school
year, would meet a minimum of 123 hours a year; or any
number of subjects totaling at least 20 hours per week,
prorated for any week with fewer than 5 school days?
A.R.S. §15-901(A)(2)

Yes

For Student Attendance Reporting questions 3-15, the audit firm
must select and test the specified number of transactions (records,
entries, withdrawals, or days) as shown in the sample size
instructions before each section. That sample should include 3 or
more grade levels and 3 or more campuses, where applicable. The
listed sample sizes represent the minimum level of required test work.
The audit firm should use its judgment in determining whether a
larger sample is needed. All student attendance records tested in
steps 3-10 and 15 should be selected from the 100™ day reporting
period.

In the parentheses provided in questions 3-15, indicate the actual
number of transactions tested. If all transactions were tested, indicate
such in the “Comments” column.
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For questions 3-5 select at least 3 student attendance records.

3. If the School had an early (pre-)kindergarten program, based
upon review of (_0__) early (pre-) kindergarten students’
attendance records, did the School only calculate and submit
ADM data to ADE for this program if the program was
designed to advance students to the first grade at the end of the
of the school year? A.R.S.§15-901(A)(2)(a)(i) and USFRCS

Memorandum No. 33

N/A

No grades below 6th,

4. Based upon review of (__0_) students’ attendance records in
kindergarten programs with instructional time between 356
and 692 hours a year, were students not in attendance for at
least three-quarters of the day counted as being absent? If the
instructional time for the year was 692 hours or more, were
students not in attendance at least one-half of the day counted
as being absent? A.R.S.§§15-901(A)(2)(a)(i) and 15-
901(A)(6)(a)(i)

N/A

No grades below 6th,

5. If the School had an early first grade program, based upon
review of (_0__) early first grade students’ attendance records,
did the School calculate and submit ADM for this program as it
would for kindergarten in accordance with ADE’s School
Finance Procedures Manual? A.R.S. §15-901(A)(2)(b)(i) and
USFRCS Memorandum No. 33

N/A

No grades below 6th,

For questions 6 and 7, use the following sample sizes:

Student Attendance
SCHOOLWIDE ADM Records

<1,000 5
1,000-5,000 10
>5,000 15

6. Based on review of ( 0 ) students’ attendance records at
elementary and junior high schools, in which attendance was
based on half days, were students in attendance for less than
one-half the day counted as being absent for one full day?
Were students in attendance for at least one-half day, but less
than three-quarters of a day, counted as being absent for one-
half day? Were students in attendance for at least three-
quarters of a day counted in attendance for a day?
A.R.S. §15-901(A)(6)(b)(ii)

N/A

Attendance based on
quarter days.
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Based upon review of (5) students’ attendance records at
elementary and junior high schools where attendance was
based on quarter days, were students in attendance for more
than three-quarters of the day counted in attendance for a day?
Were students in attendance for three-quarters of the day or
less counted in attendance for each quarter of the day in
attendance? A.R.S. §15-901(A)(6)(b)(i)

Yes

For questions 8 through 12, use the following sample sizes:

8.

SCHOOLWIDE
ADM Student Attendance Records

<1,000 3
1,000-5,000 5
>5,000 7

For schools approved to report minutes of attendance, based
upon review of the attendance records for a 1 month period for
(0) students whose attendance was reported in minutes, did the
School report minutes of attendance only for actual classroom
instruction attended by the students in accordance with ADE’s
School Finance Procedures Manual?

N/A

Attendance based on
quarter days.

Based upon review of (3) high school students’ records whose
attendance was reported in terms of absences, for all absence
days reported in a 1 month period, did the School report the
absences in accordance with the method(s) provided in ADE’s
School Finance Procedures Manual?

Yes

10.

Based upon review of (_0__) high school students’ attendance
records, did the School prorate the membership of the high
school students enrolled in less than four subjects as provided
in ADE'’s School Finance Procedures Manual?

N/A

No students enrolled in
fewer than four subjects.
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11. For schools offering an Arizona Online Instruction (AOI)

Program, based upon a review of (_0_) AOI students’
attendance records for 4 weeks:

a. Was the guardian-approved or School computer-generated

daily log describing the amount of time spent by the | N/A No AOI program.
student on academic tasks maintained by the participating
AQI School? A.R.S. §15-808(E)

b. Did the hours reported to ADE agree to the guardian-
approved or School computer-generated daily log? N/A No AOI program.

c¢. Were all pupils who participated in an AOI Program
residents of this State? A.R.S. §15-808 N/A No AOI program.

12. Based upon review of (8) students’ attendance records (all

grades) for students withdrawn for having 10 consecutive

unexcused absences, was the student only counted in Yes

membership through the last day of actual attendance?

A.R.S. §15-901(A)(2)

For questions 13 and 14, use the following sample sizes:
SCHOOLWIDE
ADM Entries/Withdrawals
<1,000 5
1,000-5,000 10
>5,000 15
13. Based upon review of (5) entries: (Note: Enrollment forms are

not required for continuing students at the same school.)

a. Were entry dates entered into the School's computerized
attendance system within 5 working days after the actual | YeS
date of entry and was documentation maintained to
support the date of data entry?

b. Did the entry date in the computerized attendance system
agree to the entry form? Yes

c. Did the teacher’s attendance registers, if used, and other
documentation support the entry date in the computerized Yes
attendance system?

d. Did membership for continuing/pre-enrolled students
begin with either the first day of actual attendance or the | YeS

first day that classroom instruction was offered, provided
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that the students actually attend within the first 10 days of
school? For all other students, did membership begin with
the first day of actual attendance? ADE’s School Finance
Procedures Manual

14. Based upon review of (5) withdrawals:

a. Were the withdrawal dates entered into the School’s
computerized attendance system within 5 working days
after the actual date of withdrawal and was documentation
maintained to support the date of data entry? (Note: “Day
of withdrawal” means: a.) the later of the student's
withdrawal date or the day the school is notified the
student will not be returning; or b.) the 10t day of non-
attendance for students withdrawn for having ten
consecutive unexcused absences.)

Yes

b. Did the withdrawal date in the attendance system agree to
the withdrawal form? (Note: If the computerized
attendance system requires the school to input the first day
of non-attendance for a student to be counted in
membership through the last day of actual attendance, the
withdrawal date on the system should be the school day
following the withdrawal date on the form.)

Yes

c. Did the teachers’ attendance registers, if used, and other
supporting documentation support the withdrawal date in
the computerized attendance system?

Yes

d. Was an Official Notice of Pupil Withdrawal form prepared
and retained for each withdrawal and signed by a school
administrator? A.R.S. §15-827

Yes

For question 15, use the following sample sizes:

SCHOOLWIDE
ADM Days

<1,000 3
1,000-5,000 5
>5,000 7

15. Based upon review of (3) days for various campuses, grades,
and classes in the computerized attendance system, did the
student absences from each day agree to the teachers’
attendance registers, absence slips, or other supporting
documentation, if used?

Yes
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16.

Did the school have adequate electronic or manual controls in
place to ensure that any changes to the original record of
student attendance data were properly authorized and
documented, including the names or identification numbers of
the persons making and authorizing the changes?

Yes

17.

Was the School’'s membership/absence information submitted
to ADE electronically at least once every 20 school days
through the last day of instruction (with the first 20 day period
beginning the first day of school or the opening of SAIS for
current fiscal year data submission, whichever is later)? A.R.S.
§15-1042(H)

Yes

18.

Based upon review of the School's 40% and 100% day
information uploaded to ADE, did the membership and
absences agree with the School’s computerized attendance
system records? (Note: For an AOI program, review year-end
attendance information.)

Yes

Yes/No

Comments

Open Meeting Law A.R.S. § 38-431.01 and § 38-431.02 (See also
Attorney General Opinion 100-009)

1.

Beginning July 29, 2010, did the school conspicuously post a
statement on its website stating where all public notices of its
meetings will be posted, including the physical and electronic
locations? Laws 2010, Chapter 88 ?

Yes

Beginning July 29, 2010, did the school post all public meeting
notices on its website? Laws 2010, Chapter 88

Yes

Did the school maintain a record of notices that includes a copy
of each notice that was posted and information regarding the
date, time and place of posting?

Yes

Were notices and agenda of public meetings posted at least 24
hours before the meeting?

Yes

Were written minutes prepared or a recording made of
Governing Body meetings?

Yes

Insurance Requirements A.R.S. §15-183(M)

Does the school have the required insurance for liability and property

loss?

Yes
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Tuition A.R.S. §15-185 (B)(6) (See also Attorney General Opinion I98-
007) and Laws 2010, 7" S.S., Ch. 8, Sec. 16

Did the school refrain from charging fees that may be considered
tuition other than as provided for in A.R.S. §15-185(B)(6) Yes
[nonresidents] and Laws 2010, 7t S.S., Ch. 8, Sec. 16 [full-day
kindergarten for fiscal year 2011 only]?

Records Management

1. Did the school retain records in accordance with the Records
Retention and Disposition for Arizona School Districts Manual | Yes
published by the Arizona State Library, Archives and Public
Records (based on the testing conducted during the course of
the audit)?

2. Was adequate documentation retained to support amounts in
the financial statements (if the school is not the primary Yes
reporting entity - was adequate documentation retained to
support revenue and expenses in the charter school)?

This Questionnaire was completed in accordance with the minimum audit standards as set forth in the
instructions on pages 2 and 3.

Klecka, Wilkins & Klecka February 27, 2012
Date
Partner
B
Preparer’s Signaturé¢ (Audit Firm Representative) Title
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Arizona State Board for Charter Schools
Legal Compliance Questionnaire
Choice Education and Development Corporation
Learning Crossroads Basic Academy

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011
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INSTRUCTIONS

NOTE: This questionnaire should only be used for schools that are exempt from the
Uniform System of Financial Records for Arizona Charter Schools (schools that
HAVE an exception). If a school is subject to procurement requirements pursuant to
A.R.S. §15-189.02 and 41-2535(A), this questionnaire should be used in conjunction
with the Procurement Compliance Questionnaire (see audit guidelines memo dated
6/13/2011) which is available on the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools” website
http://asbcs.az.gov.

In order to determine whether a charter school that is exempt from the requirements of
the Uniform System of Financial Records for Arizona Charter Schools (USFRCS) is
complying with applicable legal requirements, the auditors must complete the following
Legal Compliance Questionnaire (Note: This questionnaire is not comprehensive of all
legal requirements for charter schools. As such, this document should not be the sole
reference to determine all laws and regulations that are applicable to charter schools).

The following prescribed minimum audit standards for completing the Legal
Compliance Questionnaire must be used in all audits. The State Board for Charter
Schools may reject audits not meeting these standards.

¢ Sufficient, appropriate evidence must be obtained annually for each question to
satisfactorily determine whether the school complies with the legal requirements,
and the evidence must be included in the audit documentation.

¢ Evidence may be obtained through test work, observation, examination, and client
assertion. However, client assertion alone is not adequate evidence to support “Yes”
answers to the questionnaire.

¢ Population size should be considered in determining the number of items to test,
and the items selected should be representative of the population.

¢ The number of items tested must be sufficient to determine whether a deficiency was
the result of an isolated incident or a recurring problem. Therefore, testing one
transaction, record, or item is not sufficient.

¢ The sample size should be expanded if the audit firm cannot clearly determine
whether the school complies with the legal requirements of the question.

¢ If sufficient evidence has been obtained and documented during the current audit,
that evidence may be referenced to answer questions.
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¢ All “No” and “N/A” answers must be adequately explained in the comments
column or in an attachment. Findings must be described in sufficient detail to enable
the State Board for Charter Schools to describe the finding in a letter. The
description should include the number of items tested and the number of exceptions
noted.

¢ A “Yes” answer indicates that the audit firm has determined that the school
complies with the legal requirements of the question and a “No” answer indicates
the school does not comply. However, the final determination of compliance on
each question, as well as overall compliance with legal requirements, is made by the
State Board for Charter Schools based on the evidence presented in the
questionnaire, audit reports, the audit documentation, and any other sources.

The resulting audit documentation supporting the audit firm’s answers to the Legal
Compliance Questionnaire must be made available on request for review by the State
Board for Charter Schools. To facilitate this review, the audit firm may wish to include
in the audit documentation a copy of the questionnaire containing references to audit
procedures performed for each question.
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Legal Compliance Questionnaire

Questions/Subject Area Yes/No | Comments

Personnel

1. Did the school have valid fingerprint clearance cards (FCC) for
100% of the required personnel as of the testing date? A.R.S. Yes
§15-183 (C)(5) and A.R.S. §15-512(H)

(QUESTIONS #2a THROUGH 2c ONLY APPLY TO NEW HIRES
REQUIRED PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §15-183(C)(5) TO HAVE
VALID FCCS AND DO NOT APPLY IF AN INDIVIDUAL'S FCC
HAS EXPIRED.)

2. For each individual referenced in #1 that did not have a valid
FCC, please provide the following information (provide
supplemental pages, if necessary) (See agency guidance
available on the Board’s website prior to completing these
questions)A.R.S. §15-183(C)(5):

a. Was an application for a FCC on file with the Department | N/A All required personnel had
of Public Safety (DPS) as of the testing date? FCCs.
b. Did DPS receive the application prior to the hire date? N/A All required personnel had
FCCs.
c. Prior to placement, did the school do all of the following?
i) Document the necessity for hiring/placing the N/A All required personnel had
individual prior to receiving a FCC? FCCs.
ii) Obtain statewide criminal history information on the N/A All required personnel had
individual? FCCs.
iif) Obtain references from the applicant’s current and N/A All required personnel had
previous employers? FCCs.
3. Did the charter school maintain up-to-date fingerprints of
all governing board members as of the testing date? Yes
Charter Contract!
4. Were all other personnel fingerprint checked as of the
testing date? A.R.S. §15-183 (C)(5) and A.R.S. §15-512 Yes

5. Did the charter school inform the parents and guardians of
pupils enrolled in the school of the availability of resume
information for all employees who provide instruction to Yes
pupils? A.R.S. §15-183 (F)

!'Specific contract cites could not be provided as term references vary per contract year.
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Yes/No | Comments
Required Filings
1. Is the school in good standing with the following regulatory
bodies:

a. Internal Revenue Service U.S.C. Title 26

L.

For payroll taxes, income taxes (if applicable) and
applicable tax forms required to be filed during the
audited fiscal year?

Yes

The school did not have any payroll or income taxes
payable from a prior year(s) as of audited fiscal year
end (June 30%) is a true statement.

Yes

iii. If the response to 1.a.i, 1.a.ii, or both is “no”, does the

school have a payment plan in place with the Internal
Revenue Service?

N/A

Response was Yes

iv. If the answer to Question 1.a.iii is “yes”, has the school

made all of the required payments under the payment
plan as of audited fiscal year end (June 30t)?

N/A

Response was Not Yes

b. Arizona Department of Revenue A.R.S. §43-401 and §43-

1111

1L

For payroll taxes, state income taxes (if applicable) and
applicable tax forms required to be filed during the
audited fiscal year?

Yes

The school did not have any payroll or income taxes
payable from a prior year(s) as of audited fiscal year
end (June 30t) is a true statement.

Yes

iii. If the response to 1.b.i, 1.b.ii, or both is “no”, does the

school have a payment plan in place with the Arizona
Department of Revenue?

N/A

Response was Yes

iv. If the answer to Question 1.b.iii is “yes”, has the school

made all of the required payments under the payment
plan as of audited fiscal year end (June 30th)?

N/A

Response was Not Yes

c. Arizona Department of Economic Security A.R.S. § 23-721
et seq.

L.

State unemployment contributions requirements for the
audited fiscal year?

Yes

The school did not have any state unemployment
contributions payable from a prior year(s) as of audited
fiscal year end (June 30th) is a true statement.

Yes

iii, If the response to 1.c.i, 1.c.ii, or both is “no”, does the

school have a payment plan in place with the Arizona
Department of Economic Security?

N/A

Response was Yes

iv. If the answer to Question 1.c.ii is “yes”, has the school

made all of the required payments under the payment
plan as of audited fiscal year end (June 30t)?

N/A

Response was Not Yes

d. Corporation Commission (e.g., annual report)? Charter

Yes
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Contract

2.

Was a copy of the adopted budget signed by the Governing
Board and filed with the Superintendent of Public Instruction
by July 18%? A.R.S. §15-905 (B) and (E) and §15-183 (E)(6)

Yes

Was the Annual Financial Report (AFR) sent to the
Superintendent of Public Instruction by October 15%? A.R.S.
§15-183 (E) (6) and 15-904 (A)

Yes

Special Education

1.

Is the staff the school uses to provide special education services
(internal or contracted) certified in special education?

Yes

2.

Does the school conduct 45 day screenings on all new
students? AAC R7-2-401

Yes

3.

Are evaluations and IEPs on file for special education students?
34 CFR 300.341-350 and 300.531-536

Yes

Classroom Site Fund - A.R.S. §15-977 & OAG Memorandum

#44

1.

Did the School properly allocate Classroom Site Fund receipts
among the following projects: 1011 —Base Salary (20%), 1012 —
Performance Pay (40%), and 1013 —Other (40%)?

Yes

For Project 1011, were expenses only for teacher base salary
increases and employment-related expenses?

Yes

For Project 1012, were expenses only for performance-based
teacher compensation increases and employment-related
expenses?

Yes

For Project 1013, were expenses only for class size reduction,
teacher compensation increases, AIMS intervention programs,
teacher development, dropout prevention programs, and
teacher liability insurance premiums?

Yes

Did the School use Classroom Site monies to supplement rather
than supplant, existing funding from all other sources? (See
USFRCS Memorandum No. 44 for guidance for Classroom Site
Projects.)

Yes

If the School had monies remaining at year-end, were they
properly carried forward in the three Classroom Site Projects
(1011, 1012, and 1013) to help ensure that the restrictions placed
on the original allocation of revenues is applied in future
years?

Yes

Did the School have sufficient cash at year- end to cover the
carry over monies? |

Yes

Student Attendance Reporting

If test work performed in questions 3-15 and 18 of this section
discloses a net overstatement or understatement of membership
and/or absence days, report the net overstatement or
understatement in the “Comments” cojumn.
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Yes/No

Comments

1. Was school in session for at least 180 days or 144 days for
schools operating on a 4-day week, or did the governing board
adopt a calendar with an equivalent number of minutes of
instruction per school year based on a different number of days
of instruction and were membership and attendance recorded
for each day school was in session? A.R.S. §§15-902 (H), (I),
and (J) and 15-341.01

Yes

2. Did the School ensure that:
(Note: Instruction hours do not include periods of the day in
which an instructional program or course of study is not being
offered, including, but not limited to, lunch, recesses, home
room periods, study hall periods, and early release or late start
hours. ADE'’s School Finance Procedures Manual)

a. Kindergarten was in session for at least 356 hours? A.R.S.
§15-901(A)(2)

Yes

b. Grades 1 through 3 were in session for at least 712 hours?
A.R.S. §15-901(A)(2)

Yes

c. Grades 4 through 6 were in session for at least 890 hours?
A.R.S. §15-901(A)(2)

Yes

d. Grades 7 and 8 were in session for at least 1,000 hours?
A.R.S. §15-901(A)(2)

Yes

e. For high school, a full-time instructional program meets at
least 720 hours during the minimum number of days
required? A.R.S. §15-901(A)(2)

Yes

f.  For high school, a full-time instructional program includes
at least four subjects, each of which if taught each school
day for the minimum number of days required in a school
year, would meet a minimum of 123 hours a year; or any
number of subjects totaling at least 20 hours per week,
prorated for any week with fewer than 5 school days?
A.R.S. §15-901(A)(2)

Yes

For Student Attendance Reporting questions 3-15, the audit firm
must select and test the specified number of transactions (records,
entries, withdrawals, or days) as shown in the sample size
instructions before each section. That sample should include 3 or
more grade levels and 3 or more campuses, where applicable. The
listed sample sizes represent the minimum level of required test work.
The audit firm should use its judgment in determining whether a
larger sample is needed. All student attendance records tested in
steps 3-10 and 15 should be selected from the 100™ day reporting
period. -

In the parentheses provided in questions 3-1S5, indicate the actual
number of transactions tested. If all transactions were tested, indicate
such in the “Comments” column.
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For questions 3-5 select at least 3 student attendance records.

3. If the School had an early (pre-)kindergarten program, based
upon review of (_0_) early (pre-) kindergarten students’
attendance records, did the School only calculate and submit
ADM data to ADE for this program if the program was
designed to advance students to the first grade at the end of the
of the school year? A.R.S.§15-901(A)(2)(a)(i) and USFRCS
Memorandum No. 33

N/A

No early kindergarten.

4. Based upon review of (_3_) students’ attendance records in
kindergarten programs with instructional time between 356
and 692 hours a year, were students not in attendance for at
least three-quarters of the day counted as being absent? If the
instructional time for the year was 692 hours or more, were
students not in attendance at least one-half of the day counted
as being absent? A.R.S.§§15-901(A)(2)(a)(i) and 15-
901(A)(6)(a) i)

Yes

5. If the School had an early first grade program, based upon
review of (_0__) early first grade students’ attendance records,
did the School calculate and submit ADM for this program as it
would for kindergarten in accordance with ADE's School
Finance Procedures Manual? A.R.S. §15-901(A)(2)(b)(i) and
USFRCS Memorandum No. 33

N/A

No early first grade.

For questions 6 and 7, use the following sample sizes:

Student Attendance
SCHOOLWIDE ADM Records
<1,000 5
1,000-5,000 10
>5,000 15

6. Based on review of (_0__) students’ attendance records at
elementary and junior high schools, in which attendance was
based on half days, were students in attendance for less than
one-half the day counted as being absent for one full day?
Were students in attendance for at least one-half day, but less
than three-quarters of a day, counted as being absent for one-
half day? Were students in attendance for at least three-
quarters of a day counted in attendance for a day?
A.R.S. §15-901(A)(6)(b)(ii)

N/A

Attendance is based on
quarter days.
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7. Based upon review of (5) students’ attendance records at
elementary and junior high schools where attendance was
based on quarter days, were students in attendance for more
than three-quarters of the day counted in attendance for a day?
Were students in attendance for three-quarters of the day or
less counted in attendance for each quarter of the day in
attendance? A.R.S. §15-901(A)(6)(b)(i)

Yes

For questions 8 through 12, use the following sample sizes:

SCHOOLWIDE
ADM Student Attendance Records

<1,000 3
1,000-5,000 5
>5,000 (]

8. For schools approved to report minutes of attendance, based
upon review of the attendance records for a 1 month period for
(0) students whose attendance was reported in minutes, did the
School report minutes of attendance only for actual classroom
instruction attended by the students in accordance with ADE's
School Finance Procedures Manual?

N/A

Attendance is based on
quarter days.

9. Based upon review of (3) high school students’ records whose
attendance was reported in terms of absences, for all absence
days reported in a 1 month period, did the School report the
absences in accordance with the method(s) provided in ADE's
School Finance Procedures Manual?

Yes

10. Based upon review of (3) high school students’ attendance
records, did the School prorate the membership of the high
school students enrolled in less than four subjects as provided
in ADE’s School Finance Procedures Manual?

Yes
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11. For schools offering an Arizona Online Instruction (AOI)
Program, based upon a review of (_0_) AQI students’
attendance records for 4 weeks:

a. Was the guardian-approved or School computer-generated

daily log describing the amount of time spent by the | N/A No AOI program.
student on academic tasks maintained by the participating
AOQI School? A.R.S. §15-808(E)

b. Did the hours reported to ADE agree to the guardian-
approved or School computer-generated daily log? N/A No AOI program.

c. Were all pupils who participated in an AOI Program
residents of this State? A.R.S. §15-808 N/A No AQI program.

12. Based upon review of (3) students’ attendance records (all
grades) for students withdrawn for having 10 consecutive
unexcused absences, was the student only counted in Yes
membership through the last day of actual attendance?

A.R.S. §15-901(A)(2)

For questions 13 and 14, use the following sample sizes:
SCHOOLWIDE
ADM Entries/Withdrawals
<1,000 5
1,000-5,000 10
>5,000 15

13. Based upon review of (5) entries: (Note: Enrollment forms are

not required for continuing students at the same school.)

a. Were entry dates entered into the School’s computerized
attendance system within 5 working days after the actual | YeS
date of entry and was documentation maintained to
support the date of data entry?

b. Did the entry date in the computerized attendance system
agree to the entry form? Yes

c. Did the teacher’s attendance registers, if used, and other
documentation support the entry date in the computerized | YeS
attendance system?

d. Did membership for continuing/pre-enrolled students "

es

begin with either the first day of actual attendance or the
first day that classroom instruction was offered, provided
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that the students actually attend within the first 10 days of
school? For all other students, did membership begin with
the first day of actual attendance? ADE’s School Finance
Procedures Manual

14. Based upon review of (5) withdrawals:

a. Were the withdrawal dates entered into the School’s
computerized attendance system within 5 working days
after the actual date of withdrawal and was documentation
maintained to support the date of data entry? (Note: “Day
of withdrawal” means: a.) the later of the student’s
withdrawal date or the day the school is notified the
student will not be returning; or b.) the 10t day of non-
attendance for students withdrawn for having ten
consecutive unexcused absences.)

Yes

b. Did the withdrawal date in the attendance system agree to
the withdrawal form? (Note: If the computerized
attendance system requires the school to input the first day
of non-attendance for a student to be counted in
membership through the last day of actual attendance, the
withdrawal date on the system should be the school day
following the withdrawal date on the form.)

Yes

c. Did the teachers’ attendance registers, if used, and other
supporting documentation support the withdrawal date in
the computerized attendance system?

Yes

d. Was an Official Notice of Pupil Withdrawal form prepared
and retained for each withdrawal and signed by a school
administrator? A.R.S. §15-827

Yes

For question 15, use the following sample sizes:

SCHOOLWIDE
ADM Days

<1,000 3
1,000-5,000 5
>5,000 7

15. Based upon review of (3) days for various campuses, grades,
and classes in the computerized attendance system, did the
student absences from each day agree to the teachers’
attendance registers, absence slips, or other supporting
documentation, if used?

Yes
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16.

Did the school have adequate electronic or manual controls in
place to ensure that any changes to the original record of
student attendance data were properly authorized and
documented, including the names or identification numbers of
the persons making and authorizing the changes?

Yes

17.

Was the School’s membership/absence information submitted
to ADE electronically at least once every 20 school days
through the last day of instruction (with the first 20 day period
beginning the first day of school or the opening of SAIS for
current fiscal year data submission, whichever is later)? A.R.S.
§15-1042(H)

Yes

18.

Based upon review of the School's 40t and 100% day
information uploaded to ADE, did the membership and
absences agree with the School's computerized attendance
system records? (Note: For an AOI program, review year-end
attendance information.)

Yes

Yes/No

Comments

Open Meeting Law A.R.S. § 38-431.01 and § 38-431.02 (See also
Attorney General Opinion 100-009)

1.

Beginning July 29, 2010, did the school conspicuously post a
statement on its website stating where all public notices of its
meetings will be posted, including the physical and electronic
locations? Laws 2010, Chapter 88 ?

Yes

Beginning July 29, 2010, did the school post all public meeting
notices on its website? Laws 2010, Chapter 88

Yes

Did the school maintain a record of notices that includes a copy
of each notice that was posted and information regarding the
date, time and place of posting?

Yes

Were notices and agenda of public meetings posted at least 24
hours before the meeting?

Yes

Were written minutes prepared or a recording made of
Governing Body meetings?

Yes

Insurance Requirements A.R.S. §15-183(M)

Does the school have the required insurance for liability and property

loss?

Yes
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Tuition A.R.S. §15-185 (B)(6) (See also Attorney General Opinion I98-
007) and Laws 2010, 7" S.S., Ch. 8, Sec. 16

Did the school refrain from charging fees that may be considered
tuition other than as provided for in A.R.S. §15-185(B)(6) Yes
[nonresidents] and Laws 2010, 7t S.S., Ch. 8, Sec. 16 [full-day
kindergarten for fiscal year 2011 only]?

Records Management

1. Did the school retain records in accordance with the Records
Retention and Disposition for Arizona School Districts Manual | Yes
published by the Arizona State Library, Archives and Public
Records (based on the testing conducted during the course of
the audit)?

2. Was adequate documentation retained to support amounts in
the financial statements (if the school is not the primary Yes
reporting entity - was adequate documentation retained to
support revenue and expenses in the charter school)?

This Questionnaire was completed in accordance with the minimum audit standards as set forth in the
instructions on pages 2 and 3.

Klecka, Wilkins & Klecka February 27, 2012
Audit Fir Date
Partner
Preparer’s Signature (Awudit Firm Represen:aﬁve) Title
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INSTRUCTIONS

NOTE: This questionnaire should only be used for schools that are exempt from the
Uniform System of Financial Records for Arizona Charter Schools (schools that
HAVE an exception). If a school is subject to procurement requirements pursuant to
AR.S. §15-189.02 and 41-2535(A), this questionnaire should be used in conjunction
with the Procurement Compliance Questionnaire (see audit guidelines memo dated
6/13/2011) which is available on the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools’ website
http://asbcs.az.gov.

In order to determine whether a charter school that is exempt from the requirements of
the Uniform System of Financial Records for Arizona Charter Schools (USFRCS) is
complying with applicable legal requirements, the auditors must complete the following
Legal Compliance Questionnaire (Note: This questionnaire is not comprehensive of all
legal requirements for charter schools. As such, this document should not be the sole
reference to determine all laws and regulations that are applicable to charter schools).

The following prescribed minimum audit standards for completing the Legal
Compliance Questionnaire must be used in all audits. The State Board for Charter
Schools may reject audits not meeting these standards.

¢ Sufficient, appropriate evidence must be obtained annually for each question to
satisfactorily determine whether the school complies with the legal requirements,
and the evidence must be included in the audit documentation.

¢ Evidence may be obtained through test work, observation, examination, and client
assertion. However, client assertion alone is not adequate evidence to support “Yes”
answers to the questionnaire.

¢ Population size should be considered in determining the number of items to test,
and the items selected should be representative of the population.

¢ The number of items tested must be sufficient to determine whether a deficiency was
the result of an isolated incident or a recurring problem. Therefore, testing one
transaction, record, or item is not sufficient.

¢ The sample size should be expanded if the audit firm cannot clearly determine
whether the school complies with the legal requirements of the question.

¢ If sufficient evidence has been obtained and documented during the current audit,
that evidence may be referenced to answer questions.
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¢ All “No” and “N/A” answers must be adequately explained in the comments
column or in an attachment. Findings must be described in sufficient detail to enable
the State Board for Charter Schools to describe the finding in a letter. The
description should include the number of items tested and the number of exceptions
noted.

¢ A “Yes” answer indicates that the audit firm has determined that the school
complies with the legal requirements of the question and a “No” answer indicates
the school does not comply. However, the final determination of compliance on
each question, as well as overall compliance with legal requirements, is made by the
State Board for Charter Schools based on the evidence presented in the
questionnaire, audit reports, the audit documentation, and any other sources.

The resulting audit documentation supporting the audit firm’'s answers to the Legal
Compliance Questionnaire must be made available on request for review by the State
Board for Charter Schools. To facilitate this review, the audit firm may wish to include
in the audit documentation a copy of the questionnaire containing references to audit
procedures performed for each question.
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Legal Compliance Questionnaire

Questions/Subject Area Yes/No Comments

Personnel

1. Did the school have valid fingerprint clearance cards (FCC) for
100% of the required personnel as of the testing date? A.R.S. Yes
§15-183 (C)(5) and A.R.S. §15-512(H)

(QUESTIONS #2a THROUGH 2c ONLY APPLY TO NEW HIRES
REQUIRED PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §15-183(C)(5) TO HAVE
VALID FCCS AND DO NOT APPLY IF AN INDIVIDUAL’S FCC
HAS EXPIRED.)

2. For each individual referenced in #1 that did not have a valid
FCC, please provide the following information (provide
supplemental pages, if necessary) (See agency guidance
available on the Board’s website prior to completing these
questions)A.R.S. §15-183(C)(5):

a. Was an application for a FCC on file with the Department | N/A All required personnel had
of Public Safety (DPS) as of the testing date? FCCs.
b. Did DPS receive the application prior to the hire date? N/A All required personnel had
FCCs.
c. Prior to placement, did the school do all of the following?
i) Document the necessity for hiring/placing the N/A All required personnel had
individual prior to receiving a FCC? FCCs.
ii) Obtain statewide criminal history information on the N/A All required personnel had
individual? FCCs.
iif) Obtain references from the applicant’s current and N/A All required personnel had
previous employers? FCCs.
3. Did the charter school maintain up-to-date fingerprints of
all governing board members as of the testing date? Yes
Charter Contract!
4. Were all other personnel fingerprint checked as of the
testing date? A.R.S. §15-183 (C)(5) and A.R.S. §15-512 Yes

5. Did the charter school inform the parents and guardians of
pupils enrolled in the school of the availability of resume
information for all employees who provide instruction to Yes
pupils? A.R.S. §15-183 (F)

! Specific contract cites could not be provided as term references vary per contract year.
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Yes/No | Comments
Required Filings
1. Is the school in good standing with the following regulatory
bodies:

a. Internal Revenue Service U.S.C. Title 26

1

For payroll taxes, income taxes (if applicable) and
applicable tax forms required to be filed during the
audited fiscal year?

Yes

The school did not have any payroll or income taxes
payable from a prior year(s) as of audited fiscal year
end (June 30t) is a true statement.

Yes

iii. If the response to 1.a.i, 1.a.ii, or both is “no”, does the

school have a payment plan in place with the Internal
Revenue Service?

N/A

Response was Yes

iv. If the answer to Question 1.a.iii is “yes”, has the school

made all of the required payments under the payment
plan as of audited fiscal year end (June 30th)?

N/A

Response Was not Yes

b. Arizona Department of Revenue A.R.S. §43-401 and §43-
1111

1.

For payroll taxes, state income taxes (if applicable) and
applicable tax forms required to be filed during the
audited fiscal year?

Yes

The school did not have any payroll or income taxes
payable from a prior year(s) as of audited fiscal year
end (June 30%) is a true statement.

Yes

iii. If the response to 1.b.i, 1.b.ii, or both is “no”, does the

school have a payment plan in place with the Arizona
Department of Revenue?

N/A

Response was Yes

iv. If the answer to Question 1.b.iii is “yes”, has the school

made all of the required payments under the payment
plan as of audited fiscal year end (June 30th)?

N/A

Response Was not Yes

c. Arizona Department of Economic Security A.R.S. § 23-721

et seq.

1

State unemployment contributions requirements for the
audited fiscal year?

Yes

The school did not have any state unemployment
contributions payable from a prior year(s) as of audited
fiscal year end (June 30%) is a true statement.

Yes

iii. If the response to 1.c.i, 1.c.ii, or both is “no”, does the

school have a payment plan in place with the Arizona
Department of Economic Security?

N/A

Response was Yes

iv.

If the answer to Question 1.c.iii is “yes”, has the school
made all of the required payments under the payment
plan as of audited fiscal year end (June 30t)?

N/A

Response Was not Yes

d. Corporation Commission (e.g., annual report)? Charter

Yes
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Contract

2.

Was a copy of the adopted budget signed by the Governing
Board and filed with the Superintendent of Public Instruction
by July 18%? A.R.S. §15-905 (B) and (E) and §15-183 (E)(6)

Yes

Was the Annual Financial Report (AFR) sent to the
Superintendent of Public Instruction by October 15%? A.R.S.
§15-183 (E) (6) and 15-904 (A) ‘

Yes

Special Education

1.

Is the staff the school uses to provide special education services
(internal or contracted) certified in special education?

Yes

2.

Does the school conduct 45 day screenings on all new
students? AAC R7-2-401

Yes

3.

Are evaluations and IEPs on file for special education students?
34 CFR 300.341-350 and 300.531-536

Yes

Classroom Site Fund - A.R.S. §15-977 & OAG Memorandum

#44

1.

Did the School properly allocate Classroom Site Fund receipts
among the following projects: 1011 —Base Salary (20%), 1012 —
Performance Pay (40%), and 1013 —Other (40%)?

Yes

For Project 1011, were expenses only for teacher base salary
increases and employment-related expenses?

Yes

For Project 1012, were expenses only for performance-based
teacher compensation increases and employment-related
expenses?

Yes

For Project 1013, were expenses only for class size reduction,
teacher compensation increases, AIMS intervention programs,
teacher development, dropout prevention programs, and
teacher liability insurance premiums?

Yes

Did the School use Classroom Site monies to supplement rather
than supplant, existing funding from all other sources? (See
USFRCS Memorandum No. 44 for guidance for Classroom Site
Projects.)

Yes

If the School had monies remaining at year-end, were they
properly carried forward in the three Classroom Site Projects
(1011, 1012, and 1013) to help ensure that the restrictions placed
on the original allocation of revenues is applied in future
years?

Yes

Did the School have sufficient cash at year- end to cover the
carry over monies?

Yes

Student Attendance Reporting

If test work performed in questions 3-15 and 18 of this section
discloses a net overstatement or understatement of membership
and/or absence days, report the net overstatement or
understatement in the “Comments” column.
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Yes/No

Comments

1. Was school in session for at least 180 days or 144 days for
schools operating on a 4-day week, or did the governing board
adopt a calendar with an equivalent number of minutes of
instruction per school year based on a different number of days
of instruction and were membership and attendance recorded
for each day school was in session? A.R.S. §§15-902 (H), (I),
and (J) and 15-341.01

Yes

2. Did the School ensure that:
(Note: Instruction hours do not include periods of the day in
which an instructional program or course of study is not being
offered, including, but not limited to, lunch, recesses, home
room periods, study hall periods, and early release or late start
hours. ADE’s School Finance Procedures Manual)

a. Kindergarten was in session for at least 356 hours? A.R.S.
§15-901(A)(2)

Yes

b. Grades 1 through 3 were in session for at least 712 hours?
AR.S. §15-901(A)(2)

Yes

c. Grades 4 through 6 were in session for at least 890 hours?
AR.S. §15-901(A)(2)

Yes

d. Grades 7 and 8 were in session for at least 1,000 hours?
A.R.S. §15-901(A)(2)

Yes

e. For high school, a full-time instructional program meets at
least 720 hours during the minimum number of days
required? A.R.S. §15-901(A)(2)

Yes

f. For high school, a full-time instructional program includes
at least four subjects, each of which if taught each school
day for the minimum number of days required in a school
year, would meet a minimum of 123 hours a year; or any
number of subjects totaling at least 20 hours per week,
prorated for any week with fewer than 5 school days?
A.R.S. §15-901(A)(2)

Yes

For Student Attendance Reporting questions 3-15, the audit firm
must select and test the specified number of transactions (records,
entries, withdrawals, or days) as shown in the sample size
instructions before each section. That sample should include 3 or
more grade levels and 3 or more campuses, where applicable. The
listed sample sizes represent the minimum level of required test work.
The audit firm should use its judgment in determining whether a
larger sample is needed. All student attendance records tested in
steps 3-10 and 15 should be selected from the 100™ day reporting
period.

In the parentheses provided in questions 3-15, indicate the actual
number of transactions tested. If all transactions were tested, indicate
such in the “Comments” column.
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For questions 3-5 select at least 3 student attendance records.

3. If the School had an early (pre-)kindergarten program, based
upon review of (_0_) early (pre-) kindergarten students’
attendance records, did the School only calculate and submit
ADM data to ADE for this program if the program was
designed to advance students to the first grade at the end of the
of the school year? A.R.S.§15-901(A)(2)(a)(i) and USFRCS
Memorandum No. 33

N/A

No early kindergarten.

4. Based upon review of (_3__) students’ attendance records in
kindergarten programs with instructional time between 356
and 692 hours a year, were students not in attendance for at
least three-quarters of the day counted as being absent? If the
instructional time for the year was 692 hours or more, were
students not in attendance at least one-half of the day counted
as being absent? A.R.S.§§15-901(A)(2)(a)(i) and 15-
901(A)(6)(a)(1)

Yes

5. If the School had an early first grade program, based upon
review of (_0__) early first grade students’ attendance records,
did the School calculate and submit ADM for this program as it
would for kindergarten in accordance with ADE’s School
Finance Procedures Manual? A.R.S. §15-901(A)(2)(b)(i) and
USFRCS Memorandum No. 33

N/A

No early first grade.

For questions 6 and 7, use the following sample sizes:

Student Attendance
SCHOOLWIDE ADM Records

<1,000 5
1,000-5,000 10
>5,000 15

6. Based on review of (0) students’ attendance records at
elementary and junior high schools, in which attendance was
based on half days, were students in attendance for less than
one-half the day counted as being absent for one full day?
Were students in attendance for at least one-half day, but less
than three-quarters of a day, counted as being absent for one-
half day? Were students in attendance for at least three-
quarters of a day counted in attendance for a day?
A.R.S. §15-901(A)(6)(b)(ii)

N/A

Attendance based on
quarter days.
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Based upon review of (5) students’ attendance records at
elementary and junior high schools where attendance was
based on quarter days, were students in attendance for more
than three-quarters of the day counted in attendance for a day?
Were students in attendance for three-quarters of the day or
less counted in attendance for each quarter of the day in
attendance? A.R.S. §15-901(A)(6)(b)(i)

Yes

For questions 8 through 12, use the following sample sizes:

8.

SCHOOLWIDE
ADM Student Attendance Records

<1,000 3
1,000-5,000 5
>5,000 7

For schools approved to report minutes of attendance, based
upon review of the attendance records for a 1 month period for
(0) students whose attendance was reported in minutes, did the
School report minutes of attendance only for actual classroom
instruction attended by the students in accordance with ADE's
School Finance Procedures Manual?

N/A

Attendance based on
quarter days.

Based upon review of (3) high school students’ records whose
attendance was reported in terms of absences, for all absence
days reported in a 1 month period, did the School report the
absences in accordance with the method(s) provided in ADE’s
School Finance Procedures Manual?

Yes

10.

Based upon review of (3) high school students’ attendance
records, did the School prorate the membership of the high
school students enrolled in less than four subjects as provided
in ADE’s School Finance Procedures Manual?

Yes
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11. For schools offering an Arizona Online Instruction (AQI)
Program, based upon a review of (_0_) AOI students’
attendance records for 4 weeks:

a. Was the guardian-approved or School computer-generated

daily log describing the amount of time spent by the | N/A No AQI program.
student on academic tasks maintained by the participating
AOI School? A.R.S. §15-808(E)

b. Did the hours reported to ADE agree to the guardian-
approved or School computer-generated daily log? N/A No AOI program.

c. Were all pupils who participated in an AOI Program
residents of this State? A.R.S. §15-808 N/A No AQI program.

12. Based upon review of (3) students’ attendance records (all
grades) for students withdrawn for having 10 consecutive
unexcused absences, was the student only counted in Yes
membership through the last day of actual attendance?

A.R.S. §15-901(A)(2)

For questions 13 and 14, use the following sample sizes:
SCHOOLWIDE
ADM Entries/Withdrawals
<1,000 5
1,000-5,000 10
>5,000 15

13. Based upon review of (5) entries: (Note: Enrollment forms are

not required for continuing students at the same school.)

a. Were entry dates entered into the School’s computerized
attendance system within 5 working days after the actual | YeS
date of entry and was documentation maintained to
support the date of data entry?

b. Did the entry date in the computerized attendance system
agree to the entry form? Yes

c. Did the teacher’s attendance registers, if used, and other
documentation support the entry date in the computerized | YeS
attendance system?

d. Did membership for continuing/pre-enrolled students
begin with either the first day of actual attendance or the | Ye8

first day that classroom instruction was offered, provided
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that the students actually attend within the first 10 days of
school? For all other students, did membership begin with
the first day of actual attendance? ADE's School Finance
Procedures Manual

14. Based upon review of (5) withdrawals:

a. Were the withdrawal dates entered into the School’s
computerized attendance system within 5 working days
after the actual date of withdrawal and was documentation
maintained to support the date of data entry? (Note: “Day
of withdrawal” means: a.) the later of the student’s
withdrawal date or the day the school is notified the
student will not be returning; or b.) the 10* day of non-
attendance for students withdrawn for having ten
consecutive unexcused absences.)

Yes

b. Did the withdrawal date in the attendance system agree to
the withdrawal form? (Note: If the computerized
attendance system requires the school to input the first day
of non-attendance for a student to be counted in
membership through the last day of actual attendance, the
withdrawal date on the system should be the school day
following the withdrawal date on the form.)

Yes

c. Did the teachers’ attendance registers, if used, and other
supporting documentation support the withdrawal date in
the computerized attendance system?

Yes

d. Was an Official Notice of Pupil Withdrawal form prepared
and retained for each withdrawal and signed by a school
administrator? A.R.S. §15-827

Yes

For question 15, use the following sample sizes:

SCHOOLWIDE
ADM Days

<1,000 3
1,000-5,000 5
>5,000 7

15. Based upon review of (3) days for various campuses, grades,
and classes in the computerized attendance system; did the
student absences from each day agree to the teachers’
attendance registers, absence slips, or other supporting
documentation, if used?

Yes
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16.

Did the school have adequate electronic or manual controls in
place to ensure that any changes to the original record of
student attendance data were properly authorized and
documented, including the names or identification numbers of
the persons making and authorizing the changes?

Yes

17.

Was the School’s membership/absence information submitted
to ADE electronically at least once every 20 school days
through the last day of instruction (with the first 20 day period
beginning the first day of school or the opening of SAIS for
current fiscal year data submission, whichever is later)? A.R.S.
§15-1042(H)

Yes

18.

Based upon review of the School's 40% and 100% day
information uploaded to ADE, did the membership and
absences agree with the School's computerized attendance
system records? (Note: For an AQI program, review year-end
attendance information.)

Yes

Yes/No

Comments

Open Meeting Law A.R.S. § 38-431.01 and § 38-431.02 (See also
Attorney General Opinion 100-009)

1.

Beginning July 29, 2010, did the school conspicuously post a
statement on its website stating where all public notices of its
meetings will be posted, including the physical and electronic
locations? Laws 2010, Chapter 88 ?

Yes

Beginning July 29, 2010, did the school post all public meeting
notices on its website? Laws 2010, Chapter 88

Yes

Did the school maintain a record of notices that includes a copy
of each notice that was posted and information regarding the
date, time and place of posting?

Yes

Were notices and agenda of public meetings posted at least 24
hours before the meeting?

Yes

Were written minutes prepared or a recording made of
Governing Body meetings?

Yes

Insurance Requirements A.R.S. §15-183(M)

Does the school have the required insurance for liability and property

loss?

Yes
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Tuition A.R.S. §15-185 (B)(6) (See also Attorney General Opinion I98-
007) and Laws 2010, 7" S.S., Ch. 8, Sec. 16

Did the school refrain from charging fees that may be considered

tuition other than as provided for in A.R.S. §15-185(B)(6) Yes
[nonresidents] and Laws 2010, 7t S.S., Ch. 8, Sec. 16 [full-day
kindergarten for fiscal year 2011 only]?
Records Management
1. Did the school retain records in accordance with the Records
Retention and Disposition for Arizona School Districts Manual | Yes
published by the Arizona State Library, Archives and Public
Records (based on the testing conducted during the course of
the audit)?
2. Was adequate documentation retained to support amounts in
the financial statements (if the school is not the primary Yes

reporting entity - was adequate documentation retained to
support revenue and expenses in the charter school)?

This Questionnaire was completed in accordance with the minimum audit

instructions on pages 2 and 3.

Klecka, Wilkins & Klecka

Audit Firm

Preparer’s Signature (Audit Firm Representative)
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INSTRUCTIONS

NOTE: This questionnaire should only be used for schools that are exempt from the
Uniform System of Financial Records for Arizona Charter Schools (schools that
HAVE an exception). If a school is subject to procurement requirements pursuant to
A.R.S. §15-189.02 and 41-2535(A), this questionnaire should be used in conjunction
with the Procurement Compliance Questionnaire (see audit guidelines memo dated
6/13/2011) which is available on the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools” website
http://asbes.az.gov.

In order to determine whether a charter school that is exempt from the requirements of
the Uniform System of Financial Records for Arizona Charter Schools (USFRCS) is
complying with applicable legal requirements, the auditors must complete the following
Legal Compliance Questionnaire (Note: This questionnaire is not comprehensive of all
legal requirements for charter schools. As such, this document should not be the sole
reference to determine all laws and regulations that are applicable to charter schools).

The following prescribed minimum audit standards for completing the Legal
Compliance Questionnaire must be used in all audits. The State Board for Charter
Schools may reject audits not meeting these standards.

¢ Sufficient, appropriate evidence must be obtained annually for each question to
satisfactorily determine whether the school complies with the legal requirements,
and the evidence must be included in the audit documentation. '

¢ Evidence may be obtained through test work, observation, examination, and client
assertion. However, client assertion alone is not adequate evidence to support “Yes”
answers to the questionnaire.

¢ Population size should be considered in determining the number of items to test,
and the items selected should be representative of the population.

¢ The number of items tested must be sufficient to determine whether a deficiency was
the result of an isolated incident or a recurring problem. Therefore, testing one
transaction, record, or item is not sufficient.

¢ The sample size should be expanded if the audit firm cannot clearly determine
whether the school complies with the legal requirements of the question.

¢ If sufficient evidence has been obtained and documented during the current audit,
that evidence may be referenced to answer questions.
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¢ All “No” and “N/A” answers must be adequately explained in the comments
column or in an attachment. Findings must be described in sufficient detail to enable
the State Board for Charter Schools to describe the finding in a letter. The
description should include the number of items tested and the number of exceptions
noted.

¢ A “Yes” answer indicates that the audit firm has determined that the school
complies with the legal requirements of the question and a “No” answer indicates
the school does not comply. However, the final determination of compliance on
each question, as well as overall compliance with legal requirements, is made by the
State Board for Charter Schools based on the evidence presented in the
questionnaire, audit reports, the audit documentation, and any other sources.

The resulting audit documentation supporting the audit firm’s answers to the Legal
Compliance Questionnaire must be made available on request for review by the State
Board for Charter Schools. To facilitate this review, the audit firm may wish to include
in the audit documentation a copy of the questionnaire containing references to audit
procedures performed for each question.
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Legal Compliance Questionnaire

Questions/Subject Area Yes/No | Comments

Personnel

1. Did the school have valid fingerprint clearance cards (FCC) for
100% of the required personnel as of the testing date? A.R.S. Yes
§15-183 (C)(5) and A.R.S. §15-512(H)

(QUESTIONS #2a THROUGH 2c ONLY APPLY TO NEW HIRES
REQUIRED PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §15-183(C)(5) TO HAVE
VALID FCCS AND DO NOT APPLY IF AN INDIVIDUAL’S FCC
HAS EXPIRED.)

2. For each individual referenced in #1 that did not have a valid
FCC, please provide the following information (provide
supplemental pages, if necessary) (See agency guidance
available on the Board’s website prior to completing these
questions)A.R.S. §15-183(C)(5):

a. Was an application for a FCC on file with the Department | N/A All required personnel had

of Public Safety (DPS) as of the testing date? FCCs.
b. Did DPS receive the application prior to the hire date? N/A All required personnel had
FCCs.

c. Prior to placement, did the school do all of the following?

i) Document the necessity for hiring/ placing the N/A All required personnel had
individual prior to receiving a FCC? FCCs.
if) Obtain statewide criminal history information on the N/A All required personnel had
individual? FCCs.
ifi) Obtain references from the applicant’s current and N/A All required personnel had
previous employers? FCCs.
3. Did the charter school maintain up-to-date fingerprints of
all governing board members as of the testing date? Yes
Charter Contract!
4. Were all other personnel fingerprint checked as of the
testing date? A.R.S. §15-183 (C)(5) and A.R.S. §15-512 Yes

5. Did the charter school inform the parents and guardians of
pupils enrolled in the school of the availability of resume
information for all employees who provide instruction to Yes
pupils? A.R.S. §15-183 (F)

! Specific contract cites could not be provided as term references vary per contract year.
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Yes/No | Comments
Required Filings
1. Is the school in good standing with the following regulatory
bodies:

a. Internal Revenue Service U.S.C. Title 26

i.

For payroll taxes, income taxes (if applicable) and
applicable tax forms required to be filed during the
audited fiscal year?

Yes

The school did not have any payroll or income taxes
payable from a prior year(s) as of audited fiscal year
end (June 30t) is a true statement.

Yes

iii. If the response to 1.a.i, 1.a.ii, or both is “no”, does the

school have a payment plan in place with the Internal
Revenue Service?

N/A

Response was Yes

iv. If the answer to Question 1.a.iii is “yes”, has the school

made all of the required payments under the payment
plan as of audited fiscal year end (June 30th)?

N/A

Response was not Yes

b. Arizona Department of Revenue A.R.S. §43-401 and §43-
1111

i.

For payroll taxes, state income taxes (if applicable) and
applicable tax forms required to be filed during the
audited fiscal year?

Yes

The school did not have any payroll or income taxes
payable from a prior year(s) as of audited fiscal year
end (June 30t) is a true statement.

Yes

iii. If the response to 1.b.i, 1.b.ii, or both is “no”, does the

school have a payment plan in place with the Arizona
Department of Revenue?

N/A

Response was Yes

iv. If the answer to Question 1.b.iii is “yes”, has the school

made all of the required payments under the payment
plan as of audited fiscal year end (June 30t)?

N/A

Response was not Yes

c. Arizona Department of Economic Security A.R.S. § 23-721
et seq.

i.

State unemployment contributions requirements for the
audited fiscal year?

Yes

The school did not have any state unemployment
contributions payable from a prior year(s) as of audited
fiscal year end (June 30%) is a true statement.

Yes

ifi. If the response to 1.c.i, 1.c.ii, or both is “no”, does the

school have a payment plan in place with the Arizona
Department of Economic Security?

N/A

Response was Yes

iv. If the answer to Question 1.c.iii is “yes”, has the school

made all of the required payments under the payment
plan as of audited fiscal year end (June 30t)?

N/A

Response was not Yes

d. Corporation Commission (e.g., annual report)? Charter

Yes
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Contract

2.

Was a copy of the adopted budget signed by the Governing
Board and filed with the Superintendent of Public Instruction
by July 18%? A.R.S. §15-905 (B) and (E) and §15-183 (E)(6)

Yes

Was the Annual Financial Report (AFR) sent to the
Superintendent of Public Instruction by October 15%? A.R.S.
§15-183 (E) (6) and 15-904 (A)

Yes

Special Education

o

Is the staff the school uses to provide special education services
(internal or contracted) certified in special education?

Yes

2.

Does the school conduct 45 day screenings on all new
students? AAC R7-2-401

Yes

3.

Are evaluations and IEPs on file for special education students?
34 CFR 300.341-350 and 300.531-536

Yes

Classroom Site Fund - A.R.S. §15-977 & OAG Memorandum

#44

1.

Did the School properly allocate Classroom Site Fund receipts
among the following projects: 1011— Base Salary (20%), 1012
Performance Pay (40%), and 1013 —Other (40%)?

Yes

For Project 1011, were expenses only for teacher base salary
increases and employment-related expenses?

Yes

For Project 1012, were expenses only for performance-based
teacher compensation increases and employment-related
expenses?

Yes

For Project 1013, were expenses only for class size reduction,
teacher compensation increases, AIMS intervention programs,
teacher development, dropout prevention programs, and
teacher liability insurance premiums?

Yes

Did the School use Classroom Site monies to supplement rather
than supplant, existing funding from all other sources? (See
USFRCS Memorandum No. 44 for guidance for Classroom Site
Projects.)

Yes

If the School had monies remaining at year-end, were they
properly carried forward in the three Classroom Site Projects
(1011, 1012, and 1013) to help ensure that the restrictions placed
on the original allocation of revenues is applied in future
years?

Yes

Did the School have sufficient cash at year- end to cover the
carry over monies?

Yes

Student Attendance Reporting

If test work performed in questions 3-15 and 18 of this section
discloses a net overstatement or understatement of membership
and/or absence days, report the net overstatement or
understatement in the “Comments” column.
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Yes/No

Comments

1. Was school in session for at least 180 days or 144 days for
schools operating on a 4-day week, or did the governing board
adopt a calendar with an equivalent number of minutes of
instruction per school year based on a different number of days
of instruction and were membership and attendance recorded
for each day school was in session? A.R.S. §§15-902 (H), (I),
and (]) and 15-341.01

Yes

2. Did the School ensure that:
(Note: Instruction hours do not include periods of the day in
which an instructional program or course of study is not being
offered, including, but not limited to, lunch, recesses, home
room periods, study hall periods, and early release or late start
hours. ADE’s School Finance Procedures Manual)

a. Kindergarten was in session for at least 356 hours? A.R.S.
§15-901(A)(2)

Yes

b. Grades 1 through 3 were in session for at least 712 hours?
AR.S. §15-901(A)(2)

Yes

c. Grades 4 through 6 were in session for at least 890 hours?
A.R.S. §15-901(A)(2)

Yes

d. Grades 7 and 8 were in session for at least 1,000 hours?
A.R.S. §15-901(A)(2)

Yes

e. For high school, a full-time instructional program meets at
least 720 hours during the minimum number of days
required? A.R.S. §15-901(A)(2)

Yes

f. For high school, a full-time instructional program includes
at least four subjects, each of which if taught each school
day for the minimum number of days required in a school
year, would meet a minimum of 123 hours a year; or any
number of subjects totaling at least 20 hours per week,
prorated for any week with fewer than 5 school days?
A.R.S. §15-901(A)(2)

Yes

For Student Attendance Reporting questions 3-15, the audit firm
must select and test the specified number of transactions (records,
entries, withdrawals, or days) as shown in the sample size
instructions before each section. That sample should include 3 or
more grade levels and 3 or more campuses, where applicable. The
listed sample sizes represent the minimum level of required test work.
The audit firm should use its judgment in determining whether a
larger sample is needed. All student attendance records tested in
steps 3-10 and 15 should be selected from the 100™ day reporting
period.

In the parentheses provided in questions 3-15, indicate the actual
number of transactions tested. If all transactions were tested, indicate
such in the “Comments” column.
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For questions 3-5 select at least 3 student attendance records.

3. If the School had an early (pre-)kindergarten program, based
upon review of (_0_) early (pre-) kindergarten students’
attendance records, did the School only calculate and submit
ADM data to ADE for this program if the program was
designed to advance students to the first grade at the end of the
of the school year? A.R.S. §15-901(A)(2)(2)(i) and USFRCS
Memorandum No. 33

N/A

No early kindergarten.

4. Based upon review of (__3_) students’ attendance records in
kindergarten programs with instructional time between 356
and 692 hours a year, were students not in attendance for at
least three-quarters of the day counted as being absent? If the
instructional time for the year was 692 hours or more, were
students not in attendance at least one-half of the day counted
as * being absent? AR.S. §§15-901(A)(2)(a)(i) and 15-
901(A)(6)(a)({)

Yes

5. If the School had an early first grade program, based upon
review of (_0_) early first grade students’ attendance records,
did the School calculate and submit ADM for this program as it
would for kindergarten in accordance with ADE's School
Finance Procedures Manual? A.R.S. §15-901(A)(2)(b)(i) and
USFRCS Memorandum No. 33

N/A

No early first grade.

For questions 6 and 7, use the following sample sizes:

Student Attendance
SCHOOLWIDE ADM Records
<1,000 5
1,000-5,000 10
>5,000 15

6. Based on review of (0) students’ attendance records at
elementary and junior high schools, in which attendance was
based on half days, were students in attendance for less than
one-half the day counted as being absent for one full day?
Were students in attendance for at least one-half day, but less
than three-quarters of a day, counted as being absent for one-
half day? Were students in attendance for at least three-
quarters of a day counted in attendance for a day?
A.R.S. §15-901(A)(6) (b)(ii)

N/A

Attendance is based on
quarter days.
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Based upon review of (_5__) students’ attendance records at
elementary and jumior high schools where attendance was
based on quarter days, were students in attendance for more
than three-quarters of the day counted in attendance for a day?
Were students in attendance for three-quarters of the day or
less counted in attendance for each quarter of the day in
attendance? A.R.S. §15-901(A)(6)(b)(i)

Yes

For questions 8 through 12, use the following sample sizes:

8.

SCHOOLWIDE
ADM Student Attendance Records

<1,000 3
1,000-5,000 5
>5,000 7

For schools approved to report minutes of attendance, based
upon review of the attendance records for a 1 month period for
(_0_) students whose attendance was reported in minutes, did
the School report minutes of attendance only for actual
classroom instruction attended by the students in accordance
with ADE's School Finance Procedures Manual?

N/A

Attendance is based on
quarter days.

Based upon review of (_3_) high school students’ records
whose attendance was reported in terms of absences, for all
absence days reported in a 1 month period, did the School
report the absences in accordance with the method(s) provided
in ADE’s School Finance Procedures Manual?

Yes

10.

Based upon review of (_3__) high school students’ attendance
records, did the School prorate the membership of the high
school students enrolled in less than four subjects as provided
in ADE'’s School Finance Procedures Manual?

Yes
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11. For schools offering an Arizona Online Instruction (AQI)
Program, based upon a review of ((0_) AOI students’
attendance records for 4 weeks:

a. Was the guardian-approved or School computer-generated

daily log describing the amount of time spent by the | N/A No AQOI program.
student on academic tasks maintained by the participating
AOQI School? A.R.S. §15-808(E)

b. Did the hours reported to ADE agree to the guardian-
approved or School computer-generated daily log? N/A No AOI program.

c. Were all pupils who participated in an AOI Program
residents of this State? A.R.S. §15-808 N/A No AOI program.

12. Based upon review of (3) students’ attendance records (all
grades) for students withdrawn for having 10 consecutive
unexcused absences, was the student only counted in Yes
membership through the last day of actual attendance?

ARS. §15-901(A)(2)

For questions 13 and 14, use the following sample sizes:
SCHOOLWIDE
ADM Entries/Withdrawals
<1,000 5
1,000-5,000 10
>5,000 15

13. Based upon review of (6) entries: (Note: Enrollment forms are

not required for continuing students at the same school.)

a. Were entry dates entered into the School’s computerized
attendance system within 5 working days after the actual Yes
date of entry and was documentation maintained to
support the date of data entry?

b. Did the entry date in the computerized attendance system
agree to the entry form? Yes

c. Did the teacher’s attendance registers, if used, and other
documentation support the entry date in the computerized Yes
attendance system?

d. Did membership for continuing/pre-enrolled students "

es

begin with either the first day of actual attendance or the
first day that classroom instruction was offered, provided
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that the students actually attend within the first 10 days of
school? For all other students, did membership begin with
the first day of actual attendance? ADE's School Finance
Procedures Manual

14. Based upon review of (6) withdrawals:

a. Were the withdrawal dates entered into the School’s
computerized attendance system within 5 working days
after the actual date of withdrawal and was documentation
maintained to support the date of data entry? (Note: “Day
of withdrawal” means: a.) the later of the student’s
withdrawal date or the day the school is notified the
student will not be returning; or b.) the 10% day of non-
attendance for students withdrawn for having ten
consecutive unexcused absences.)

Yes

b. Did the withdrawal date in the attendance system agree to
the withdrawal form? (Note: If the computerized
attendance system requires the school to input the first day
of non-attendance for a student to be counted in
membership through the last day of actual attendance, the
withdrawal date on the system should be the school day
following the withdrawal date on the form.)

Yes

c. Did the teachers’ attendance registers, if used, and other
supporting documentation support the withdrawal date in
the computerized attendance system?

Yes

d. Was an Official Notice of Pupil Withdrawal form prepared
and retained for each withdrawal and signed by a school
administrator? A.R.S. §15-827

Yes

For question 15, use the following sample sizes:

SCHOOLWIDE
ADM Days

<1,000 3
1,000-5,000 5
>5,000 7

15. Based upon review of (3) days for various campuses, grades,
and classes in the computerized attendance system, did the
student absences from each day agree to the teachers’
attendance registers, absence slips, or other supporting
documentation, if used?

Yes
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16.

Did the school have adequate electronic or manual controls in
place to ensure that any changes to the original record of
student attendance data were properly authorized and
documented, including the names or identification numbers of
the persons making and authorizing the changes?

Yes

17.

Was the School’s membership/absence information submitted
to ADE electronically at least once every 20 school days
through the last day of instruction (with the first 20 day period
beginning the first day of school or the opening of SAIS for
current fiscal year data submission, whichever is later)? A.R.S.
§15-1042(H)

Yes

18.

Based upon review of the School's 40t and 100% day
information uploaded to ADE, did the membership and
absences agree with the School's computerized attendance
system records? (Note: For an AOI program, review year-end
attendance information.)

Yes

Yes/No

Comments

Open Meeting Law A.R.S. § 38-431.01 and § 38-431.02 (See also
Attorney General Opinion 100-009)

1.

Beginning July 29, 2010, did the school conspicuously post a
statement on its website stating where all public notices of its
meetings will be posted, including the physical and electronic
locations? Laws 2010, Chapter 88 ?

Yes

Beginning July 29, 2010, did the school post all public meeting
notices on its website? Laws 2010, Chapter 88

Yes

Did the school maintain a record of notices that includes a copy
of each notice that was posted and information regarding the
date, time and place of posting?

Yes

Were notices and agenda of public meetings posted at least 24
hours before the meeting?

Yes

Were written minutes prepared or a recording made of
Governing Body meetings?

Yes

Insurance Requirements A.R.S. §15-183(M)

Does the school have the required insurance for liability and property

loss?

Yes
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Tuition A.R.S. §15-185 (B)(6) (See also Attorney General Opinion I98-
007) and Laws 2010, 7% 8.S., Ch. 8, Sec. 16

Did the school refrain from charging fees that may be considered
tuition other than as provided for in A.R.S. §15-185(B)(6) Yes
[nonresidents] and Laws 2010, 7 S.S., Ch. 8, Sec. 16 [full-day
kindergarten for fiscal year 2011 only]?

Records Management

1. Did the school retain records in accordance with the Records
Retention and Disposition for Arizona School Districts Manual | Yes
published by the Arizona State Library, Archives and Public
Records (based on the testing conducted during the course of
the audit)?

2. Was adequate documentation retained to support amounts in
the financial statements (if the school is not the primary Yes
reporting entity - was adequate documentation retained to
support revenue and expenses in the charter school)?

This Questionnaire was completed in accordance with the minimum audit standards as set forth in the
instructions on pages 2 and 3.

Klecka, Wilkins & Klecka February 27, 2012
Audit Fir Date
Partner
Preparer’s Signature (Audit Firm Representa@ Title
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INSTRUCTIONS

NOTE: This questionnaire should only be used for schools that are exempt from the
Uniform System of Financial Records for Arizona Charter Schools (schools that
HAVE an exception). If a school is subject to procurement requirements pursuant to
A.R.S. §15-189.02 and 41-2535(A), this questionnaire should be used in conjunction
with the Procurement Compliance Questionnaire (see audit guidelines memo dated
6/13/2011) which is available on the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools’ website
http://asbcs.az.gov.

In order to determine whether a charter school that is exempt from the requirements of
the Uniform System of Financial Records for Arizona Charter Schools (USFRCS) is
complying with applicable legal requirements, the auditors must complete the following
Legal Compliance Questionnaire (Note: This questionnaire is not comprehensive of all
legal requirements for charter schools. As such, this document should not be the sole
reference to determine all laws and regulations that are applicable to charter schools).

The following prescribed minimum audit standards for completing the Legal
Compliance Questionnaire must be used in all audits. The State Board for Charter
Schools may reject audits not meeting these standards.

¢ Sufficient, appropriate evidence must be obtained annually for each question to
satisfactorily determine whether the school complies with the legal requirements,
and the evidence must be included in the audit documentation.

¢ Evidence may be obtained through test work, observation, examination, and client
assertion. However, client assertion alone is not adequate evidence to support “Yes”
answers to the questionnaire.

¢ Population size should be considered in determining the number of items to test,
and the items selected should be representative of the population.

¢ The number of items tested must be sufficient to determine whether a deficiency was
the result of an isolated incident or a recurring problem. Therefore, testing one
transaction, record, or item is not sufficient.

¢ The sample size should be expanded if the audit firm cannot clearly determine
whether the school complies with the legal requirements of the question.

¢ If sufficient evidence has been obtained and documented during the current audit,
that evidence may be referenced to answer questions.
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¢ All “No” and “N/A” answers must be adequately explained in the comments
column or in an attachment. Findings must be described in sufficient detail to enable
the State Board for Charter Schools to describe the finding in a letter. The
description should include the number of items tested and the number of exceptions
noted.

¢ A “Yes” answer indicates that the audit firm has determined that the school
complies with the legal requirements of the question and a “No” answer indicates
the school does not comply. However, the final determination of compliance on
each question, as well as overall compliance with legal requirements, is made by the
State Board for Charter Schools based on the evidence presented in the
questionnaire, audit reports, the audit documentation, and any other sources.

The resulting audit documentation supporting the audit firm’s answers to the Legal
Compliance Questionnaire must be made available on request for review by the State
Board for Charter Schools. To facilitate this review, the audit firm may wish to include
in the audit documentation a copy of the questionnaire containing references to audit
procedures performed for each question.
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Legal Compliance Questionnaire

Questions/Subject Area Yes/No | Comments

Personnel

1. Did the school have valid fingerprint clearance cards (FCC) for
100% of the required personnel as of the testing date? ARS. Yes
§15-183 (C)(5) and A.R.S. §15-512(H)

(QUESTIONS #2a THROUGH 2c ONLY APPLY TO NEW HIRES
REQUIRED PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §15-183(C)(5) TO HAVE
VALID FCCS AND DO NOT APPLY IF AN INDIVIDUAL'S FCC
HAS EXPIRED.)

2. For each individual referenced in #1 that did not have a valid
FCC, please provide the following information (provide
supplemental pages, if necessary) (See agency guidance
available on the Board's website prior to completing these
questions)A.R.S. §15-183(C)(5):

a. Was an application for a FCC on file with the Department N/A All required personnel had

of Public Safety (DPS) as of the testing date? FCCs.
b. Did DPS receive the application prior to the hire date? N/A All required personnel had
FCCs.
c. Prior to placement, did the school do all of the following?
i) Document the necessity for hiring/placing the N/A All required personnel had
individual prior to receiving a FCC? FCCs.
ii) Obtain statewide criminal history information on the N/A All required personnel had
individual? FCCs.
jif) Obtain references from the applicant’s current and N/A All required personnel had
previous employers? FCCs.
3. Did the charter school maintain up-to-date fingerprints of
all governing board members as of the testing date? Yes
Charter Contract?
4. Were all other personnel fingerprint checked as of the
testing date? A.R.S. §15-183 (C)(5) and A.R.S. §15-512 Yes

5. Did the charter school inform the parents and guardians of
pupils enrolled in the school of the availability of resume
information for all employees who provide instruction to Yes
pupils? A.R.S. §15-183 (F)

! Specific contract cites could not be provided as term references vary per contract year.
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Yes/No

Comments

Required Filings

1. Isthe

school in good standing with the following regulatory

bodies:

a. Internal Revenue Service U.S.C. Title 26

i

For payroll taxes, income taxes (if applicable) and
applicable tax forms required to be filed during the
audited fiscal year?

Yes

The school did not have any payroll or income taxes
payable from a prior year(s) as of audited fiscal year
end (June 30%) is a true statement.

Yes

iii, If the response to 1l.a.i, 1.a.ii, or both is “no”, does the

school have a payment plan in place with the Internal
Revenue Service?

N/A

Response was Yes.

iv.

If the answer to Question 1.a.iii is “yes”, has the school
made all of the required payments under the payment
plan as of audited fiscal year end (June 30%)?

N/A

Response was not Yes.

b. Arizona Department of Revenue A.R.S. §43-401 and §43-
1111

i

For payroll taxes, state income taxes (if applicable) and
applicable tax forms required to be filed during the
audited fiscal year?

Yes

The school did not have any payroll or income taxes
payable from a prior year(s) as of audited fiscal year
end (June 30%) is a true statement.

Yes

iii. If the response to 1.b.i, 1.b.ii, or both is “no”, does the

school have a payment plan in place with the Arizona
Department of Revenue?

N/A

Response was Yes.

iv. If the answer to Question 1.b.iii is “yes”, has the school

made all of the required payments under the payment
plan as of audited fiscal year end (June 30)?

N/A

Response was not Yes.

c. Arizona Department of Economic Security A.R.S. § 23-721
et seq.

1.

State unemployment contributions requirements for the
audited fiscal year?

Yes

The school did not have any state unemployment
contributions payable from a prior year(s) as of audited
fiscal year end (June 30t) is a true statement.

Yes

iii, If the response to 1.c.i, 1.c.ii, or both is “no”, does the

school have a payment plan in place with the Arizona
Department of Economic Security?

N/A

Response was Yes.

iv. If the answer to Question 1.c.iii is “yes”, has the school

made all of the required payments under the payment
plan as of audited fiscal year end (June 30t)?

N/A

Response was not Yes.

d. Corporation Commission (e.g., annual report)? Charter

Yes
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-

Contract

2.

Was a copy of the adopted budget signed by the Governing
Board and filed with the Superintendent of Public Instruction
by July 18%? A.R.S. §15-905 (B) and (E) and §15-183 (E)(6)

Yes

Was the Annual Financial Report (AFR) sent to the
Superintendent of Public Instruction by October 1547 A.R.S.
§15-183 (E) (6) and 15-904 (A)

Yes

Special Education

s

Is the staff the school uses to provide special education services
(internal or contracted) certified in special education?

Yes

Z

Does the school conduct 45 day screenings on all new
students? AAC R7-2401

Yes

3.

Are evaluations and IEPs on file for special education students?
34 CFR 300.341-350 and 300.531-536

Yes

#44

Classroom Site Fund - A.R.S. §15-977 & OAG Memorandum

1.

Did the School properly allocate Classroom Site Fund receipts
among the following projects: 1011—Base Salary (20%), 1012—
Performance Pay (40%), and 1013 —Other (40%)?

Yes

For Project 1011, were expenses only for teacher base salary
increases and employment-related expenses?

Yes

For Project 1012, were expenses only for performance-based
teacher compensation increases and employment-related
expenses?

Yes

For Project 1013, were expenses only for class size reduction,
teacher compensation increases, AIMS intervention programs,
teacher development, dropout prevention programs, and
teacher liability insurance premiums?

Yes

Did the School use Classroom Site monies to supplement rather
than supplant, existing funding from all other sources? (See
USFRCS Memorandum No. 44 for guidance for Classroom Site
Projects.)

Yes

If the School had monies remaining at year-end, were they
properly carried forward in the three Classroom Site Projects
(1011, 1012, and 1013) to help ensure that the restrictions placed
on the original allocation of revenues is applied in future

years?

Yes

Did the School have sufficient cash at year- end to cover the
carry over monies?

Yes

Student Attendance Reporting

If test work performed in questions 3-15 and 18 of this section
discloses a net overstatement or understatement of membership
and/or absence days, report the net overstatement or
understatement in the “Comments” column.
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Yes/No

Comments

1. Was school in session for at least 180 days or 144 days for
schools operating on a 4-day week, or did the governing board
adopt a calendar with an equivalent number of minutes of
instruction per school year based on a different number of days
of instruction and were membership and attendance recorded
for each day school was in session? A.R.S. §§15-902 (H), (1),
and (J) and 15-341.01

Yes

2. Did the School ensure that:
(Note: Instruction hours do not include periods of the day in
which an instructional program or course of study is not being
offered, including, but not limited to, lunch, recesses, home
room periods, study hall periods, and early release or late start
hours. ADE’s School Finance Procedures Manual)

a. Kindergarten was in session for at least 356 hours? A.R.S.
§15-901(A)(2)

Yes

b. Grades 1 through 3 were in session for at least 712 hours?
AR.S. §15-901(A)(2)

Yes

c. Grades 4 through 6 were in session for at least 890 hours?
ARS. §15-901(A)(2)

Yes

d. Grades 7 and 8 were in session for at least 1,000 hours?
AR.S. §15-901(A)(2)

Yes

e. For high school, a full-time instructional program meets at
least 720 hours during the minimum number of days
required? A.R.S. §15-901(A)(2) _

N/A

No high school.

f. For high school, a full-time instructional program includes
at least four subjects, each of which if taught each school
day for the minimum number of days required in a school
year, would meet a minimum of 123 hours a year; or any
number of subjects totaling at least 20 hours per week,
prorated for any week with fewer than 5 school days?
A.R.S. §15-901(A)(2)

N/A

No high school.

For Student Attendance Reporting questions 3-15, the audit firm
must select and test the specified number of transactions (records,
entries, withdrawals, or days) as shown in the sample size
instructions before each section. That sample should include 3 or
more grade levels and 3 or more campuses, where applicable. The
listed sample sizes represent the minimum level of required test work.
The audit firm should use its judgment in determining whether a
larger sample is needed. All student attendance records tested in
steps 3-10 and 15 should be selected from the 100™ day reporting
period.

In the parentheses provided in questions 3-15, indicate the actual
number of transactions tested. If all transactions were tested, indicate
such in the “Comments” column.
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For questions 3-5 select at least 3 student attendance records.

3. If the School had an early (pre-)kindergarten program, based
upon review of ((0_) early (pre-) kindergarten students’
attendance records, did the School only calculate and submit
ADM data to ADE for this program if the program was
designed to advance students to the first grade at the end of the
of the school year? A.R.S.§15-901(A)(2)(a)(i) and USFRCS
Memorandum No. 33

N/A

No early kindergarten.

4. Based upon review of (3) students’ attendance records in
kindergarten programs with instructional time between 356
and 692 hours a year, were students not in attendance for at
least three-quarters of the day counted as being absent? If the
instructional time for the year was 692 hours or more, were
students not in attendance at least one-half of the day counted
as being absent? A.R.S.§§15-901(A)(2)(2)(i) and 15-

901(A)(6)(a) (1)

Yes

5. If the School had an early first grade program, based upon
review of (_0__) early first grade students’ attendance records,
did the School calculate and submit ADM for this program as it
would for kindergarten in accordance with ADE's School
Finance Procedures Manual? AR.S. §15-901(A)(2)(b)(i) and
USFRCS Memorandum No. 33

N/A

No early first grade.

For questions 6 and 7, use the following sample sizes:

Student Attendance
SCHOOLWIDE ADM Records

<1,000 5
1,000-5,000 10
>5,000 15

6. Based on review of (6) students’ attendance records at
elementary and junior high schools, in which attendance was
based on half days, were students in attendance for less than
one-half the day counted as being absent for one full day?
Were students in attendance for at least one-half day, but less
than three-quarters of a day, counted as being absent for one-
half day? Were students in attendance for at least three-
quarters of a day counted in attendance for a day?
AR.S. §15-901(A)(6)(b)(ii)

Yes
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Based upon review of (6) students’ attendance records at
elementary and junior high schools where attendance was
based on quarter days, were students in attendance for more
than three-quarters of the day counted in attendance for a day?
Were students in attendance for three-quarters of the day or
less counted in attendance for each quarter of the day in
attendance? A.R.S. §15-901(A)(6)(b)(1)

N/A

Attendance based on half
days only.

For questions 8 through 12, use the following sample sizes:

8.

SCHOOLWIDE
ADM Student Attendance Records

<1,000 3
1,000-5,000 5
>5,000 7
For schools approved to report minutes of attendance, based
upon review of the attendance records fora 1 month period for
(0) students whose attendance was reported in minutes, did the
School report minutes of attendance only for actual classroom
instruction attended by the students in accordance with ADE's
School Finance Procedures Manual?

N/A

No attendance reported in
minutes.

Based upon review of (0) high school students’ records whose
attendance was reported in terms of absences, for all absence
days reported in a 1 month period, did the School report the
absences in accordance with the method(s) provided in ADE’s
School Finance Procedures Manual?

N/A

No high school students.

10.

Based upon review of (0) high school students’ attendance
records, did the School prorate the membership of the high
school students enrolled in less than four subjects as provided
in ADE's School Finance Procedures Manual?

N/A

No high school students.
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11. For schools offering an Arizona Online Instruction (AOI)
Program, based upon a review of (0) AOI students’ attendance
records for 4 weeks:

a. Was the guardian-approved or School computer-generated

daily log describing the amount of time spent by the | N/A No AOI program.
student on academic tasks maintained by the participating
AOI School? A.R.S. §15-808(E)
b. Did the hours reported to ADE agree to the guardian-
approved or School computer-generated daily log? N/A No AOI program.
c. Were all pupils who participated in an AOI Program
residents of this State? A.R.S. §15-808 N/A No AQI program.
12. Based upon review of (_0_) students’ attendance records (all
grades) for students withdrawn for having 10 consecutive ]
unexcused absences, was the student only counted in N/A No 10 consecutive
membership through the last day of actual attendance? unexcused absences.
A.R.S. §15-901(A)(2)
For questions 13 and 14, use the following sample sizes:
SCHOOLWIDE
ADM Entries/Withdrawals
<1,000 S
1,000-5,000 10
>5,000 15
13. Based upon review of (6) entries: (Note: Enrollment forms are
not required for continuing students at the same school.)
a. Were entry dates entered into the School's computerized
attendance system within 5 working days after the actual Yes
date of entry and was documentation maintained to
support the date of data entry?
b. Did the entry date in the computerized attendance system
agree to the entry form? Yes
c. Did the teacher’s attendance registers, if used, and other
documentation support the entry date in the computerized Yes
attendance system?
d. Did membership for continuing/pre-enrolled students "
es

begin with either the first day of actual attendance or the
first day that classroom instruction was offered, provided
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that the students actually attend within the first 10 days of
school? For all other students, did membership begin with
the first day of actual attendance? ADE’s School Finance
Procedures Manual

14. Based upon review of (6) withdrawals:

a. Were the withdrawal dates entered into the School’s
computerized attendance system within 5 working days
after the actual date of withdrawal and was documentation
maintained to support the date of data entry? (Note: “Day
of withdrawal” means: a.) the later of the student's
withdrawal date or the day the school is notified the
student will not be returning; or b.) the 10t day of non-
attendance for students withdrawn for having ten
consecutive unexcused absences.)

Yes

b. Did the withdrawal date in the attendance system agree to
the withdrawal form? (Note: If the computerized
attendance system requires the school to input the first day
of non-attendance for a student to be counted in
membership through the last day of actual attendance, the
withdrawal date on the system should be the school day
following the withdrawal date on the form.)

Yes

c. Did the teachers’ attendance registers, if used, and other
supporting documentation support the withdrawal date in
the computerized attendance system?

Yes

d. Was an Official Notice of Pupil Withdrawal form prepared
and retained for each withdrawal and signed by a school
administrator? A.R.S. §15-827

Yes

For question 15, use the following sample sizes:

SCHOOLWIDE
ADM Days

<1,000 3
1,000-5,000 5
>5,000 7

15. Based upon review of (3) days for various campuses, grades,
and classes in the computerized attendance system, did the
student absences from each day agree to the teachers’
attendance. registers, absence slips, or other supporting
documentation, if used?

Yes
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16.

Did the school have adequate electronic or manual controls in
place to ensure that any changes to the original record of
student attendance data were properly authorized and
documented, including the names or identification numbers of
the persons making and authorizing the changes?

Yes

17.

Was the School’s membership/absence information submitted
to ADE electronically at least once every 20 school days
through the last day of instruction (with the first 20 day period
beginning the first day of school or the opening of SAIS for
current fiscal year data submission, whichever is later)? A.R.S.
§15-1042(H)

Yes

18.

Based upon review of the School's 40t and 100% day
information uploaded to ADE, did the membership and
absences agree with the School’s computerized attendance
system records? (Note: For an AQI program, review year-end
attendance information.)

Yes

Yes/No

Comments

Open Meeting Law A.R.S. § 38-431.01 and § 38-431.02 (See also
Attorney General Opinion 100-009)

1.

Beginning July 29, 2010, did the school conspicuously post a
statement on its website stating where all public notices of its
meetings will be posted, including the physical and electronic
locations? Laws 2010, Chapter 88 ?

Yes

Beginning July 29, 2010, did the school post all public meeting
notices on its website? Laws 2010, Chapter 88

Yes

Did the school maintain a record of notices that includes a copy
of each notice that was posted and information regarding the
date, time and place of posting?

Yes

Were notices and agenda of public meetings posted at least 24
hours before the meeting?

Yes

Were written minutes prepared or a recording made of
Governing Body meetings?

Yes

Insurance Requirements A.R.S. §15-183(M)

Does the school have the required insurance for liability and property

loss?

Yes
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Tuition A.R.S. §15-185 (B)(6) (See also Attorney General Opinion 198-
007) and Laws 2010, 7" S.S., Ch. 8, Sec. 16

Did the school refrain from charging fees that may be considered
tuition other than as provided for in A.R.S. §15-185(B)(6) Yes
[nonresidents] and Laws 2010, 7t S.S,, Ch. 8, Sec. 16 [full-day
kindergarten for fiscal year 2011 only]?

Records Management

1. Did the school retain records in accordance with the Records
Retention and Disposition for Arizona School Districts Manual | Yes
published by the Arizona State Library, Archives and Public
Records (based on the testing conducted during the course of
the audit)?

2. Was adequate documentation retained to support amounts in
the financial statements (if the school is not the primary Yes
reporting entity - was adequate documentation retained to
support revenue and expenses in the charter school)?

This Questionnaire was completed in accordance with the minimum audit standards as set forth in the
instructions on pages 2 and 3.

Klecka, Wilkins & Klecka February 27, 2012
Audit Fir Date
Partner
Preparer’s Signature (Afidit Firm Representah% Title
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* CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS *

Daniel E. Klecka, CPA 635 East Maryland Avenue
Harry E Wilkins 111, CPA Phoenix, Arizona 85012
Michael J. Klecka, CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
EdKey, Inc. and Subsidiary
Mesa, Arizona

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statement of financial position of EdKey, Inc. and subsidiary (an Arizona
nonprofit corporation) (collectively, the School) as of June 30, 2011, and the related consolidated statements of activities and
changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of
the School’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of EdKey, Inc. and subsidiary as of June 30, 2011, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year
then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 27, 2012, on our
consideration of the School’s internal control over financial reporting and our test of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements taken as a whole. The schedule of
functional expenses on page 12 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards on pages 15-17 is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Phoenix, Arizona *(_ e~ \

February 27, 2012

Phone (602) 266-4318 ® FAX (602) 279-4149
email: kwk@kwkcpa.com

www.kwkcpa.com





Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents

EdKey, Inc. and Subsidiary

June 30, 2011

ASSETS

Grants and Funds Receivable (Net of $0 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts)

Prepaid Expenses
Bond Reserves and Funds

Total Current Assets
Property and Equipment, Net

Other Assets
Bond Reserves and Funds
Bond Issuance Fees, Net of Amortization

Total Other Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accrued Expenses
Unearned Revenue
Due to Affiliate
Accrued Expenses Due to Affiliate

Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities
Bond Notes Payable

Total Liabilities

Net Assets
Unrestricted (Deficit)
Temporarily Restricted

Total Net Assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

See Accompanying Notes and Auditor's Report
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$ 1,253,551
146,965
41,443
695,370

2,137,329

10,741,627

1,932,356

1,158,273
3,090,629

$ 15,969,585

$ 468,643
456,587
114,842
394,394

1,072,789

2,507,255

13,450,000

15,957,255

(179,974)

192,304

12,330

5 15969,585





EdKey, Inc. and Subsidiary
Consolidated Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Revenues
State of Arizona Equalization Funds
Classroom Site Fund
Instructional Improvement Fund
Federal and State Grant Revenues
Administrative Services
E-Rate Indirect Reimbursements
Food Service
Public Donations
Other Revenue
Net Assets Released From Restrictions

Total Revenues
Expenses
Program Services
General and Administrative
Total Expenses
Change in Net Assets Before Provision for Income Tax
Income Tax Expense
Change in Net Assets

Net Assets (Deficit) at Beginning of Year

Net Assets (Deficit) at End of Year

See Accompanying Notes and Auditor's Report
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Temporarily
Unrestricted Restricted Total
$ 6,818,259 $ . $ 6,818,259
- 294,786 294,786
45,479 . 45,479
987,968 - 987,968
641,190 - 641,190
234,134 - 234,134
398,974 - 398,974
730,585 - 730,585
26,979 - 26,979
289,717 (289,717) -
10,173,285 5,069 10,178,354
6,828,934 - 6,828,934
3,369,963 - 3,369,963
10,198,897 - 10,198,897
(25,612) 5,069 (20,543)
(4,865) - (4,865)
(30,477) 5,069 (25,408)
(149.,497) 187,235 37,738
$ (179,974) $ 192,304 $ 12,330






EdKey, Inc. and Subsidiary
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Cash Flows Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:

Decrease in Net Assets $ (25,408)
Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to Net Cash from Operating Activities:

Depreciation 390,522

Amortization 26,324

Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
Grants and Funds Receivable 79,587
Prepaid Expenses 16,632
Deposits 34,038
Accounts Payable 250,233
Unearned Revenue 114,842
Due or Accrued to Affiliate 414,323
Payroll and Related Accruals (140,294)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 1,160,799

Cash Flows Used by Investing Activities:
Purchase of Property and Equipment (10,046,628)

Cash Flows Provided (Used) by Capital and Related Financing Activities:

Bond Issuance Fees (1,184,597)

Establishment of Bond Funds (2,627,726)
Proceeds from Bond Notes 13,450,000
Net Cash Provided by Capital and Related Financing Activities 9,637,677
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 751,848
Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30, 2010 501,703
Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30, 2011 $ 1,253,551

Supplemental Information.
Cash Paid for Interest $ 841,329

Cash Paid for Income Taxes $ 19,655

See Accompanying Notes and Auditor's Report
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EdKey, Inc. and Subsidiary
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2011

NOTE I - NATURE OF OPERATIONS:

EdKey, Inc. was formed as an Arizona nonprofit
corporation in April 2005 and assumed the assets,
liabilities, and operations of four existing Arizona charter
schools on November 1, 2005. EdKey, Inc. and its wholly-
controlled for-profit subsidiary, EdKey Management, Inc.
(collectively, EdKey or “the School”) combine to operate
several charter school campuses and provide administrative
services to other charter schools. The School operates
under three charter contracts with the Arizona State Board
for Charter Schools (ASBCS), which mandates policy and
operational guidelines. The charters are valid for fifteen
years, with all charters expiring in July and August of
2013. The charters may be renewed for successive twenty
year time periods if the ASBCS deems that the School is in
compliance with its charter and statutory provisions. The
School provides educational services to approximately
1,315 students in kindergarten through twelfth grade in
Mayer, Mesa, Phoenix, Peoria, Maricopa and Tempe,
Arizona, and is funded primarily through state equalization
assistance.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements use
the accrual method of accounting, with revenues recorded
when earned, and expenses recorded at the time liabilities
are incurred. All significant intercompany accounts and
transactions between EdKey, Inc. and its subsidiary have
been eliminated in consolidation.

The consolidated financial statements use the accrual
method of accounting and the presentation follows the
recommendations for the Financial Accounting Standards
Board Accounting Standards Codification (FASB ASC) in
FASB ASC 958. Under FASB ASC 958, the School is
required to report information regarding its financial
position and activities according to three classes of net
assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net
assets, and permanently restricted net assets.

The School has evaluated subsequent events through
February 27, 2012, which is prior to the date that the
financial statements were issued.

Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the School

considers all unrestricted highly liquid investments with an
initial maturity of three months or less to be cash
equivalents.

Grants and Funds Receivable

The School recognizes income from services performed for
other schools and from funds provided by the state of
Arizona in connection with its charter agreements. Due to
the concentrated nature of the School’s income sources and
historical collectibility trends, the School does not provide
an allowance for grants or funds receivable.

Property and Equipment
Leasehold improvements with a cost of $3,000 or more and

furniture and equipment with both a cost of $300 or more
and an estimated life of one year or more are capitalized.
Assets are stated at cost or fair market value at date of gift,
if contributed. Depreciation of furniture and equipment
and leasehold improvements are provided on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful lives of three to fifteen
years. Interest expense incurred during construction of
buildings and equipment is capitalized until the assets are
placed into service. Maintenance and repairs are charged to
expense as incurred. The costs of additions and
improvements are capitalized and depreciated over the
remaining useful lives of the assets. The costs and
accumulated depreciation of assets sold or retired are
removed from the accounts and any gain or loss is
recognized in the year of disposal.

Revenue Recognition
The School recognizes revenue as earned calculated using a

“base support level” determined by the Arizona
Department of Education. The “base support level” is a
calculation using student counts as a basis for allocating
equalization funds to the School such that the School is
funded at an amount approximating the amount which
public schools in the same district receive on a per pupil
basis. State equalization funds are allocated on a fiscal
year that ends June 30 of each year and are paid to the
Schoo! on a periodic basis throughout the school year.

Contributions

The School follows FASB ASC 958 for contributions.
Contributions received are recorded as unrestricted,
temporarily restricted or permanently restricted support
depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor
restrictions. All donor restricted support is reported as an
increase in temporarily or permanently restricted net assets
depending on the nature of the restriction. When a donor
restriction expires; that is, when a stipulated time
restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished,
temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to
unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of
activity as net assets released from restriction. Donor
restricted contributions whose restrictions are met in the
same reporting period are reported as unrestricted support.

See Auditor’s Report
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EdKey, Inc. and Subsidiary
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2011

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued):

Net Assets

Net assets of the School consist of two types as follows:
Unrestricted net assets - net assets whose use is not
restricted by donors, even though their use may be limited
in other respects, such as by contract or by board
designation; and temporarily restricted net assets — those
net assets whose use by the School has been limited by
donors to either (a) later periods of time or after specified
dates or (b) to specific purposes.

Functional Expenses
Expenses are charged directly to program or general and

administrative categories based on direct expenditures
incurred.  All expenditures not directly chargeable are
allocated based on personnel activity.

Advertising
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising

expense was $10,595 for the year ended June 30, 2011.

Donated Services

A substantial number of volunteers (primarily parents of
attending students) have donated many hours of labor to
the schools; however, these donated services are not
reflected in the financial statements since the services do
not require specialized skills.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

NOTE 3 - RESTRICTED CASH:

The School receives Arizona Classroom Site Fund (CSF)
monies that are restricted under A.R.S. §15-977 solely for
use at school sites. CSF monies are received from the
Arizona Department of Education (ADE). During the year
ended June 30, 2011, the School recognized CSF income of
$294,786 from ADE. At June 30, 2011, the School had on
hand $167,045 of CSF cash from all sources. Of the total,
$141,572 was available for teacher compensation increases
based on performance and employment related expenses;
and $25,473 was for maintenance and operations, including
class size reduction, teacher compensation increases, AIMS

intervention programs, teacher development, dropout
prevention programs, and teacher liability insurance
premiums. The School had $25,259 of classroom site funds
receivable from all sources at June 30, 2011,

NOTE 4 — PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2011
totaled $390,522. The School capitalized interest expense
of $841,329 during the year. The interest is included in
construction in progress and will be depreciated with
buildings when construction is completed. Property and
equipment consisted of the following at June 30, 2011:

Land $ 1,856,856
Buildings and Improvements 372,433
Construction in Progress 7,757,057
Equipment 1,477,437
11,463,783
(Less) Accumulated Depreciation (722,156)
Property and Equipment, Net $ 10,741,627

NOTE 5 - BOND RESERVES:

On November 1, 2010, the School entered into a note
agreement under which the note issuer also issued
registered bonds to investors. Certain proceeds of funds
issued to the School in conjunction with the note agreement
are held by the trustee under an indenture of trust
agreement, but are considered assets of the School. The
following schedule summarizes total bond assets at June
30,2011:

Bond Reserve Asset Amount
Current Bond Assets:
Capital Interest Fund $ 184,581
Operating Reserve Fund 500,482
Expense Fund 10,295
Revenue Fund 12
695,370
Long-Term Bond Assets:
Assessment Fund 50,024
Debt Service Reserve Fund 1,127,985
Project Fund 754,347
1,932,356
Total Bond Reserve Assets $ 2,627,726

See Auditor’s Report





EdKey, Inc. and Subsidiary
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2011

NOTE 5 - BOND RESERVES (Continued):

Bond reserves consist of the following accounts:

Capital Interest Fund
The capital interest fund accumulates monthly interest

payments made by the School until the funds are
distributed to bondholders twice annually.

Assessment Fund

The assessment fund is funded by the School rather than by
bond proceeds. The fund is held by the trustee to make
payments on assessments in accordance with an easement
granted by Pinal County, and unused funds will be returned
no later than the date the bond obligation is fulfilled.

Debt Service Reserve (DSR) Fund

The DSR fund was set up by the trustee to make payments
on the bond when monies in the bond fund are insufficient
to make the required semi-annual payments. Such
payments are made by the trustee in order to continue to
service the bond. The DSR Fund is not immediately
available to the School; the opening balance was placed in
the fund by the trustee, and any remaining balance will be
repaid when the bond matures.

Project Fund
The project fund is created with bond proceeds to pay for

capital projects such as land purchases and new campus
facilities, and disbursed by the trustee once projects are
completed in accordance with the provisions of the bond,
note, and trust agreements,

Revenue Fund

The revenue fund receives state equalization payments on
* behalf of the School. The majority of each payment is then
disbursed to the School once the required amount is
transferred to the bond fund, where the trustee makes semi-
annual interest payments and annual sinking fund payments
on bond obligations.

Operating Reserve Fund
The operating reserve fund is funded to pay operating

expenses at the request of the School when state payments
are unavailable or when expenses exceed budgeted
expenses. All amounts drawn from the operating reserve
fund are segregated from monthly state payments by the
trustee and returned to the fund ratably over a twelve
month period. If the fund balance at any time is less than
the greater of the original operating reserve requirement of
$500,000 or 15% of the School’s annual budgeted
expenses, the School is restricted from various transfers of
its property and equipment. If necessary, portions of the

fund may be transferred to the bond fund for payment of
principal, premium, and interest.

NOTE 6 — BOND NOTES PAYABLE:

During the year, the School finalized two loan and
promissory note agreements dated November 1, 2010 with
the Industrial Development Authority of Pima County
(“Pima IDA”). Concurrent with the loan and note
agreements, Pima IDA issued “Series 2010 Bonds” to the
public. The bonds and notes are labeled Series 2010A and
2010B and have original principal amounts of $5,450,000
and $8,000,000, and maturity dates of September 1, 2030
and September 1, 2040, respectively. US Bank, N.A.
maintains several cash and short-term investment accounts
as the bond trustee. Under the terms of the loan agreement,
the School is required to make an irrevocable pledge of
substantially all of its monthly state equalization revenues
toward payment of its debt obligations through the various
accounts held in trust. Once the trustee collects the
monthly note obligation, remaining state revenues are
distributed to the School.

The stated interest rate on the bond notes is 6.875%
annually for Series 2010A and, 7.25% annually for Series
2010B. Principal payments are disbursed from the bond
fund annually, and interest payments are disbursed semi-
annually until maturity. The loan is secured by the assets
and continuing revenues of the School. In addition to
making consistent payments toward interest and principal
due, the School has agreed to comply with all charter
school laws, maintain non-profit status and appropriate title
and liability insurance, and submit to an annual financial
statement audit. If the School were to default materially on
its obligations, the notes would be immediately due and
payable.

Principal payments on the bond notes are due annually to
the bond fund as follows:

Year Ending June 30:

2012 $ )

2013 #

2014 =
2015 150,000
2016 215,000
Thereafter 13,085,000
Total Bond Note Principal Payments $ 13,450,000

See Auditor’s Report
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EdKey, Inc. and Subsidiary
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2011

NOTE 6 - BOND NOTES PAYABLE (Continued):

The School is required to maintain a minimum debt service
coverage ratio of 1.20. The outstanding debt from the bond
notes was incurred during the fiscal year, while interest
expense was incurred from the inception of the note to year
end. Interest was paid during the year from bond proceeds
used to fund the capital interest fund. Because interest
expense was paid only during the final eight months of the
year from the inception of the bonds and corresponding
notes, the ratio is not expected to be comparable to future
years. The debt service coverage ratio is calculated as
follows for the year ended June 30, 2011:

Bond Debt, Net, June 30, 2011

Bond Debt Service

$ 13,450,000

June 30, 2011, the School recognized issuance fees of
$26,324.

The School expects amortization expense of $39,487 for
each fiscal year until fulfillment of the bond obligation in
2040.

NOTE 8 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES:

Pathfinder Academy
The School maintains a month-to-month contract for

School facilities in Mesa with a School employee who
exercises substantial control over campus operations. The
School includes property tax assessments in lease expense.
During the year ended June 30, 2011, the School paid
$3,833 in monthly rent, and $48,701 in total expense under
the terms of the lease. If the contract with Pathfinder
Academy is terminated during the Academy’s school year,
campus operations could be significantly affected.

Sequoia Redwood Charter School

The School leases a property in Peoria for School facilities.
The lease expires on June 30, 2013 and requires minimum
monthly payments of $10,331 inclusive of taxes through
expiration. Required minimum payments under the lease
total $123,738 annually through lease expiration. The
School is required to pay taxes, liability insurance
premiums, and repairs on the facilities during the lease
term. Monthly payments are subject contingently to annual
increases calculated as a multiple of the CPI. The lease
contract may be renewed by the School for two additional
periods of five and fifteen years, respectively. During the
year ended June 30, 2011, the School paid $119,544 under
the terms of the lease.

Children First Academy — Phoenix

Series 2010A and 2010B,
Year Ended June 30, 2011 $ 533,034
Pledged Revenues:
State Equalization 6,818,259
Other 3,360,095
Total 10,178,354
Expenses:
Expenses, Less Debt Service 10,194,304
Debt Service -
Total 10,194,304
Decrease in Net Assets (15,950)
Adjustment: Amortization 26,324
Adjustment: Depreciation 390,527
Adjustment: Capitalized Interest 533,034
Operating Income 933,935
Divide by Total Debt Service 533,034
Debt Service Coverage Ratio 1.75

NOTE 7 - BOND FEES:

The School incurred legal and administrative fees upon
issuance of the bond. These fees are recorded as School
assets and amortized over a period of thirty years using the
straight-line method in order to match the expenses to the
period in which the benefit occurs. During the year ended

The School entered into a lease contract for School
facilities in Phoenix through June 30, 2011. The lease
required monthly payments of $14,305 through the
termination of the lease. Effective January 2011, the
School renewed the lease through June 2014. The renewal
amended the lease payment through the end of December
2012 to $13,000. Monthly payments during the final
eighteen months of the extended lease range from $15,225
to $16,000. The lease may be terminated by either party
without penalty by providing notice of ninety days prior to
the end of each fiscal year. During the year ended June 30,
2011, the School paid $165,135 in rental expense under the
terms of the lease.

See Auditor’s Report





EdKey, Inc. and Subsidiary
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2011

NOTE 8 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES (Continued):

Children First Academy — Tempe

The School entered into a sublease contract for School
facilities in Tempe through June 30, 2011. The lease
requires monthly payments of $12,500 through the
termination of the lease. The School is required to maintain
liability insurance for the facilities during the lease term.
During the year ended June 30, 2011, the School paid
$150,000 in rental expense under the terms of the lease and
agreed to amend its lease agreement by extending the
current terms of the lease through June 30, 2016.

Sequoia Pathway Academy
The School entered into a sublease contract with Sequoia

Choice Schools LLLP (“Sequoia Choice”) and the landlord
of Sequoia Choice for land in Maricopa through June 30,
2011. On November 10, 2010, the School purchased
approximately half of the land subject to the original lease,
which terminated the School’s lease with Sequoia Choice.
The original landlord leased the remaining land to the
School through the termination date. During the year ended
June 30, 2011, the School paid $490,967 in rental expense
under the terms of the leases.

Sequoia Ranch School - Mayer
The School owns approximately half of its campus

facilities in Mayer and rents the remaining portion under an
agreement with a leasing company whose manager is the
manager of an entity that was related to the School at lease
inception. Although the School is no longer related to the
leasing company, the original expired lease continued on a
monthly basis. During the year, the School recognized
expense of $15,000 for the facilities, the balance of which
was outstanding at June 30, 2011. The School purchased
the balance of the property in Mayer on February 2, 2012,
as discussed in Note 13.

The following is a schedule by years of future minimum

lease payments for all operating leases except those with
terms of @ month or less as of June 30, 2011:

Year Ending June 30:

Compliance
The School’s compliance with certain laws and regulations

is subject to review by its sponsor. Such reviews could
result in an adjustment of state equalization assistance.

Litigation

The School is contingently liable for claims and judgments
resulting from lawsuits incidental to normal operations. In
the opinion of the School’s management, adverse decisions
that might result, to the extent not covered by insurance,
would not have a material effect on the financial
statements. No provision has been made in the financial
statements for possible losses of this nature.

NOTE 9 — RETIREMENT PLAN:

Plan Description
The School has chosen to participate in the Arizona State

Retirement System (ASRS), a cost-sharing, multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan. All School
employees are enrolled automatically in the plan. Benefits
are determined actuarially as required by state statute and
are approved by the ASRS board of trustees. ASRS
benefits provide retirement and long-term disability
benefits.

Funding Policy

The ASRS board of trustees establishes and may amend
active plan members’ and the School’s contribution rate.
Active plan members and the School were each required by
participation in the plan to contribute at the approved rate
of 9.85 percent (9.6 percent retirement and .25 percent
long-term disability for the year ended June 30, 2011) of
the members’ annual covered payroll. The School’s
contribution to the System for the year ended June 30, 2011
was $347,560, which was equal to the required contribution
for the year.

NOTE 10— CURRICULUM AND ADMINISTRATIVE
AGREEMENTS:

Curriculum Services

2012 $ 429,738 Sequoia Choice provides curriculum services and materials
2013 443.088 to the School. During the year ended June 30, 2011, the
2014 2 46,000 School recognized $13,108 in curriculum services expense

2015 150,000 from services provided by Sequoia Choice.
2016 150,000 At June 30, 2011, the School accrued a liability of $56,493
Total Minimum Payments Required $  1.418.826 for revenue prepaid to the School by Sequoia Choice for
=—=—=—=—= future services and a liability of $49,027 due to Sequoia

Choice for services provided to the School.

See Auditor’s Report
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EdKey, Inc. and Subsidiary
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2011

NOTE 10— CURRICULUM AND ADMINISTRATIVE
AGREEMENTS (Continued):

Licensing and Services Agreement — Related Party
During the year ended June 30, 2011, the School
recognized expenses reported in administrative fees and
rental of property and equipment of $1,542,863 for various
services provided by Choice Education and Development
Corporation (CEDC) under the terms of a management and
licensing agreement. The board members of the School are
also board members of CEDC. Technical services and
certain administrative support services are billed to the
School based on the number of students attending, while
general administrative services are billed based on the
gross revenue of the School. At June 30, 2011, the School
owed CEDC $1,470,107, which is included on the
statement of financial position as amounts due and accrued
to affiliate. The School makes periodic payments to CEDC
to settle outstanding obligations. During the year ended
June 30, 2011, the School made cash payments of
$593,176 to CEDC, inclusive of administrative services,
technical and other support services, and repayments for
services performed on behalf of the School and billed by
CEDC.

Services Agreement
The School provides services under contract to Sequoia

Choice Schools LLLP (“Sequoia Choice”). At the inception
of the current services agreement in 2009, the School and
Sequoia Choice were related by common management.
Although the School provides substantial administrative
services to Sequoia Choice, the School is no longer related
to Sequoia Choice by common directors or common
control. Under the service contract, the School provides
teaching, accounting, financial and student reporting, and
other administrative and management services in exchange
for a monthly management fee of $40,000 but not less than
eight percent of the gross revenues of Sequoia Choice. The
School bills additional amounts to Sequoia Choice for
payments the School makes to third party vendors on
behalf of Sequoia Choice. The initial terms of the
agreement terminated on June 30, 2011 but extended terms
remain effective on an annual basis for the next four years
unless and until terminated with six months of notice by
either party. During the year ended June 30, 2011, the
School recognized administrative revenue of $641,190
under its contract with Sequoia Choice. To settle the
School’s obligations to CEDC, the School directed Sequoia
Choice to make payments incurred for administrative
services directly to CEDC. Future expenses are contingent
upon the continuation of the contract and future revenues
of Sequoia Choice.

NOTE 11 - INCOME TAXES:

EdKey, Inc. qualifies as a tax-exempt organization under
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code whose
revenue is derived primarily from state equalization funds
for charter schools, grants and contributions. Consequently,
EdKey, Inc. is exempt from federal income tax under
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code except for
unrelated business taxable income which includes income
derived from the School’s subsidiary. The School is not a
private foundation. The School has adopted FASB ASC
Topic 740-10, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes, which prescribes a recognition threshold and
measurement attribute for financial statement recognition
and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be
taken in a tax return. For the year ended June 30, 2011, the
School had no material uncertain tax positions to be
accounted for in the financial statements under the rules,
and had no interest or penalties assessed by income taxing
authorities. Management believes that the School is no
longer subject to income tax examinations for years prior to
the year ended June 30, 2008.

The School’s subsidiary, EdKey Management, Inc. is a for-
profit corporation which files its own tax return. The
income tax expense of EdKey Management, Inc. was
calculated entirely based on its current net income as a
subsidiary for the year ended June 30, 2011. The School
did not have deferred tax assets, liabilities, or unrecognized
tax benefits at June 30, 2011.

NOTE 12— CONCENTRATIONS OF RISK:

The Schoo! has concentrated its credit risk by maintaining
checking deposits in its banking institutions which may at
times exceed amounts covered by insurance provided by
the U.S. Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC).
The School has not experienced any losses in such
accounts and believes it is not exposed to any significant
credit risk to cash.

Approximately 84% of the School’s revenue for the year
ended June 30, 2011 was derived from funds passed
through or provided by the Arizona Department of
Education. Collection from the state is reasonably assured,
provided that the School complies with state laws and other
contract terms stipulated in its charter with the Arizona
State Board for Charter Schools.

See Auditor’s Report
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EdKey, Inc. and Subsidiary
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended June 30, 2011

NOTE 13 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS:

In November 2011, the School purchased a building in
Phoenix, Arizona for approximately $1,192,000 financed in
part by a loan from Community Investment Corporation,
with the majority of financing provided by a note
agreement with the seller which is due November 2013,

In January 2012, the School entered into a $150,000 line of
credit agreement with a bank to finance buildings and
equipment in Mayer, Arizona. The School used $85,000 of
available credit February 2, 2012 to purchase all remaining
School facilities in Mayer which were previously rented.

See Auditor’s Report
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EdKey, Inc. and Subsidiary

Supplemental Information

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended June 30, 2011
Program General and
Expenses Administrative Total
Personnel Services

Salaries $ 3,320,098 $ 774,942 $ 4,095,040
Payroll Taxes and Benefits 915,385 213,660 1,129,045

Total Personnel Services 4,235,483 988,602 5,224,085

Operating Expenses

Administrative Fees - 1,542,863 1,542,863
Advertising - 10,595 10,595
Amortization 21,342 4,982 26,324
Depreciation 316,620 73,902 390,522
Equipment Maintenance and Repair 98,905 23,085 121,990
Food Service 395,143 - 395,143
Insurance - 73,286 73,286
Occupancy 802,377 187,282 989,659
Other Expenses 10,369 51,627 61,996
Professional Fees 277,268 205,180 482,448
Rental of Property and Equipment 3,149 31,720 34,869
Student Transportation 195,413 - 195,413
Supplies 208,139 118,987 327,126
Travel 36,799 4,652 41,451
Utilities and Telephone 227,927 53,200 281,127

Total Operating Expenses 2,593,451 2,381,361 4,974,812

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES $ 6,828,934 $ 3,369,963 $ 10,198,897

See Auditor's Report
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KLECKA, WILKINS & KLECKA

« CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS *

Daniel E. Klecka, CPA 635 East Maryland Avenue
Harry E Wilkins I1I, CPA Phoenix, Arizona 85012
Michael ]. Klecka, CPA

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors
EdKey, Inc. and Subsidiary
Mesa, Arizona

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of EdKey, Inc. (an Arizona nonprofit corporation) and subsidiary
(collectively, the School) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, and have issued our report dated February 27, 2012.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The School is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting. In planning and
performing our audit, we considered the School’s internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our audit
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in
the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A
material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the School’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected
on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal contro]l over financial reporting that might be
deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School’s financial statements are free of material misstatement,

we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we
do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

This report is intended for the information and use of management, others within the School, federal and state awarding
agencies, pass-through entities and the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools and is not intended to be and should not be

used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Al a)iklier < 4 N

Phone (602) 266-4318 » FAX (602) 279-4149

email: kwk@kwkcpa.com

Phoenix, Arizona
February 27, 2012
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EdKey, Inc. and Subsidiary
Supplemental Information
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Federal
CFDA  Federal Award Number Federal
Federal Grantor / Program Title / Recipient School Number or State Project Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Education
Passed Through from Arizona Department of Education:
ARRA Education Jobs Fund
Pathfinder Academy 84.410 11FAAEJIB-160456-02A $ 20,344
Redwood Academy 84.410 11FAAEJB-160453-02A 14,399
Sequoia Ranch School 84.410 11FAAEJB-160455-04A 237,964
272,707
ARRA Education Stabilization Fund - Fall
Pathfinder Academy 84394  11FAAGSG-160456-01A 5,118
Redwood Academy 84.394 11FAAGSG-160453-01A 4,348
Sequoia Ranch School 84.394 11FAAGSG-160455-01A 57,308
66,774
ARRA McKinney-Vento Homeless Education
Sequoia Ranch School 84.387A 11FSEVRG-160455-06A 14,406
Title II, Part A - Improving Teacher Quality
Redwood Academy 84.367A 11FAATII-160453-05A 2,042
Sequoia Ranch School 84.367A 11FAATII-160455-09A 11,558
13,600
Title II1 LEP
Sequoia Ranch School 84.365A 11FACLEP-160455-05A 12,493
Education Technology State Grants Cluster:
Title II, Part D - Enhancing Education thru Technology
Redwood Academy 84.318X 11FETETF-160453-06A 485
Sequoia Ranch School 84.318X 11FETETF-160455-07A 394
879
ARRA Enhancing Education thru Technology Title I1-D
Redwood Academy 84.386  11FETEET-160453-07A 51
Sequoia Ranch School 84.386  11FETEET-160455-11A 153
204
Total Education Technology State Grants Cluster: 1,083

See Accompanying Notes and Auditor's Report
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EdKey, Inc. and Subsidiary
Supplemental Information
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Federal
CFDA  Federal Award Number Federal
Federal Grantor / Program Title / Recipient School Number or State Project Number Expenditures

Title I, Part A Cluster:
Title 1, Part A - Grants to Local Educational Agencies (LEAs)

Redwood Academy 84.010A 11FAATTI-160453-04A $ 33,179
Sequoia Ranch School 84.010A 11FAATTI-160455-08A 254,018
287,197
ARRA Title I

Redwood Academy 84.389A 11FAAART-160453-03A 1,236
Sequoia Ranch School 84.389A 11FAAART-160455-13A 64,107
65,343

ARRA Title I Continuation - Summer School
Sequoia Ranch School 84.389 11FAACSS-160455-14A 8,219
Total Title I, Part A Cluster: 360,759

Special Education Cluster (IDEA):
IDEA Basic Entitlement, Part B - Special Education Grants

Pathfinder Academy 84.027A  11FESCBG-160456-03A 13,021
Redwood Academy 84.027A  11FESCBG-160453-08A 14,018
Sequoia Ranch School 84.027A  11FESCBG-160455-11A 104,966
132,005
ARRA IDEA

Pathfinder Academy 84.391  11FESAIG-160456-04A 900
Redwood Academy 84391  11FESAIG-160453-09A 4,686
Sequoia Ranch School 84.391  11FESAIG-160455-12A 43,790
49,376

IDEA - Education of Children with Disabilities (Monitoring System)

Sequoia Ranch School 84.027 11FESMSG-160455-03A 330
Total Special Education Cluster (IDEA): 181,711
Total from U.S. Department of Education: 923,533

See Accompanying Notes and Auditor's Report
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EdKey, Inc. and Subsidiary
Supplemental Information
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Federal
CFDA  Federal Award Number Federal
Federal Grantor / Program Title / Recipient School Number or State Project Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Agriculture
Passed Through from Arizona Department of Education:
Child Nutrition Cluster:
School Breakfast Program
Redwood Academy 10.553 N/A $ 7,007
Sequoia Ranch School 10.553 N/A 127,005
134,012
National School Lunch Program
Redwood Academy 10.555 N/A 20,506
Sequoia Ranch School 10.555 N/A 236,539
257,045
Total Child Nutrition Cluster: 391,057
Fresh Fruit and Vegetable Program
Redwood Academy 10.582 N/A 910
Sequoia Ranch School 10.582 N/A 4,957
5,867
Total from U.S. Department of Agriculture: 396,924
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 1,320,457

See Accompanying Notes and Auditor's Report
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EdKey Inc. and Subsidiary
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2011

NOTE 1 - REPORTING ENTITY:

EdKey, Inc. (an Arizona nonprofit corporation) and its
subsidiary operate public charter schools in Arizona.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

Basis of Presentation

The expenditures in the accompanying schedule of
expenditures of federal awards are reported under the
accrual basis of accounting. Purchases of fixed assets are
recorded as expenditures in the year the expenditure is
accrued, rather than in the year depreciation expense is
taken.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
The awards schedule presents only the expenditures

incurred by the School that are reimbursable under federal
programs of federal agencies providing financial assistance.
Only the portion of program expenditures reimbursable with
such federal funds is reported in the schedule. Program
expenditures in excess of the maximum federal
reimbursement authorized or the portion of the program
expenditures that were funded with state, local or other non-
federal funds are excluded from the schedule.

The schedule was prepared from only the accounts of the
grant programs and therefore does not represent the
financial position or results of operations of the School.
The information in this schedule is presented in accordance
with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may
differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation
of, the financial statements.

See Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
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KLECKA. WILKINS & KLECKA

* CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS *

Daniel E. Klecka, CPA 635 East Maryland Avenue
Harry E Wilkins I1I, CPA Phoenix, Arizona 85012
Michael J. Klecka, CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the Board of Directors
EdKey, Inc. and Subsidiary
Mesa, Arizona

Compliance
We have audited the compliance of EdKey, Inc. and subsidiary (collectively, EdKey, Inc.) with the types of compliance

requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on
each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2011. EdKey, Inc.’s major federal programs are identified in
the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility
of EdKey, Inc.’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on EdKey, Inc.’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material
effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about EdKey, Inc.’s
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of
EdKey, Inc.’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, EdKey, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to above that could
have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2011.

Internal Control over Compliance
Management of EdKey, Inc. is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with

the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our
audit, we considered EdKey, Inc.’s internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material
effect on a major federal program to determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
compliance and to test and report on the internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of EdKey, Inc.’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and
correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be deficiencies,
significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that
we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

Phone (602) 266-4318 ¢ FAX (602) 279-4149
email: kwk@kwkcpa.com

www.kwkcpa.com





This report is intended for the information of management, others within the School, federal and state awarding agencies,
pass-through entities and the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.
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Phoenix, Arizona
February 27,2012





EdKey, Inc. and Subsidiary
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2011

A. SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS:

1.

The auditor’s report dated February 27, 2012 expresses an unqualified opinion on the financial statements of EdKey,
Inc. and subsidiary (collectively, EdKey, Inc.).

No significant deficiencies were identified during the audit of the financial statements,

No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of EdKey, Inc. were disclosed during the audit of
the financial statements.

No significant deficiencies were identified during the audit of the major federal award programs.

The Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each Major Program and on Internal Control over
Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133 expresses an unqualified opinion with respect to compliance
with the requirements of the major program tested.

No audit findings were required to be reported relative to the major federal awards programs.

The following two programs were major programs: Child Nutrition Cluster (10.553 and 10.555) and Title I, Part A
Cluster (84.010 and 84.389).

The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs was $300,000.

EdKey, Inc. does not qualify as a low-risk auditee.

B. FINDINGS REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED UNDER GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS:

L.

No instances of noncompliance are required to be reported under generally accepted government auditing standards.

C. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS:

1.

No findings and questioned costs relating to the audit of the federal award programs are required to be reported.
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EdKey, Inc. and Subsidiary
Corrective Action Plan
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Not applicable.

22





EdKey, Inc. and Subsidiary
Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings
Year Ended June 30, 2011

NOTE 2010-F1: RECORDS MAINTENANCE

Condition

Recommendation

Corrective Action:

Status

The School did not keep separate records in its accounting ledger for receipts or
expenditures associated with the majority of its state fiscal stabilization funds disbursed
under CFDA 84.394 - ARRA Education Stabilization Fund — Education State Grants,
Recovery Act.

The Schoo! should record receipts and expenditures of its state fiscal stabilization funds in
the same manner that it records transactions for its other federal funds, i.e., by recording
transactions by separate fund, object and site levels as appropriate.

The School proposed to establish a separate fund to track and record revenues and
expenditures of state fiscal stabilization funds under CFDA No. 84.394.

During the year ended June 30, 2011, the School separated and recorded receipts of state
fiscal stabilization funds by using unique function and object codes. However, expenditures
of state fiscal stabilization funds were not separated from general funds in the same manner
that transactions for other federal funds are recorded, i.e., by recording transactions by
separate fund, object and site levels as appropriate.

NOTE 2010-F2: RECORDS MAINTENANCE (2)

Condition

Recommendation

Corrective Action:

Status

The School did not maintain its accounting system in a manner sufficient to prepare an
accurate schedule of expenditures of federal awards.

The School should record receipts and expenditures of its state fiscal stabilization funds in
the same manner that it records transactions for its other federal funds, i.e., by recording
transactions by separate fund, object and site levels as appropriate. The School should then
use those records to prepare the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and reconcile
the schedule with its accounting records.

The School proposed to establish a separate fund to track and record revenues and
expenditures of state fiscal stabilization funds under CFDA No. 84.394 and institute
monthly and annual controls to ensure that federal award expenditures are recorded properly
and errors in financial reporting will be corrected on at least a monthly basis.

During the year ended June 30, 2011, the School separated and recorded receipts of state
fiscal stabilization funds. However, expenditures of state fiscal stabilization funds were not
separated from general funds in the same manner that transactions for other federal funds
are recorded. As a result, the School again prepared the state fiscal stabilization portion of
its schedule of expenditures of federal awards by estimating expenditures based on awards
received.
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KLECKA, WILKINS & KLECKA

« CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS *

Daniel E. Klecka, CPA 635 East Maryland Avenue
Harry E Wilkins III, CPA Phoenix, Arizona 85012
Michael J. Klecka, CPA

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES

To the Board of Directors
EdKey, Inc.
Mesa, Arizona

We have performed the procedures included in three Legal Compliance Questionnaires of the Arizona State Board for Charter
Schools and enumerated below, which were agreed to by EdKey, Inc. and the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools
(ASBCS), solely to assist you and the ASBCS in evaluating management’s assertion about EdKey, Inc.’s compliance with the
requirements of applicable state law, regulations of the ASBCS, and provisions of your charter contract as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2011 and for testing dates specified by us. EdKey, Inc.’s management is responsible for compliance with all
laws, regulations issued by ASBCS, and provisions of its charter contract. This agreed-upon procedures engagement was
conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
sufficiency of these procedures is solely the responsibility of those parties specified in this report. Consequently, we make no
representation regarding the sufficiency of the procedures described below either for the purpose for which this report has
been requested or for any other purpose.

Our procedures and findings are as follows:

1. We obtained sufficient evidence necessary to complete the Legal Compliance Questionnaires as required by the
ASBCS.

2. We completed the Legal Compliance Questionnaires as required by the ASBCS.

3. We noted on the Legal Compliance Questionnaires all noncompliance requiring a “No” answer, material or
otherwise, of which we became aware.

We were not engaged to, and did not, conduct an examination, the objective of which would be the expression of an opinion
on the accompanying compliance questionnaire. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. Had we performed
additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported to you.

This report is intended for the information and use of management, others within the School, federal and state awarding

agencies, pass-through entities and the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools and is not intended to be and should not be
used by anyone other than these specified parties.

TM LD A EM

Phoenix, Arizona
February 27, 2012

Phone (602) 266-4318 » FAX (602) 279-4149
email: kwk@kwkcpa.com
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Arizona State Board for Charter Schools
Legal Compliance Questionnaire
EdKey, Inc. - Pathfinder Academy
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011
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INSTRUCTIONS

NOTE: This questionnaire should only be used for schools that are exempt from the
Uniform System of Financial Records for Arizona Charter Schools (schools that
HAVE an exception). If a school is subject to procurement requirements pursuant to
A.R.S. §15-189.02 and 41-2535(A), this questionnaire should be used in conjunction
with the Procurement Compliance Questionnaire (see audit guidelines memo dated
6/13/2011) which is available on the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools’ website
http://asbes.az.gov.

In order to determine whether a charter school that is exempt from the requirements of
the Uniform System of Financial Records for Arizona Charter Schools (USFRCS) is
complying with applicable legal requirements, the auditors must complete the following
Legal Compliance Questionnaire (Note: This questionnaire is not comprehensive of all
legal requirements for charter schools. As such, this document should not be the sole
reference to determine all laws and regulations that are applicable to charter schools).

The following prescribed minimum audit standards for completing the Legal
Compliance Questionnaire must be used in all audits. The State Board for Charter
Schools may reject audits not meeting these standards.

¢ Sufficient, appropriate evidence must be obtained annually for each question to
satisfactorily determine whether the school complies with the legal requirements,
and the evidence must be included in the audit documentation.

¢ Evidence may be obtained through test work, observation, examination, and client
assertion. However, client assertion alone is not adequate evidence to support “Yes”
answers to the questionnaire.

¢ Population size should be considered in determining the number of items to test,
and the items selected should be representative of the population.

¢ The number of items tested must be sufficient to determine whether a deficiency was
the result of an isolated incident or a recurring problem. Therefore, testing one
transaction, record, or item is not sufficient.

¢ The sample size should be expanded if the audit firm cannot clearly determine
whether the school complies with the legal requirements of the question.

¢ If sufficient evidence has been obtained and documented during the current audit,
that evidence may be referenced to answer questions.
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¢ All “No” and “N/A” answers must be adequately explained in the comments
column or in an attachment. Findings must be described in sufficient detail to enable
the State Board for Charter Schools to describe the finding in a letter. The
description should include the number of items tested and the number of exceptions
noted.

¢ A “Yes” answer indicates that the audit firm has determined that the school
complies with the legal requirements of the question and a “No” answer indicates
the school does not comply. However, the final determination of compliance on
each question, as well as overall compliance with legal requirements, is made by the
State Board for Charter Schools based on the evidence presented in the
questionnaire, audit reports, the audit documentation, and any other sources.

The resulting audit documentation supporting the audit firm’s answers to the Legal
Compliance Questionnaire must be made available on request for review by the State
Board for Charter Schools. To facilitate this review, the audit firm may wish to include
in the audit documentation a copy of the questionnaire containing references to audit
~ procedures performed for each question.
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Legal Compliance Questionnaire

Questions/Subject Area Yes/No Comments

Personnel

1. Did the school have valid fingerprint clearance cards (FCC) for
100% of the required personnel as of the testing date? A.R.S. Yes
§15-183 (C)(5) and A.R.S. §15-512(H)

(QUESTIONS #2a THROUGH 2c ONLY APPLY TO NEW HIRES
REQUIRED PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §15-183(C)(5) TO HAVE
VALID FCCS AND DO NOT APPLY IF AN INDIVIDUAL'S FCC
HAS EXPIRED.)

2. For each individual referenced in #1 that did not have a valid
FCC, please provide the following information (provide
supplemental pages, if necessary) (See agency guidance
available on the Board’s website prior to completing these
questions)A.R.S. §15-183(C)(5):

a. Was an application for a FCC on file with the Department | N/A All required personnel had
of Public Safety (DPS) as of the testing date? FCCs.
b. Did DPS receive the application prior to the hire date? N/A All required personnel had
FCCs.
c. Prior to placement, did the school do all of the following?
i) Document the necessity for hiring/placing the N/A All required personnel had
individual prior to receiving a FCC? FCCs.
if) Obtain statewide criminal history information on the N/A All required personnel had
individual? FCCs.
iii) Obtain references from the applicant’s current and N/A All required personnel had
previous employers? FCCs.
3. Did the charter school maintain up-to-date fingerprints of
all governing board members as of the testing date? Yes
Charter Contract?
4. Were all other personnel fingerprint checked as of the
testing date? A.R.S. §15-183 (C)(5) and A.R.S. §15-512 Yes

5. Did the charter school inform the parents and guardians of
pupils enrolled in the school of the availability of resume
information for all employees who provide instruction to Yes
pupils? A.R.S. §15-183 (F)

! Specific contract cites could not be provided as term references vary per contract year.
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Yes/No

Comments

Required Filings

1. Is the school in good standing with the following regulatory

bodies:

a. Internal Revenue Service U.S.C. Title 26

il

For payroll taxes, income taxes (if applicable) and
applicable tax forms required to be filed during the
audited fiscal year?

Yes

The school did not have any payroll or income taxes
payable from a prior year(s) as of audited fiscal year
end (June 30%) is a true statement.

Yes

If the response to 1.a.i, 1.a.ii, or both is “no”, does the
school have a payment plan in place with the Internal
Revenue Service?

N/A

1.a.iand 1.a.ii are Yes.

iv.

If the answer to Question 1.aii is “yes”, has the school
made all of the required payments under the payment
plan as of audited fiscal year end (June 30t)?

N/A

1.a.iii is not Yes.

b. Arizona Department of Revenue A.R.S. §43-401 and §43-

111

1

1.

For payroll taxes, state income taxes (if applicable) and
applicable tax forms required to be filed during the
audited fiscal year?

Yes

The school did not have any payroll or income taxes
payable from a prior year(s) as of audited fiscal year
end (June 30%) is a true statement.

Yes

If the response to 1.b.i, 1.b.ii, or both is “no”, does the
school have a payment plan in place with the Arizona
Department of Revenue?

N/A

1.b.iand 1.b.ii are Yes.

iv.

If the answer to Question 1.b.iii is “yes”, has the school
made all of the required payments under the payment
plan as of audited fiscal year end (June 30t)?

N/A

1.b.iii is not Yes.

c. Arizona Department of Economic Security A.R.S. § 23-721
et seq.

1.

State unemployment contributions requirements for the
audited fiscal year?

Yes

The school did not have any state unemployment
contributions payable from a prior year(s) as of audited
fiscal year end (June 30%) is a true statement.

Yes

If the response to 1.c.i, 1.c.ii, or both is “no”, does the
school have a payment plan in place with the Arizona
Department of Economic Security?

N/A

1l.ciand 1l.c.ii are Yes.

iv.

If the answer to Question 1.c.iii is “yes”, has the school
made all of the required payments under the payment
plan as of audited fiscal year end (June 30t)?

N/A

1.c.iii is not Yes.

d. Corporation Commission (e.g., annual report)? Charter
Contract

Yes
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2.

Was a copy of the adopted budget signed by the Governing
Board and filed with the Superintendent of Public Instruction
by July 18%? A.R.S. §15-905 (B) and (E) and §15-183 (E)(6)

Yes

Was the Annual Financial Report (AFR) sent to the
Superintendent of Public Instruction by October 15%? A.R.S.
§15-183 (E) (6) and 15-904 (A)

Yes

Special Education

1.

Is the staff the school uses to provide special education services
(internal or contracted) certified in special education?

Yes

2.

Does the school conduct 45 day screenings on all new
students? AAC R7-2-401

Yes

3.

Are evaluations and IEPs on file for special education students?
34 CFR 300.341-350 and 300.531-536

Yes

Classroom Site Fund - A.R.S. §15-977 & OAG Memorandum

#44

1.

Did the School properly allocate Classroom Site Fund receipts
among the following projects: 1011 —Base Salary (20%), 1012—
Performance Pay (40%), and 1013 —Other (40%)?

Yes

For Project 1011, were expenses only for teacher base salary
increases and employment-related expenses?

Yes

For Project 1012, were expenses only for performance-based
teacher compensation increases and employment-related
expenses?

Yes

For Project 1013, were expenses only for class size reduction,
teacher compensation increases, AIMS intervention programs,
teacher development, dropout prevention programs, and
teacher liability insurance premiums?

Yes

Did the School use Classroom Site monies to supplement rather
than supplant, existing funding from all other sources? (See
USFRCS Memorandum No. 44 for guidance for Classroom Site
Projects.)

Yes

If the School had monies remaining at year-end, were they
properly carried forward in the three Classroom Site Projects
(1011, 1012, and 1013) to help ensure that the restrictions placed
on the original allocation of revenues is applied in future
years?

Yes

Did the School have sufficient cash at year- end to cover the
carry over monies?

Yes

Student Attendance Reporting

If test work performed in questions 3-15 and 18 of this section
discloses a net overstatement or understatement of membership
and/or absence days, report the net overstatement or
understatement in the “Comments” column.
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Yes/No

Comments

1. Was school in session for at least 180 days or 144 days for
schools operating on a 4-day week, or did the governing board
adopt a calendar with an equivalent number of minutes of
instruction per school year based on a different number of days
of instruction and were membership and attendance recorded
for each day school was in session? A.R.S. §§15-902 (H), (I),
and (J) and 15-341.01

Yes

2. Did the School ensure that:
(Note: Instruction hours do not include periods of the day in
which an instructional program or course of study is not being
offered, including, but not limited to, lunch, recesses, home
room periods, study hall periods, and early release or late start
hours. ADE’s School Finance Procedures Manual)

a. Kindergarten was in session for at least 356 hours? A.R.S.
§15-901(A)(2)

Yes

b. Grades 1 through 3 were in session for at least 712 hours?
AR.S. §15-901(A)(2)

Yes

c. Grades 4 through 6 were in session for at least 890 hours?
A.R.S. §15-901(A)(2)

Yes

d. Grades 7 and 8 were in session for at least 1,000 hours?
A.R.S. §15-901(A)(2)

Yes

e. For high school, a full-time instructional program meets at
least 720 hours during the minimum number of days
required? A.R.S. §15-901(A)(2)

N/A

No high school.

f.  For high school, a full-time instructional program includes
at least four subjects, each of which if taught each school
day for the minimum number of days required in a school
year, would meet a minimum of 123 hours a year; or any
number of subjects totaling at least 20 hours per week,
prorated for any week with fewer than 5 school days?
A.R.S. §15-901(A)(2)

N/A

No high school.

For Student Attendance Reporting questions 3-15, the audit firm
must select and test the specified number of transactions (records,
entries, withdrawals, or days) as shown in the sample size
instructions before each section. That sample should include 3 or
more grade levels and 3 or more campuses, where applicable. The
listed sample sizes represent the minimum level of required test work.
The audit firm should use its judgment in determining whether a
larger sample is needed. All student attendance records tested in
steps 3-10 and 15 should be selected from the 100" day reporting
period.

In the parentheses provided in questions 3-15, indicate the actual
number of transactions tested. If all transactions were tested, indicate
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such in the “Comments” column.

For questions 3-5 select at least 3 student attendance records.

3. If the School had an early (pre-)kindergarten program, based
upon review of (0) early (pre-) kindergarten students’
attendance records, did the School only calculate and submit
ADM data to ADE for this program if the program was
designed to advance students to the first grade at the end of the
of the school year? A.R.S.§15-901(A)(2)(a)(i) and USFRCS
Memorandum No. 33

N/A

No early kindergarten.

4. Based upon review of (3) students’ attendance records in
kindergarten programs with instructional time between 356
and 692 hours a year, were students not in attendance for at
least three-quarters of the day counted as being absent? If the
instructional time for the year was 692 hours or more, were
students not in attendance at least one-half of the day counted
as being absent? A.R.S.§§15-901(A)(2)(a)(i) and 15-
901(A)(6)(a) ()

Yes

5. If the School had an early first grade program, based upon
review of (0) early first grade students’ attendance records, did
the School calculate and submit ADM for this program as it
would for kindergarten in accordance with ADE’s School
Finance Procedures Manual? A.R.S. §15-901(A)(2)(b)(i)) and
USFRCS Memorandum No. 33

N/A

No early first grade.

For questions 6 and 7, use the following sample sizes:

Student Attendance
SCHOOLWIDE ADM Records
<1,000 5
1,000-5,000 10
>5,000 15

6. Based on review of (5) students’ attendance records at
elementary and junior high schools, in which attendance was
based on half days, were students in attendance for less than
one-half the day counted as being absent for one full day?
Were students in attendance for at least one-half day, but less
than three-quarters of a day, counted as being absent for one-
half day? Were students in attendance for at least three-
quarters of a day counted in attendance for a day?
AR.S. §15-901(A)(6)(b)(ii)

Yes
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Based upon review of (0) students’ attendance records at
elementary and junior high schools where attendance was
based on quarter days, were students in attendance for more
than three-quarters of the day counted in attendance for a day?
Were students in attendance for three-quarters of the day or
less counted in attendance for each quarter of the day in
attendance? A.R.S. §15-901(A)(6)(b)(i)

N/A

All elementary attendance
on half days.

For questions 8 through 12, use the following sample sizes:

8.

SCHOOLWIDE
ADM Student Attendance Records

<1,000 3
1,000-5,000 5
>5,000 7

For schools approved to report minutes of attendance, based
upon review of the attendance records for a 1 month period for
(0) students whose attendance was reported in minutes, did the
School report minutes of attendance only for actual classroom
instruction attended by the students in accordance with ADE's
School Finance Procedures Manual?

N/A

Attendance on half and
quarter days.

Based upon review of (0) high school students’ records whose
attendance was reported in terms of absences, for all absence
days reported in a 1 month period, did the School report the
absences in accordance with the method(s) provided in ADE’s
School Finance Procedures Manual?

N/A

No high school.

10.

Based upon review of (0) high school students’ attendance
records, did the School prorate the membership of the high
school students enrolled in less than four subjects as provided
in ADE’s School Finance Procedures Manual?

N/A

No high school.
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11. For schools offering an Arizona Online Instruction (AOI)
Program, based upon a review of (0) AOI students” attendance
records for 4 weeks:

a. Was the guardian-approved or School computer-generated
daily log describing the amount of time spent by the
student on academic tasks maintained by the participating
AOI School? A.R.S. §15-808(E) ‘

N/A

No AOI program.

b. Did the hours reported to ADE agree to the guardian-
approved or School computer-generated daily log?

N/A

No AQI program.

c. Were all pupils who participated in an AOI Program
residents of this State? A.R.S. §15-808

N/A

No AOI program.

12. Based upon review of (3) students’ attendance records (all
grades) for students withdrawn for having 10 consecutive
unexcused absences, was the student only counted in
membership through the last day of actual attendance?
A.R.S. §15-901(A)(2)

Yes

For questions 13 and 14, use the following sample sizes:

SCHOOLWIDE
ADM Entries/Withdrawals

<1,000 S
1,000-5,000 10
>5,000 15

13. Based upon review of (5) entries: (Note: Enrollment forms are
not required for continuing students at the same school.)

a. Were entry dates entered into the School's computerized
attendance system within 5 working days after the actual
date of entry and was documentation maintained to
support the date of data entry?

Yes

b. Did the entry date in the computerized attendance system
agree to the entry form?

Yes

c. Did the teacher’s attendance registers, if used, and other
documentation support the entry date in the computerized
attendance system?

Yes

d. Did membership for continuing/pre-enrolled students
begin with either the first day of actual attendance or the
first day that classroom instruction was offered, provided
that the students actually attend within the first 10 days of

Yes
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school? For all other students, did membership begin with
the first day of actual attendance? ADE’s School Finance
Procedures Manual

14. Based upon review of (5) withdrawals:

a. Were the withdrawal dates entered into the School’s
computerized attendance system within 5 working days
after the actual date of withdrawal and was documentation
maintained to support the date of data entry? (Note: “Day
of withdrawal” means: a.) the later of the student’s
withdrawal date or the day the school is notified the
student will not be returning; or b.) the 10t day of non-
attendance for students withdrawn for having ten
consecutive unexcused absences.)

Yes

b. Did the withdrawal date in the attendance system agree to
the withdrawal form? (Note: If the computerized
attendance system requires the school to input the first day
of non-attendance for a student to be counted in
membership through the last day of actual attendance, the
withdrawal date on the system should be the school day
following the withdrawal date on the form.)

Yes

c. Did the teachers’ attendance registers, if used, and other
supporting documentation support the withdrawal date in
the computerized attendance system?

Yes

d. Was an Official Notice of Pupil Withdrawal form prepared
and retained for each withdrawal and signed by a school
administrator? A.R.S. §15-827

Yes

For question 15, use the following sample sizes:

SCHOOLWIDE
ADM Days

<1,000 3
1,000-5,000 5
>5,000 7

15. Based upon review of (3) days for various campuses, grades,
and classes in the computerized attendance system, did the
student absences from each day agree to the teachers’
attendance registers, absence slips, or other supporting
documentation, if used?

Yes
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16. Did the school have adequate electronic or manual controls in
place to ensure that any changes to the original record of
student attendance data were properly authorized and
documented, including the names or identification numbers of
the persons making and authorizing the changes?

Yes

17. Was the School’s membership/absence information submitted
to ADE electronically at least once every 20 school days
through the last day of instruction (with the first 20 day period
beginning the first day of school or the opening of SAIS for
current fiscal year data submission, whichever is later)? A.R.S.
§15-1042(H)

Yes

18. Based upon review of the School's 40t and 100% day
information uploaded to ADE, did the membership and
absences agree with the School’s computerized attendance
system records? (Note: For an AOI program, review year-end
attendance information.)

Yes

Yes/No

Comments

Open Meeting Law A.R.S. § 38-431.01 and § 38-431.02 (See also
Attorney General Opinion 100-009)

1. Beginning July 29, 2010, did the school conspicuously post a
statement on its website stating where all public notices of its
meetings will be posted, including the physical and electronic
locations? Laws 2010, Chapter 88 ?

Yes

2. Beginning July 29, 2010, did the school post all public meeting
notices on its website? Laws 2010, Chapter 88

Yes

3. Did the school maintain a record of notices that includes a copy
of each notice that was posted and information regarding the
date, time and place of posting?

Yes

4. Were notices and agenda of public meetings posted at least 24
hours before the meeting?

Yes

5. Were written minutes prepared or a recording made of
Governing Body meetings?

Yes

Insurance Requirements A.R.S. §15-183(M)

Does the school have the required insurance for liability and property
loss?

Yes

Tuition A.R.S. §15-185 (B)(6) (See also Attorney General Opinion 198-
007) and Laws 2010, 7% 8.8., Ch. 8, Sec. 16 '

6/11

12






Did the school refrain from charging fees that may be considered
tuition other than as provided for in A.R.S. §15-185(B)(6) Yes
[nonresidents] and Laws 2010, 74 S.S., Ch. 8, Sec. 16 [full-day
kindergarten for fiscal year 2011 only]?

Records Management

1. Did the school retain records in accordance with the Records
Retention and Disposition for Arizona School Districts Manual | Yes
published by the Arizona State Library, Archives and Public
Records (based on the testing conducted during the course of
the audit)?

2. Was adequate documentation retained to support amounts in
the financial statements (if the school is not the primary Yes
reporting entity - was adequate documentation retained to
support revenue and expenses in the charter school)?

This Questionnaire was completed in accordance with the minimum audit standards as set forth in the
instructions on pages 2 and 3.

Klecka, Wilkins & Klecka February 27,2012
Audit Fj Date
Partner
Preparer’s Signature {Audit Firm Representative) Title
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Arizona State Board for Charter Schools
Legal Compliance Questionnaire
EdKey, Inc. - Redwood Academy

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011
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INSTRUCTIONS

NOTE: This questionnaire should only be used for schools that are exempt from the
Uniform System of Financial Records for Arizona Charter Schools (schools that
HAVE an exception). If a school is subject to procurement requirements pursuant to
A.R.S. §15-189.02 and 41-2535(A), this questionnaire should be used in conjunction
with the Procurement Compliance Questionnaire (see audit guidelines memo dated
6/13/2011) which is available on the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools’ website
http://asbes.az.gov.

In order to determine whether a charter school that is exempt from the requirements of
the Uniform System of Financial Records for Arizona Charter Schools (USFRCS) ‘is
complying with applicable legal requirements, the auditors must complete the following
Legal Compliance Questionnaire (Note: This questionnaire is not comprehensive of all
legal requirements for charter schools. As such, this document should not be the sole
reference to determine all laws and regulations that are applicable to charter schools).

The following prescribed minimum audit standards for completing the Legal
Compliance Questionnaire must be used in all audits. The State Board for Charter
Schools may reject audits not meeting these standards.

# Sufficient, appropriate evidence must be obtained annually for each question to
satisfactorily determine whether the school complies with the legal requirements,
and the evidence must be included in the audit documentation.

¢ Evidence may be obtained through test work, observation, examination, and client
assertion. However, client assertion alone is not adequate evidence to support “Yes”
answers to the questionnaire.

¢ Population size should be considered in determining the number of items to test,
and the items selected should be representative of the population.

¢ The number of items tested must be sufficient to determine whether a deficiency was
the result of an isolated incident or a recurring problem. Therefore, testing one
transaction, record, or item is not sufficient.

¢ The sample size should be expanded if the audit firm cannot clearly determine
_ whether the school complies with the legal requirements of the question.

¢ If sufficient evidence has been obtained and documented during the current audit,
that evidence may be referenced to answer questions.
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s All “No” and “N/A” answers must be adequately explained in the comments
column or in an attachment. Findings must be described in sufficient detail to enable
the State Board for Charter Schools to describe the finding in a letter. The
description should include the number of items tested and the number of exceptions
noted.

¢ A “Yes” answer indicates that the audit firm has determined that the school
complies with the legal requirements of the question and a “No” answer indicates
the school does not comply. However, the final determination of compliance on
each question, as well as overall compliance with legal requirements, is made by the
State Board for Charter Schools based on the evidence presented in the

- questionnaire, audit reports, the audit documentation, and any other sources.

The resulting audit documentation supporting the audit firm’s answers to the Legal
Compliance Questionnaire must be made available on request for review by the State
Board for Charter Schools. To facilitate this review, the audit firm may wish to include
in the audit documentation a copy of the questionnaire containing references to audit
procedures performed for each question.
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Legal Compliance Questionnaire

Questions/Subject Area Yes/No | Comments

Personnel

1. Did the school have valid fingerprint clearance cards (FCC) for
100% of the required personnel as of the testing date? A.R.S. Yes
§15-183 (C)(5) and A.R.S. §15-512(H)

(QUESTIONS #2a THROUGH 2c ONLY APPLY TO NEW HIRES
REQUIRED PURSUANT TO A.RS. §15-183(C)(5) TO HAVE
VALID FCCS AND DO NOT APPLY IF AN INDIVIDUAL'S FCC
HAS EXPIRED.)

2. For each individual referenced in #1 that did not have a valid
FCC, please provide the following information (provide
supplemental pages, if necessary) (See agency guidance
available on the Board’'s website prior to completing these
questions)A.R.S. §15-183(C)(5):

a. Was an application for a FCC on file with the Department | N /A All required personnel had

of Public Safety (DPS) as of the testing date? FCCs.
b. Did DPS receive the application prior to the hire date? N/A All required personnel had
FCCs.
c. Prior to placement, did the school do all of the following?
i) Document the necessity for hiring/placing the N/A All required personnel had
individual prior to receiving a FCC? FCCs.
ii) Obtain statewide criminal history information on the N/A All required personnel had
individual? FCCs.
iii) Obtain references from the applicant’s current and N/A All required personnel had
previous employers? FCCs.
3. Did the charter school maintain up-to-date fingerprints of
all governing board members as of the testing date? Yes

Charter Contract!

4. Were all other personnel fingerprint checked as of the
testing date? A.R.S. §15-183 (C)(5) and A.R.S. §15-512 Yes

5. Did the charter school inform the parents and guardians of
pupils enrolled in the school of the availability of resume
information for all employees who provide instruction to Yes
pupils? A.R.S. §15-183 (F)

! Specific contract cites could not be provided as term references vary per contract year.
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Yes/No

Comments

Required Filings

1. Is the school in good standing with the following regulatory

bodies:

a. Internal Revenue Service U.S.C. Title 26

1

For payroll taxes, income taxes (if applicable) and
applicable tax forms required to be filed during the
audited fiscal year?

Yes

The school did not have any payroll or income taxes
payable from a prior year(s) as of audited fiscal year
end (June 30%) is a true statement.

Yes

. If the response to 1.a.i, 1.a.ii, or both is “no”, does the

school have a payment plan in place with the Internal
Revenue Service?

N/A

l.a.iand 1.a.ii are Yes.

iv.

If the answer to Question 1.a.iii is “yes”, has the school
made all of the required payments under the payment
plan as of audited fiscal year end (June 30%)?

N/A

1.a.iii is not Yes.

b. Arizona Department of Revenue A.R.S. §43-401 and §43-
1111

1.

For payroll taxes, state income taxes (if applicable) and
applicable tax forms required to be filed during the
audited fiscal year?

Yes

The school did not have any payroll or income taxes
payable from a prior year(s) as of audited fiscal year
end (June 30%) is a true statement.

Yes

If the response to 1.b.i, 1.b.ii, or both is “no”, does the
school have a payment plan in place with the Arizona
Department of Revenue?

N/A

1.b.iand 1.b.ii are Yes.

iv.

If the answer to Question 1.b.iii is “yes”, has the school
made all of the required payments under the payment
plan as of audited fiscal year end (June 30%)?

N/A

1.b.iii is not Yes.

c. Arizona Department of Economic Security A.R.S. § 23-721
et seq.

i.

State unemployment contributions requirements for the
audited fiscal year?

Yes

The school did not have any state unemployment
contributions payable from a prior year(s) as of audited
fiscal year end (June 30%) is a true statement.

Yes

If the response to 1.c.i, 1.c.ii, or both is “no”, does the
school have a payment plan in place with the Arizona
Department of Economic Security?

N/A

1.ciand 1.c.ii are Yes.

iv.

If the answer to Question 1.c.iii is “yes”, has the school
made all of the required payments under the payment
plan as of audited fiscal year end (June 30%)?

N/A

1.c.iii is not Yes.

d. Corporation Commission (e.g., annual report)? Charter
Contract

Yes
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2.

Was a copy of the adopted budget signed by the Governing
Board and filed with the Superintendent of Public Instruction
by July 18%? A.R.S. §15-905 (B) and (E) and §15-183 (E)(6)

Yes

Was the Annual Financial Report (AFR) sent to the
Superintendent of Public Instruction by October 1547 A.R.S.
§15-183 (E) (6) and 15-904 (A)

Yes

Special Education

1.

Is the staff the school uses to provide special education services
(internal or contracted) certified in special education?

Yes

2.

Does the school conduct 45 day screenings on all new
students? AAC R7-2-401

Yes

3!

Are evaluations and IEPs on file for special education students?
34 CFR 300.341-350 and 300.531-536

Yes

Classroom Site Fund - A.R.S. §15-977 & OAG Memorandum

#44

T

Did the School properly allocate Classroom Site Fund receipts
among the following projects: 1011—Base Salary (20%), 1012—
Performance Pay (40%), and 1013 —Other (40%)?

Yes

For Project 1011, were expenses only for teacher base salary
increases and employment-related expenses?

Yes

For Project 1012, were expenses only for performance-based
teacher compensation increases and employment-related
expenses?

Yes

For Project 1013, were expenses only for class size reduction,
teacher compensation increases, AIMS intervention programs,
teacher development, dropout prevention programs, and
teacher liability insurance premiums?

Yes

Did the School use Classroom Site monies to supplement rather
than supplant, existing funding from all other sources? (See
USFRCS Memorandum No. 44 for guidance for Classroom Site
Projects.)

Yes

If the School had monies remaining at year-end, were they
properly carried forward in the three Classroom Site Projects
(1011, 1012, and 1013) to help ensure that the restrictions placed
on the original allocation of revenues is applied in future
years?

Yes

Did the School have sufficient cash at year- end to cover the
carry over monies?

Yes

Student Attendance Reporting

If test work performed in questions 3-15 and 18 of this section
discloses a net overstatement or understatement of membership
and/or absence days, report the net overstatement or
understatement in the “Comments” column.

6/11






Yes/No

Comments

1. Was school in session for at least 180 days or 144 days for
schools operating on a 4-day week, or did the governing board
adopt a calendar with an equivalent number of minutes of
instruction per school year based on a different number of days
of instruction and were membership and attendance recorded
for each day school was in session? A.R.S. §§15-902 (H), (I),
and (J) and 15-341.01

Yes

2. Did the School ensure that:
(Note: Instruction hours do not include periods of the day in
which an instructional program or course of study is not being
offered, including, but not limited to, lunch, recesses, home
room periods, study hall periods, and early release or late start
hours. ADE’s School Finance Procedures Manual)

a. Kindergarten was in session for at least 356 hours? A.R.S.
§15-901(A)(2)

Yes

b. Grades 1 through 3 were in session for at least 712 hours?
A.R.S. §15-901(A)(2)

Yes

c. Grades 4 through 6 were in session for at least 890 hours?
A.R.S. §15-901(A)(2)

Yes

d. Grades 7 and 8 were in session for at least 1,000 hours?
A.R.S. §15-901(A)(2)

Yes

e. For high school, a full-time instructional program meets at
least 720 hours during the minimum number of days
required? A.R.S. §15-901(A)(2)

N/A

No high school.

f. For high school, a full-time instructional program includes
at least four subjects, each of which if taught each school
day for the minimum number of days required in a school
year, would meet a minimum of 123 hours a year; or any
number of subjects totaling at least 20 hours per week,
prorated for any week with fewer than 5 school days?
A.R.S. §15-901(A)(2)

N/A

No high school.

For Student Attendance Reporting questions 3-15, the audit firm
must select and test the specified number of transactions (records,
entries, withdrawals, or days) as shown in the sample size
instructions before each section. That sample should include 3 or
more grade levels and 3 or more campuses, where applicable. The
listed sample sizes represent the minimum level of required test work.
The audit firm should use its judgment in determining whether a
larger sample is needed. All student attendance records tested in
steps 3-10 and 15 should be selected from the 100" day reporting
period.

In the parentheses provided in questions 3-15, indicate the actual
number of transactions tested. If all transactions were tested, indicate
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such in the “Comments” column.

For questions 3-5 select at least 3 student attendance records.

3. If the School had an early (pre-)kindergarten program, based
upon review of (0) early (pre-) kindergarten students’
attendance records, did the School only calculate and submit
ADM data to ADE for this program if the program was
designed to advance students to the first grade at the end of the
of the school year? A.R.S.§15-901(A)(2)(a)(i) and USFRCS
Memorandum No. 33

N/A

No early kindergarten.

4. Based upon review of (3) students’ attendance records in
kindergarten programs with instructional time between 356
and 692 hours a year, were students not in attendance for at
least three-quarters of the day counted as being absent? If the
instructional time for the year was 692 hours or more, were
students not in attendance at least one-half of the day counted
as being absent? A.R.S.§§15-901(A)(2)(a)(i) and 15-
901(A)(6)(2)(3)

Yes

5. If the School had an early first grade program, based upon
review of (0) early first grade students’ attendance records, did
the School calculate and submit ADM for this program as it
would for kindergarten in accordance with ADE’s School
Finance Procedures Manual? AR.S. §15-901(A)(2)(b)(i) and
USFRCS Memorandum No. 33

N/A

No early first grade.

For questions 6 and 7, use the following sample sizes:

Student Attendance
SCHOOLWIDE ADM Records
<1,000 5
1,000-5,000 10
>5,000 15

6. Based on review of (5) students’ attendance records at
elementary and junior high schools, in which attendance was
based on half days, were students in attendance for less than
one-half the day counted as being absent for one full day?
Were students in attendance for at least one-half day, but less
than three-quarters of a day, counted as being absent for one-
half day? Were students in attendance for at least three-
quarters of a day counted in attendance for a day?
A.R.S. §15-901(A)(6)(b)(ii)

Yes
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Based upon review of (0) students’ attendance records at
elementary and junior high schools where attendance was
based on quarter days, were students in attendance for more
than three-quarters of the day counted in attendance for a day?
Were students in attendance for three-quarters of the day or
less counted in attendance for each quarter of the day in
attendance? A.R.S. §15-901(A)(6)(b)(i)

N/A

All elementary attendance
on half days.

For questions 8 through 12, use the following sample sizes:

8.

SCHOOLWIDE
ADM Student Attendance Records

<1,000 3
1,000-5,000 5
>5,000 i

For schools approved to report minutes of attendance, based
upon review of the attendance records for a 1 month period for
(0) students whose attendance was reported in minutes, did the
School report minutes of attendance only for actual classroom
instruction attended by the students in accordance with ADE's
School Finance Procedures Manual?

N/A

Attendance on half and
quarter days.

Based upon review of (0) high school students” records whose
attendance was reported in terms of absences, for all absence
days reported in a 1 month period, did the School report the
absences in accordance with the method(s) provided in ADE's
School Finance Procedures Manual?

N/A

No high school.

10.

Based upon review of (0) high school students’” attendance
records, did the School prorate the membership of the high
school students enrolled in less than four subjects as provided
in ADE'’s School Finance Procedures Manual?

N/A

No high school.
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11. For schools offering an Arizona Online Instruction (AQI)
Program, based upon a review of (0) AOI students’ attendance
records for 4 weeks:

a. Was the guardian-approved or School computer-generated
daily log describing the amount of time spent by the
student on academic tasks maintained by the participating
AOI School? A.R.S. §15-808(E)

N/A

No AQI program.

b. Did the hours reported to ADE agree to the guardian-
approved or School computer-generated daily log?

N/A

No AOI program.

c. Were all pupils who participated in an AOI Program
residents of this State? A.R.S. §15-808

N/A

No AOI program.

12. Based upon review of (3) students’ attendance records (all
grades) for students withdrawn for having 10 consecutive
unexcused absences, was the student only counted in
membership through the last day of actual attendance?
AR.S. §15-901(A)(2)

Yes

For questions 13 and 14, use the following sample sizes:

SCHOOLWIDE
ADM Entries/Withdrawals

<1,000 5
1,000-5,000 10
>5,000 15

13. Based upon review of (5) entries: (Note: Enrollment forms are
not required for continuing students at the same school.)

a. Were entry dates entered into the School's computerized
attendance system within 5 working days after the actual
date of entry and was documentation maintained to
support the date of data entry?

Yes

b. Did the entry date in the computerized attendance system
agree to the entry form?

Yes

c. Did the teacher’s attendance registers, if used, and other
documentation support the entry date in the computerized
attendance system?

Yes

d. Did membership for continuing/pre-enrolled students
begin with either the first day of actual attendance or the
first day that classroom instruction was offered, provided
that the students actually attend within the first 10 days of

Yes
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school? For all other students, did membership begin with
the first day of actual attendance? ADE’s School Finance
Procedures Manual

14. Based upon review of (5) withdrawals:

a. Were the withdrawal dates entered into the School's
computerized attendance system within 5 working days
after the actual date of withdrawal and was documentation
maintained to support the date of data entry? (Note: “Day
of withdrawal” means: a.)) the later of the student's
withdrawal date or the day the school is notified the
student will not be returning; or b.) the 10t day of non-
attendance for students withdrawn for having ten
consecutive unexcused absences.)

Yes

b. Did the withdrawal date in the attendance system agree to
the withdrawal form? (Note: If the computerized
attendance system requires the school to input the first day
of non-attendance for a student to be counted in
membership through the last day of actual attendance, the
withdrawal date on the system should be the school day
following the withdrawal date on the form.)

Yes

c. Did the teachers’ attendance registers, if used, and other
supporting documentation support the withdrawal date in
the computerized attendance system?

Yes

d. Was an Official Notice of Pupil Withdrawal form prepared
and retained for each withdrawal and signed by a school
administrator? A.R.S. §15-827

Yes

For question 15, use the following sample sizes:

SCHOOLWIDE
ADM Days

<1,000 3
1,000-5,000 5
>5,000 7

15. Based upon review of (3) days for various campuses, grades,
and classes in the computerized attendance system, did the
student absences from each day agree to the teachers’
‘attendance registers, absence slips, or other supporting
documentation, if used?

Yes

6/11
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16. Did the school have adequate electronic or manual controls in
place to ensure that any changes to the original record of
student attendance data were properly authorized and
documented, including the names or identification numbers of
the persons making and authorizing the changes?

Yes

17. Was the School’s membership/absence information submitted
to ADE electronically at least once every 20 school days
through the last day of instruction (with the first 20 day period
beginning the first day of school or the opening of SAIS for
current fiscal year data submission, whichever is later)? A.R.S.
§15-1042(H)

Yes

18. Based upon review of the School's 40% and 100% day
information uploaded to ADE, did the membership and
absences agree with the School's computerized attendance
system records? (Note: For an AOI program, review year-end
attendance information.)

Yes

Yes/No

Comments

Open Meeting Law A.R.S. § 38-431.01 and § 38-431.02 (See also
Attorney General Opinion 100-009)

1. Beginning July 29, 2010, did the school conspicuously post a
statement on its website stating where all public notices of its
meetings will be posted, including the physical and electronic
locations? Laws 2010, Chapter 88 7

Yes

2. Beginning July 29, 2010, did the school post all public meeting
notices on its website? Laws 2010, Chapter 88

Yes

3. Did the school maintain a record of notices that includes a copy
of each notice that was posted and information regarding the
date, time and place of posting?

Yes

4. Were notices and agenda of public meetings posted at least 24
hours before the meeting?

Yes

5. Were written minutes prepared or a recording made of
Governing Body meetings?

Yes

Insurance Requirements A.R.S. §15-183(M)

Does the school have the required insurance for liability and property
loss?

Yes

Tuition A.R.S. §15-185 (B)(6) (See also Attorney General Opinion 198-
007) and Laws 2010, 7" S.S., Ch. 8, Sec. 16
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Did the school refrain from charging fees that may be considered
tuition other than as provided for in A.R.S. §15-185(B)(6) Yes
[nonresidents] and Laws 2010, 72 S.S., Ch. 8, Sec. 16 [full-day
kindergarten for fiscal year 2011 only]?

Records Management

1. Did the school retain records in accordance with the Records
Retention and Disposition for Arizona School Districts Manual | Yes
published by the Arizona State Library, Archives and Public
Records (based on the testing conducted during the course of
the audit)?

2. Was adequate documentation retained to support amounts in
the financial statements (if the school is not the primary Yes
reporting entity - was adequate documentation retained to
support revenue and expenses in the charter school)?

This Questionnaire was completed in accordance with the minimum audit standards as set forth in the
instructions on pages 2 and 3.

Klecka, Wilkins & Klecka February 27, 2012
Audit Fi Date
A/é/ (d%\ Partner
Preparer’s Signature (A(u:h't Firm Representat}:fe) Title
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INSTRUCTIONS

NOTE: This questionnaire should only be used for schools that are exempt from the
Uniform System of Financial Records for Arizona Charter Schools (schools that
HAVE an exception). If a school is subject to procurement requirements pursuant to
A.R.S. §15-189.02 and 41-2535(A), this questionnaire should be used in conjunction
with the Procurement Compliance Questionnaire (see audit guidelines memo dated
6/13/2011) which is available on the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools” website
http://asbcs.az.gov.

In order to determine whether a charter school that is exempt from the requirements of
the Uniform System of Financial Records for Arizona Charter Schools (USFRCS) is
complying with applicable legal requirements, the auditors must complete the following
Legal Compliance Questionnaire (Note: This questionnaire is not comprehensive of all
legal requirements for charter schools. As such, this document should not be the sole
reference to determine all laws and regulations that are applicable to charter schools).

The following prescribed minimum audit standards for completing the Legal
Compliance Questionnaire must be used in all audits. The State Board for Charter
Schools may reject audits not meeting these standards.

 Sufficient, appropriate evidence must be obtained annually for each question to
satisfactorily determine whether the school complies with the legal requirements,
and the evidence must be included in the audit documentation.

¢ Evidence may be obtained through test work, observation, examination, and client
assertion. However, client assertion alone is not adequate evidence to support “Yes”
answers to the questionnaire.

¢ Population size should be considered in determining the number of items to test,
and the items selected should be representative of the population.

¢ The number of items tested must be sufficient to determine whether a deficiency was
the result of an isolated incident or a recurring problem. Therefore, testing one
transaction, record, or item is not sufficient.

¢ The sample size should be expanded if the audit firm cannot clearly determine
whether the school complies with the legal requirements of the question.

¢ If sufficient evidence has been obtained and documented during the current audit,
that evidence may be referenced to answer questions.
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¢ All “No” and “N/A” answers must be adequately explained in the comments
column or in an attachment. Findings must be described in sufficient detail to enable
the State Board for Charter Schools to describe the finding in a letter. The
description should include the number of items tested and the number of exceptions
noted.

¢ A “Yes” answer indicates that the audit firm has determined that the school
complies with the legal requirements of the question and a “No” answer indicates
the school does not comply. However, the final determination of compliance on
each question, as well as overall compliance with legal requirements, is made by the
State Board for Charter Schools based on the evidence presented in the
questionnaire, audit reports, the audit documentation, and any other sources.

The resulting audit documentation supporting the audit firm’s answers to the Legal
Compliance Questionnaire must be made available on request for review by the State
Board for Charter Schools. To facilitate this review, the audit firm may wish to include
in the audit documentation a copy of the questionnaire containing references to audit
procedures performed for each question. '
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Legal Compliance Questionnaire

Questions/Subject Area Yes/No | Comments

Personnel

1. Did the school have valid fingerprint clearance cards (FCC) for
100% of the required personnel as of the testing date? A.R.S. Yes
§15-183 (C)(5) and A.R.S. §15-512(H)

(QUESTIONS #2a THROUGH 2c ONLY APPLY TO NEW HIRES
REQUIRED PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §15-183(C)(5) TO HAVE
VALID FCCS AND DO NOT APPLY IF AN INDIVIDUAL'S FCC
HAS EXPIRED.)

2. For each individual referenced in #1 that did not have a valid
FCC, please provide the following information (provide
supplemental pages, if necessary) (See agency guidance
available on the Board’s website prior to completing these
questions)A.R.S. §15-183(C)(5):

a. Was an application for a FCC on file with the Department | N/A All required personnel had

of Public Safety (DPS) as of the testing date? FCCs.
b. Did DPS receive the application prior to the hire date? N/A All required personnel had
FCCs.
c. Prior to placement, did the school do all of the following?
i) Document the necessity for hiring/placing the N/A All required personnel had
individual prior to receiving a FCC? FCCs.
ii) Obtain statewide criminal history information on the N/A All required personnel had
individual? FCCs.
iii) Obtain references from the applicant’s current and N/A All required personnel had
previous employers? FCCs.
3. Did the charter school maintain up-to-date fingerprints of
all governing board members as of the testing date? Yes
Charter Contract!
4. Were all other personnel fingerprint checked as of the
testing date? A.R.S. §15-183 (C)(5) and A.R.S. §15-512 Yes

5. Did the charter school inform the parents and guardians of
pupils enrolled in the school of the availability of resume
information for all employees who provide instruction to Yes
pupils? A.R.S. §15-183 (F)

! Specific contract cites could not be provided as term references vary per contract year.
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Yes/No Comments
Required Filings
1. Is the school in good standing with the following regulatory
bodies:
a. Internal Revenue Service U.S.C. Title 26
i. For payroll taxes, income taxes (if applicable) and
applicable tax forms required to be filed during the Yes
audited fiscal year?
ii. The school did not have any payroll or income taxes
payable from a prior year(s) as of audited fiscal year Yes
end (June 30%) is a true statement.
iii. If the response to 1.a.i, 1.a.ii, or both is “no”, does the
school have a payment plan in place with ’che Internal N/A l.a.iand 1l.a.i are Yes.
Revenue Service?
iv. If the answer to Question 1.a.iii is “yes”, has the school
made all of the required payments under the payment | N/A 1l.a.iii is not Yes.
plan as of audited fiscal year end (June 30%)?
b. Arizona Department of Revenue A.R.S. §43-401 and §43-
1111
i. For payroll taxes, state income taxes (if applicable) and
applicable tax forms required to be filed during the Yes
audited fiscal year?
ii. The school did not have any payroll or income taxes
payable from a prior year(s) as of audited fiscal year Yes
end (June 30%) is a true statement.
iii. If the response to 1.b., 1.b.ii, or both is “no”, does the
school have a payment plan in place with the Arizona | N/A 1.b.iand 1.b.i are Yes.
Department of Revenue?
iv. If the answer to Question 1.b.iii is “yes”, has the school
made all of the required payments under the payment | N/A 1.b.iii is not Yes.
plan as of audited fiscal year end (June 30%)?
c. Arizona Department of Economic Security A.R.S. § 23-721
et seq.
i. State unemployment contributions requirements for the
audited fiscal year? Yes
ii. The school did not have any state unemployment
contributions payable from a prior year(s) as of audited | Yes
fiscal year end (June 30%) is a true statement.
iii. If the response to 1.c.i, 1.c.ii, or both is “no”, does the
school have a payment plan in place with the Arizona | N/A l.ciand 1.cii are Yes.
Department of Economic Security?
iv. If the answer to Question 1.c.iii is “yes”, has the school
made all of the required payments under the payment | N/A 1.c.iii is not Yes.
plan as of audited fiscal year end (June 30%)?
d. Corporation Commission (e.g., annual report)? Charter Yes

Contract
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2.

Was a copy of the adopted budget signed by the Governing
Board and filed with the Superintendent of Public Instruction
by July 18%? A.R.S. §15-905 (B) and (E) and §15-183 (E)(6)

Yes

Was the Annual Financial Report (AFR) sent to the
Superintendent of Public Instruction by October 1547 A.R.S.
§15-183 (E) (6) and 15-904 (A)

Yes

Special Education

1.

Is the staff the school uses to provide special education services
(internal or contracted) certified in special education?

Yes

2.

Does the school conduct 45 day screenings on all new
students? AAC R7-2-401

Yes

s

Are evaluations and IEPs on file for special education students?
34 CFR 300.341-350 and 300.531-536

Yes

Classroom Site Fund - A.R.S. §15-977 & OAG Memorandum

#44

1.

Did the School properly allocate Classroom Site Fund receipts
among the following projects: 1011— Base Salary (20%),1012—
Performance Pay (40%), and 1013 —Other (40%)?

Yes

For Project 1011, were expenses only for teacher base salary
increases and employment-related expenses?

Yes

For Project 1012, were expenses only for performance-based
teacher compensation increases and employment-related
expenses?

Yes

For Project 1013, were expenses only for class size reduction,
teacher compensation increases, AIMS intervention programs,
teacher development, dropout prevention programs, and
teacher liability insurance premiums?

Yes

Did the School use Classroom Site monies to supplement rather
than supplant, existing funding from all other sources? (See
USFRCS Memorandum No. 44 for guidance for Classroom Site
Projects.)

Yes

I the School had monies remaining at year-end, were they
properly carried forward in the three Classroom Site Projects
(1011, 1012, and 1013) to help ensure that the restrictions placed
on the original allocation of revenues is applied in future
years?

Yes

Did the School have sufficient cash at year- end to cover the
carry over monies?

Yes

Student Attendance Reporting

If test work performed in questions 3-15 and 18 of this section
discloses a net overstatement or understatement of membership
and/or absence days, report the net overstatement or
understatement in the “Comments” column.
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Yes/No

Comments

1. Was school in session for at least 180 days or 144 days for
schools operating on a 4-day week, or did the governing board
adopt a calendar with an equivalent number of minutes of
instruction per school year based on a different number of days
of instruction and were membership and attendance recorded
for each day school was in session? A.R.S. §§15-902 (H), (1),
and (J) and 15-341.01

Yes

2. Did the School ensure that:
(Note: Instruction hours do not include periods of the day in
which an instructional program or course of study is not being
offered, including, but not limited to, lunch, recesses, home
room periods, study hall periods, and early release or late start
hours. ADE’s School Finance Procedures Manual)

a. Kindergarten was in session for at least 356 hours? A.R.S.
§15-901(A)(2)

Yes

b. Grades 1 through 3 were in session for at least 712 hours?
A.R.S. §15-901(A)(2)

Yes

c. Grades 4 through 6 were in session for at least 890 hours?
A.R.S. §15-901(A)(2)

Yes

d. Grades 7 and 8 were in session for at least 1,000 hours?
A.R.S. §15-901(A)(2)

Yes

e. For high school, a full-time instructional program meets at
least 720 hours during the minimum number of days
required? A.R.S. §15-901(A)(2)

Yes

f.  For high school, a full-time instructional program includes
at least four subjects, each of which if taught each school
day for the minimum number of days required in a school
year, would meet a minimum of 123 hours a year; or any
number of subjects totaling at least 20 hours per week,
prorated for any week with fewer than 5 school days?
A.R.S. §15-901(A)(2)

Yes

For Student Attendance Reporting questions 3-15, the audit firm
must select and test the specified number of transactions (records,
entries, withdrawals, or days) as shown in the sample size
instructions before each section. That sample should include 3 or
more grade levels and 3 or more campuses, where applicable. The
listed sample sizes represent the minimum level of required test work.
The audit firm should use its judgment in determining whether a
larger sample is needed. All student attendance records tested in
steps 3-10 and 15 should be selected from the 100" day reporting
period.

In the parentheses provided in questions 3-15, indicate the actual
number of transactions tested. If all transactions were tested, indicate
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such in the “Comments” column.

For questions 3-5 select at least 3 student attendance records.

3. If the School had an early (pre-)kindergarten program, based
upon review of (0) early (pre-) kindergarten students’
attendance records, did the School only calculate and submit
ADM data to ADE for this program if the program was
designed to advance students to the first grade at the end of the
of the school year? A.R.S.§15-901(A)(2)(a)(i) and USFRCS
Memorandum No. 33

N/A

No early kindergarten .

4. Based upon review of (3) students’ attendance records in
kindergarten programs with instructional time between 356
and 692 hours a year, were students not in attendance for at
least three-quarters of the day counted as being absent? If the
instructional time for the year was 692 hours or more, were
students not in attendance at least one-half of the day counted
as being absent? A.R.S.§§15-901(A)(2)(a)(i) and 15-
901(A)(6)(2)(3)

Yes

5. If the School had an early first grade program, based upon
review of (0) early first grade students’ attendance records, did
the School calculate and submit ADM for this program as it
would for kindergarten in accordance with ADE's School
Finance Procedures Manual? AR.S. §15-901(A)(2)(b)(i) and
USFRCS Memorandum No. 33

N/A

No early first grade.

For questions 6 and 7, use the following sample sizes:

Student Attendance
SCHOOLWIDE ADM Records

<1,000 S
1,000-5,000 10
>5,000 15

6. Based on review of (5) students’ attendance records at
elementary and junior high schools, in which attendance was
based on half days, were students in attendance for less than
one-half the day counted as being absent for one full day?
Were students in attendance for at least one-half day, but less
than three-quarters of a day, counted as being absent for one-
half day? Were students in attendance for at least three-
quarters of a day counted in attendance for a day?
A.R.S. §15-901(A)(6)(b)(ii)

Yes
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Based upon review of (0) students’ attendance records at
elementary and junior high schools where attendance was
based on quarter days, were students in attendance for more
than three-quarters of the day counted in attendance for a day?
Were students in attendance for three-quarters of the day or
less counted in attendance for each quarter of the day in
attendance? A.R.S. §15-901(A)(6)(b)(i)

N/A

All elementary attendance
on half days.

For questions 8 through 12, use the following sample sizes:

8.

SCHOOLWIDE
ADM Student Attendance Records

<1,000 3
1,000-5,000 5
>5,000 7
For schools approved to report minutes of attendance, based
upon review of the attendance records for a 1 month period for
(0) students whose attendance was reported in minutes, did the
School report minutes of attendance only for actual classroom
instruction attended by the students in accordance with ADE's
School Finance Procedures Manual?

N/A

Attendance on half and
quarter days.

Based upon review of (3) high school students’ records whose
attendance was reported in terms of absences, for all absence
days reported in a 1 month period, did the School report the
absences in accordance with the method(s) provided in ADE's
School Finance Procedures Manual?

Yes

10.

Based upon review of (3) high school students’ attendance
records, did the School prorate the membership of the high
school students enrolled in less than four subjects as provided
in ADE’s School Finance Procedures Manual?

Yes
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11. For schools offering an Arizona Online Instruction (AOI)
Program, based upon a review of (0) ACI students’ attendance
records for 4 weeks:

a. Was the guardian-approved or School computer-generated
daily log describing the amount of time spent by the
student on academic tasks maintained by the participating
AOI School? A.R.S. §15-808(E)

N/A

No AQOI program.

b. Did the hours reported to ADE agree to the guardian-
approved or School computer-generated daily log?

N/A

No AOI program.

c. Were all pupils who participated in an AOI Program
residents of this State? A.R.S. §15-808

N/A

No AOI program.

12. Based upon review of (3) students’ attendance records (all
grades) for students withdrawn for having 10 consecutive
unexcused absences, was the student only counted in
membership through the last day of actual attendance?
AR.S. §15-901(A)(2)

Yes

For questions 13 and 14, use the following sample sizes:

SCHOOLWIDE
ADM Entries/Withdrawals

<1,000 5
1,000-5,000 10
>5,000 15

13. Based upon review of (5) entries: (Note: Enrollment forms are
not required for continuing students at the same school.)

a. Were entry dates entered into the School’s computerized
attendance system within 5 working days after the actual
date of entry and was documentation maintained to
support the date of data entry?

Yes

b. Did the entry date in the computerized attendance system
agree to the entry form?

Yes

c. Did the teacher’s attendance registers, if used, and other
documentation support the entry date in the computerized
attendance system?

Yes

d. Did membership for continuing/pre-enrolled students
begin with either the first day of actual attendance or the
first day that classroom instruction was offered, provided
that the students actually attend within the first 10 days of

Yes
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school? For all other students, did membership begin with
the first day of actual attendance? ADE’s School Finance
Procedures Manual

14. Based upon review of (5) withdrawals:

a. Were the withdrawal dates entered into the School's
computerized attendance system within 5 working days
after the actual date of withdrawal and was documentation
maintained to support the date of data entry? (Note: “Day
of withdrawal” means: a.) the later of the student’s
withdrawal date or the day the school is notified the
student will not be returning; or b.) the 10t day of non-
attendance for students withdrawn for having ten
consecutive unexcused absences.)

Yes

b. Did the withdrawal date in the attendance system agree to
the withdrawal form? (Note: If the computerized
attendance system requires the school to input the first day
of non-attendance for a student to be counted in
membership through the last day of actual attendance, the
withdrawal date on the system should be the school day
following the withdrawal date on the form.)

Yes

c. Did the teachers’ attendance registers, if used, and other
supporting documentation support the withdrawal date in
the computerized attendance system?

Yes

d. Was an Official Notice of Pupil Withdrawal form prepared
and retained for each withdrawal and signed by a school
administrator? A.R.S. §15-827

Yes

For question 15, use the following sample sizes:

SCHOOLWIDE
ADM Days

<1,000 3
1,000-5,000 5
>5,000 7

15. Based upon review of (3) days for various campuses, grades,
and classes in the computerized attendance system, did the
student absences from each day agree to the teachers’
attendance registers, absence slips, or other supporting
documentation, if used?

Yes
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16. Did the school have adequate electronic or manual controls in
place to ensure that any changes to the original record of
student attendance data were properly authorized and
documented, including the names or identification numbers of
the persons making and authorizing the changes?

Yes

17. Was the School’s membership/absence information submitted
to ADE electronically at least once every 20 school days
through the last day of instruction (with the first 20 day period
beginning the first day of school or the opening of SAIS for
current fiscal year data submission, whichever is later)? A.R.S.
§15-1042(H)

Yes

18. Based upon review of the School's 40% and 100% day
information uploaded to ADE, did the membership and
absences agree with the School's computerized attendance
system records? (Note: For an AOI program, review year-end
attendance information.)

Yes

Yes/No

Comments

Open Meeting Law A.R.S. § 38-431.01 and § 38-431.02 (See also
Attorney General Opinion 100-009)

1. Beginning July 29, 2010, did the school conspicuously post a
statement on its website stating where all public notices of its
meetings will be posted, including the physical and electronic
locations? Laws 2010, Chapter 88 ?

Yes

2. Beginning July 29, 2010, did the school post all public meeting
notices on its website? Laws 2010, Chapter 88

Yes

3. Did the school maintain a record of notices that includes a copy
of each notice that was posted and information regarding the
date, time and place of posting?

Yes

4. Were notices and agenda of public meetings posted at least 24
hours before the meeting?

Yes

5. Were written minutes prepared or a recording made of
Governing Body meetings?

Yes

Insurance Requirements A.R.S. §15-183(M)

Does the school have the required insurance for liability and property
loss?

Yes

Tuition A.R.S. §15-185 (B)(6) (See also Attorney General Opinion I98-
007) and Laws 2010, 7" S.S., Ch. 8, Sec. 16

6/11
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Did the school refrain from charging fees that may be considered
tuition other than as provided for in A.R.S. §15-185(B)(6) Yes
[nonresidents] and Laws 2010, 7& S.S., Ch. 8, Sec. 16 [full-day
kindergarten for fiscal year 2011 only]?

Records Management

1. Did the school retain records in accordance with the Records
Retention and Disposition for Arizona School Districts Manual | Yes
published by the Arizona State Library, Archives and Public
Records (based on the testing conducted during the course of
the audit)?

2. Was adequate documentation retained to support amounts in
the financial statements (if the school is not the primary Yes
reporting entity - was adequate documentation retained to
support revenue and expenses in the charter school)?

This Questionnaire was completed in accordance with the minimum audit standards as set forth in the
instructions on pages 2 and 3.

Klecka, Wilkins & Klecka February 27, 2012
Audit Fppm Date
Preparer’s Signaturé,(Audit Firm Representative) Title
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Five-Year Interval Report

— CTDS: 07-89-17-000 |

Entity ID: 79211 —

n

Arizona State '
Board for

Charter Schools

Dashboard Alerts Bulletin Board Charter Holder DMS Email Tasks Search Help Other

Five-Year Interval Report Back to reports list

AR1ZONA STATE BoARD FOR CHARTER ScHoOLS
Renewal Summary Review

Interval Report Details Hi

Report Date: 06/01/2012 Report Type: Renewal
Charter Contract Information Hide Section
Charter Corporate Name: Choice Education and Development Corporation - Sequoia Village School
Charter CTDS: 07-89-17-000 Charter Entity ID: 79211
Charter Status: Open Contract Effective Date: 06/16/1998
Authorizer: ASBCS Contractual Days:
Number of Schools: 1  Sequoia Village School: 180
Charter Grade Configuration: K-8 Contract Expiration Date: 06/15/2013
FY Charter Opened: — Charter Signed: 06/29/2000
Charter Granted: 06/29/1998 Corp. Commission Status Charter Holder is in Good
Standing
Corp. Commission File # F-1031712-7 Corp. Type Non Profit
([',;o':p. Commission Status 06/01/2012 Charter Enrollment Cap 400
ate

Charter Contact Information

Mailing Address: 1460 South Horne Website: —
Mesa, AZ 85204
Phone: 480-461-3200 Fax: 480-649-0747
Mission Statement: Sequoia Village School is committed to assisting families in providing each child the
opportunity to develop competence, character, and confidence.
Charter Representatives: Name: Email: FCC Expiration Date:
1.) Mr. Ron Neil ron.neil@edkey.org 09/10/2017
Academic Performance - Sequoia Village School Hide Section
School Name: Sequoia Village School School CTDS: 07-89-17-001
School Entity ID: 10848 Charter Entity ID: 79211
School Status: Open School Open Date: 08/13/2003
Physical Address: 982 Full House Lane Website: —

Show Low, AZ 85901

http://online.asbcs.az.gov/reports/interval_report/145[6/1/2012 1:49:16 PM]
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Five-Year Interval Report

Phone: 928-537-1208 Fax: 928-537-4275
Grade Levels Served: K-8 FY 2011 100" Day ADM: 174.165
Academic Performance Per Fiscal Year Hi ion
FY AZ LEARNS Profile Met AYP
Elementary ELEM 10 358
2011 Performing Plus; B — — — Met
2010 Performing Plus — — — Met
2009 — Performing Plus — — Yes
2008 — Performing Plus — — Yes
2007 — — No Data Available Performing Yes

Academic Performance - Mountainaire Academy

School Name: Mountainaire Academy School CTDS: 07-89-17-003
School Entity ID: 79187 Charter Entity ID: 79211
School Status: Site Transferred to Separate School Open Date: 08/21/2002
Charter
Physical Address: 1190 West Cleveland Website: —
St. Johns, AZ 85936
Phone: 928-337-3593 Fax: 928-337-3594
Grade Levels Served: K-12 FY 2009 100" Day ADM: —
Academic Performance Per Fiscal Year Hide Section
FY AZ LEARNS Profile Met AYP
0

2009 No Data Available —
2008 No Data Available =
2007 No Data Available —

Charter/Legal Compliance Hide Section
Charter Corporate Name: Choice Education and Development Corporation - Sequoia Village School
Charter CTDS: 07-89-17-000 Charter Entity ID: 79211
Charter Status: Open Contract Effective Date: 06/16/1998
Timely Submission of AFR  Hi ion Timely Submission of Budget Hi ion

Year Timely Year Timely

2011 No 2012 Yes

2010 Yes 2011 Yes

2009 Yes 2010 Yes

2008 Yes 2009 Yes

2007 Yes 2008 No

http://online.asbcs.az.gov/reports/interval_report/145[6/1/2012 1:49:16 PM]





Five-Year Interval Report

Audit and Fiscal Compliance Hide Section

Charter Corporate Name: Choice Education and Development Corporation - Sequoia Village School
Charter CTDS: 07-89-17-000 Charter Entity ID: 79211
Charter Status: Open Contract Effective Date: 06/16/1998

Year Timely

2011 Yes

2010 Yes

2009 No

2008 Yes

2007 Yes

FY Issue #1

2011

2010

2009

2008 Classroom Site Fund (301)

2007

There were no repeat findings for fiscal years 2007 to 2011.

http://online.asbcs.az.gov/reports/interval_report/145[6/1/2012 1:49:16 PM]
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Choice Education and Development Corporation - Sequoia Village School- Entity ID 79211
School:
Sequoia Village School

Renewal Executive Summary

Sources of Evidence for this Document

Pursuant to A.R.S. 15-183.1, a charter may be renewed for successive periods of twenty years. The
Arizona State Board for Charter Schools (Board) has established a process for the renewal of a charter
that is based on affirmative evidence in three areas:

I. Success of the academic program, including academic achievement
II. Viability of the organization, including fiscal management and compliance
lll. Adherence to the terms of the charter, including contract and legal compliance

Evaluation of the charter holder's success in these three areas is based on a variety of information that
will serve as sources of evidence in determining renewal of a charter. These sources include, but are
not limited to:

Pupil achievement data
Independent financial audits
Five-year interval summary reviews
Site visit reports

Monitoring reports

Application package for renewal

Profile

Choice Education and Development Corporation - Sequoia Village School operates one school serving
grades K-8.

Graphs displaying the academic achievement for the past five years, if available, are provided on the
next page.
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I. Success of the Academic Program

The academic performance of the school operated by the charter holder meets or demonstrates
sufficient progress toward the Board’s level of adequate academic performance. Therefore, the charter
holder was not required to submit a Performance Management Plan.

. Viability of the Organization

Because the charter holder’s fiscal years 2009 financial statements were prepared assuming the
organization will continue as a going concern' and because the fiscal years 2009 and 2010 audits
identified negative net assets at the end of each year, the charter was required to complete the
Renewal Budget Plan and submit the Financial Sustainability Narrative and supporting evidence.
Required submissions for the charter’s Financial Sustainability portion of the Detailed Business Plan
Section of the application and the applicable checklist are included in the charter’s portfolio. The
checklist completed by staff identifies whether the required elements of the Detailed Business Plan
were addressed.

The graph below shows the charter’s actual 100" day average daily membership (ADM) for fiscal years
2007 through 2011, the fiscal year 2012 ADM as of May 11, 2012 and projected ADM through 2015.
Projections were provided by the charter as part of the submitted Renewal Budget Plan. The ADM
included in the Renewal Budget Plan for fiscal year 2012 is approximately 9.5 ADM higher than reports
available through the Arizona Department of Education’s website.

! “Going concern” is the idea that an organization will continue to engage in its activities for the foreseeable future. If the
auditor doubts that the organization will exist for at least the next year, the auditor’s report would include a paragraph
indicating this, as was the case for Choice Education and Development Corporation.
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CEDC - Sequoia Village School:
Historical and Projected ADM for FY 2007 - 2015
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As indicated in the graph above, the charter holder's ADM has fluctuated up and down during the past
six fiscal years. Between fiscal year 2011 and fiscal year 2012, the charter holder's ADM grew by
approximately 11%. Although the Renewal Budget Plan uses approximately the same ADM (195) for
fiscal years 2012 through 2015, the charter’s actual fiscal year 2012 ADM is lower. Therefore, the
projected ADM included in the Renewal Budget Plan for fiscal year 2013 anticipates growth of
approximately 5%.

Choice Education and Development Corporation (CEDC) has five charter contracts with the Board —
four of which are on the agenda for renewal consideration. In reviewing the five most recent audits
(2007-2011) for CEDC, the financial statements for fiscal years 2007 through 2009 were prepared
assuming the organization will continue as a going concern. While the audits show CEDC began each
fiscal year with negative nets, CEDC ended fiscal year 2011 with positive net assets of $654,742. As of
June 30, 2011, CEDC had sufficient cash and other readily available resources [$4,146,764] to satisfy
obligations due within the next year [$1,834,718]. In three of the five years (2008, 2010 and 2011),
CEDC's revenues exceeded expenses. Further, between fiscal years 2008 and 2011, CEDC ending
cash has grown from $285,940 to $999,129. The Renewal Budget Plan submitted for CEDC — Sequoia
Village School projects net assets to increase each year.

In the Financial Sustainability Narrative, which is the same for each of the four charters on the agenda,
CEDC states, “ The corporation had negative net assets in prior years but the growth of the schools
and the stability provided by the bond which it participated has allowed it to grow out of that situation.”
The narrative indicates that on March 9, 2012, the board of directors for CEDC and Edkey, Inc.
approved a merger of the two entities effective June 30, 2012.” CEDC submitted a memorandum
explaining the merger and merger documents.

I1l. Adherence to the Terms of the Charter

2 One of Edkey’s three charters with the Board is on the agenda for renewal consideration.
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A. Compliance Matters Requiring Board or Other Agency Action®

Over the past six years, there were no items to report.

B. Other Compliance Matters’

The fiscal year 2008 audit identified an issue that required a corrective action plan (CAP). Specifically,
the audit indicated that the charter holder did not have sufficient cash to cover its Classroom Site Fund
carryover. Additionally, the audit indicated that based on the schedules provided by the charter holder,
it could not be determined whether base salaries for teachers have supplanted Classroom Site Fund
monies. The charter holder submitted a satisfactory CAP.

For the previous five fiscal years, the charter holder has failed to submit its Annual Financial Report,
Budget and annual audit for one or more years.

C. Charter Holder’s Organizational Membership

Because the organizational membership on file with the Board was consistent with the information on
file with the Arizona Corporation Commission, the charter holder was not required to submit the
charter holder’s Organizational Membership portion of the Detailed Business Plan Section.

Board Options

Option 1: The Board may approve the renewal. Staff recommends the following language for
consideration: Renewal is based on consideration of academic, fiscal and contractual compliance of the
charter holder. With that taken into consideration as well as all information provided to the Board for
consideration of this renewal application package and during its discussion with representatives of the
charter holder, | move to approve the request for charter renewal and grant a renewal contract to
Choice Education and Development Corporation - Sequoia Village School.

Option 2: The Board may deny the renewal. The following language is provided for consideration:
Based upon areview of the information provided by the representatives of the charter holder and the
contents of the application package which includes the academic performance, the fiscal compliance,
and legal and contractual compliance of the charter holder over the charter term, | move to deny the
request for charter renewal and to not grant a renewal contract for Choice Education and Development
Corporation - Sequoia Village School. Specifically, the charter holder, during the term of the contract,
failed to meet the obligations of the contract or failed to comply with state law when it:

1. Specific reasons the Board may have found during its consideration including...

® For more information about the areas of compliance reviewed for this section, please see the “Renewal Guide”.
* For more information about the areas of compliance reviewed for this section, please see the “Renewal Guide”.
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Comparison Schools

Selection of schools: Schools were selected based on grade levels served, proximity, and availability of
data.

e Grade levels served — schools serving grades in common with the selected school site were
included.
Example: If the selected school serves grades K-8, a K-3 and a 5-12 school would be listed. In
the case of a K-12 school as the selected site, both elementary (K-8) schools and high schools
(9-12) are included.

e Proximity — charter and district schools located within a two mile radius were included. If fewer
than four school sites were located within atwo mile radius, the distance was increased until at
least four schools were located or a radius of 15 miles was reached. If the selected site is not
an alternative school, alternative schools may be included in the list but do not count toward
the four school minimum to be listed. If fewer than four schools were located within a 15 mile
radius, the list consists only of schools within that 15 mile radius.

¢ Availability of data — Additional information regarding specific data elements is included below.
Schools that did not have current academic data for proficiency and growth, but met the criteria
of inclusion based on grade levels served and proximity, were not included in the list.

Number of Students: Enroliment information is based on the October 1, 2010 student count reported
to the Arizona Department of Education.

Free/Reduced Lunch Eligible: Student eligibility percentages are provided by the school’s enroliment
information. Data is from the 2010-2011 school year.

Grades Served: Grade levels served are based on 2010-11 school year data as reported to the Arizona
Department of Education.

AZ LEARNS Label: Legacy and letter grade labels are based on the Arizona Department of Education’s
Accountability System for the 2010-11 school year.

Math and Reading Proficiency on AIM S: Proficiency is determined by the percentage of students
earning a score of “Meets” or “ Exceeds” on the math or reading portion of Arizona’s Instrument to
Measure Standards (AIMS) tests in 2011 as reported by the Arizona Department of Education.

Math and Reading M edian Growth Percentile: The median growth percentile is the median percentile
of all students in the school with AIMS and Stanford 10 test data, and shows if a school has high,
typical or low student growth. Growth percentiles are calculated for all third- through tenth-grade
students who took the AIM S test and second and ninth-grade students who took the Stanford 10 test.
This model looks at the student’s progress over a number of years compared to their academic peers.
Growth Percentile scores are calculated by the Association and are based on 2010-11 AIM S and
Stanford 10 test scores.
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Sequioa Village School

Growth Percentile

982 Full House Ln | 1009 School |~ 500W. Old | 1350 N. Central | 2¢, & i oneil | 841 E. McNeil St. | 40's. 11th st.
Address House Ln. Linden Rd Show | Avenue Show
Show Low Show Low Show Low Show Low
Show Low Low Low
School Type Charter District District District District Charter Charter
Distance N/A 1.2 mi 4.6 mi 4.8 mi 5.5 mi 5.6 mi 5.7 mi
Number of Students 202 230 354 435 571 41 168
Free/Reduced Lunch 72% 50% 76% 63% 59% 73% 77%
Eligible
Grades Served K-8 K-5 K-5 K-5 6-8 K-3 K-12
AZ Learns Label Performing Plus |Highly Performing| Performing Plus | Performing Plus | Performing Plus Performing Underperforming
AZ LEARNS A-F B A B B C N/A D
Math Proficiency 64.4 84.9 67.5 72.2 57.2 100 111
Reading Proficiency 75.9 93.3 77.1 87 81.5 100 45.8
Math I';":r‘if:ﬁim""th 56.0 Typical 53.0 Typical 34.0 Typical 42.0 Typical 32.0 Low 66.0 Typical 14.0 Low
Reading Median . . . . . .
49.0 Typical 56.0 Typical 39.0 Typical 56.0 Typical 42.0 Typical 41.0 Typical 33.0 Low
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